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Corporate Information and Key Dates

AFERKREERH

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

28th Floor

Emperor Group Centre
288 Hennessy Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
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183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
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KEY DATES

Annual Results 26 September 2019
Announcement

Annual General Meeting 10 December 2019

— Latest time to lodge 4 December 2019
transfers (before 4:30 p.m.)

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company either in printed
form and on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (https://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company. In order
to protect the environment, the Company highly recommends
the shareholders to receive electronic copy of this Annual
Report. Shareholders may have the right to change their choice
of receipt of our future Corporate Communications at any
time by reasonable notice in writing to the Company or the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Tengis
Limited, by post or by email at is-ecom@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

Emperor Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) principally
engage in entertainment, media and cultural development
businesses, particularly in Greater China, which include (i)
cinema development and operation; and (ii) investment in films
and a variety of cultural events.

MARKET REVIEW

China’s film industry had been rapidly expanding in the
past few years. With the increase of disposal income and
enhancement of lifestyles, Chinese consumers have in turn
demanded quality entertainment facilities. According to the
China Movie Data Information Network, China’s movie box
office revenue was broadly stable at RMB59.8 billion (2018:
RMB60.7 billion) during the year ended 30 June 2019 (the
“Year”), as compared with the double-digit growth in the

previous year. Although there was a minor adjustment in box
office revenue due to market challenges and sentiment swing,
China continued to record the world’s highest screen count,
amounting to nearly 64,000 (2018: 52,700) screens as of 30
June 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overall Review

Supported by the significant increase of film exhibition income,
the Group’s total revenue achieved a notable growth of 59.9%
to HK$145.8 million (2018: HK$91.2 million) during the Year.
Couple with a gain on disposal of subsidiaries during the
Year and reduction of the fair value loss on investments in
film production and securities, loss for the Year attributable to
the owners of the Company was narrower at HK$126.4 million
(2018: HK$153.8 million). Basic loss per share was HK$0.04
(2018: HK$0.05).

Use of Proceeds from Equity Fund Raising

During the Year, the Group fully utilised the remaining
net proceeds of HK$20.6 million raised from the issue of
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company subscribed
by Giant Lead Profits Limited (now known as “Emperor
Culture Group Holdings Limited”) at a subscription price of
HK$0.19 per share on 23 March 2017 (the “Subscription”) for
expansion of cinema operation in mainland China as intended.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continued to fund its operations and capital
expenditure during the Year by cash generated internally
from its operations, as well as the net proceeds from the
Subscription. As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s cash and bank
balances amounted to HK$166.5 million (2018: HK$264.1
million), which are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

As at 30 June 2019, amounts due to non-controlling
interests and related companies totalled HK$43.6 million and
HK$5.7 million (2018: HK$44.9 million and HK$15.6 million),
respectively. They were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The gearing ratio of the Group (expressed as a percentage
of total borrowings over net asset value) was reduced to 7.0%
(2018: 8.0%).

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

The Group’s cash and bank balances, income and expenditure
are primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
The carrying amount of the Group’'s Renminbi denominated
monetary net assets was approximately 13.4% of its net assets
as at 30 June 2019. In view of the recent volatility of foreign
currency rate of Renminbi, the board of directors (the “Board”
or “Directors”) of the Company will closely monitor the Group’s
exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and take
appropriate actions, if necessary, to mitigate the risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Profit Guarantee

Pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase agreement (the
“‘S&P Agreement’) dated 4 May 2016 and entered into by a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company with Jade Sparkle
Holdings Limited and Mr. Huang Yulang (formerly known
as “Mr. Wong Chun Loong”) (collectively referred to as the
“Vendors”), both being independent third parties, in respect
of the acquisition of approximately 78.64% equity interest
in Jade Dynasty Multi-Media Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “dDMM Group”), the Vendors have
given a guarantee (the “Profit Guarantee”) to the Group that
the audited consolidated net profit after tax of JDMM Group
for each of the financial years ended 31 December 2016,
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 (each of the
“Guarantee Periods”) would be no less than HK$10.0 million
(the “Guaranteed Sum”) for each of the Guaranteed Periods.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Profit Guarantee (continued)

In the event the Profit Guarantee is not fulfilled in each of
the Guaranteed Periods, the Vendors shall pay 78.64% of
the difference between the Guaranteed Sum and the audited
consolidated profit after tax of JDMM Group (the “Shortfall”)
to the Group and, for avoidance of doubt, if JDMM Group
sustained a loss for such financial year, 78.64% of the
Guaranteed Sum shall be payable by the Vendors to the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, JDMM Group recorded
a loss after tax and hence, the Vendors were obliged to pay
the Shortfall of HK$7.9 million, being 78.64% of the Guaranteed
Sum to the Group. The Group had recorded the Shortfall for
the Year, and also demanded payment from the Vendors of
the Shortfall pursuant to the terms of the S&P Agreement. The
Shortfall was settled by the Vendors on 25 February 2019.

Disposal of Subsidiaries

On 17 June 2019, the Group completed the disposal of
Magic Well Holdings Limited (“Magic Well”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, to an independent third party
at a cash consideration of HK$48.0 million. Magic Well held
approximately 78.64% equity interest in JDMM Group which
principally engaged in the production, distribution and licensing
of animated TV episodes and theatrical films. Upon completion
of the disposal, the Group recorded a gain on disposal of
HK$3.5 million. Further details of such disposal were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 17 June 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW
Film Exhibition

Riding on the strategic locations and premium entertainment
services, revenue from the film exhibition segment increased
significantly to HK$143.0 million (2018: HK$65.6 million) during
the Year, representing a growth of 118.0%. As at 30 June 2019,
the Group ran 5 (2018: 5) cinemas in mainland China and
Hong Kong under “Emperor Cinemas’, offering a total of 54
(2018: 54) houses with more than 6,200 (2018: 6,200) seats.
The details of the film exhibition network as at 30 June 2019
are as follows:

y

KO

E

BERBWE NEEIRERTS  RAFERE
B2 AR o F8 2 W A KB #8850 143,000,000
& 7@(2018¢ 65,600,000/ JT)° # K A
118.0%
ss%mwpmtmm:é;%@%mma
F5) BB - IR1t54 (20184 : 54) B & B -
#16,200 (20184F : 6,200) AL E - BTN
B 48 48 TA2019E 6 AS0R 2 B H A T

No. of houses No. of seats

FR2019F6 30 - AEEH 2 [2#

EhREE VEHE
Mainland China Bl A it
1. Emperor Group Centre in Beijing 1. tREEEEAFLDL 10 1,154
2. Shin Kong Place in Chongging 2. BEIIEKRHM 18 2,298
3. MixC in Hefei 3. /\HEF%%RW 13 1,980
4. East Pacific Mall in Shenzhen 4. FIRBEH K 9 458
Hong Kong PEEE
5. New Town Commercial Arcade in Tuen Mun 5. HFI# &0 5 4 385
Total 5t 54 6,275
Located in either large-scale commercial and entertainment [HBEZZH | A KA TELRKREP LR T
complex or upscale residential areas, “Emperor Cinemas’ ,ﬁ{f—’:@ i’jmuﬁmmﬁ%%ﬂfﬂm C BeE BL R
are positioned as high-end premium cinemas equipped [IMAX5 BT Z %t » ScreenX ~ 4DX 3k MX4D &f) &%
with advanced technologies including IMAX theatre system, Z #%: - D- Box@)W}fh&ﬁtti\ L= -

ScreenX, 4DX or MX4D motion systems, D-Box seats and
Dolby Atmos audio system. They also feature VIP houses and
VIP lounges, where the audiences can enjoy premium and
exclusive entertainment services.

Emperor Cinemas — New Town Commercial Arcade, Tuen Mun
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Investment in Films and Cultural Events

This segment generated a revenue of HK$2.8 million (2018:
HK$25.6 million) to the Group which was mainly contributed
by distribution and licensing income arisen from animation
business during the Year. Such decrease was mainly due to
a reclassification of the revenue of the release of co-invested
films corresponding to the change of accounting standard.

PROSPECTS

The year ahead will be a year of aggressive expansion and
foundation building for the Group. The Group aims to solidify
its market presence and capture the huge potential of the film
market by enhancing its film exhibition network under its label
“Emperor Cinemas”. A solid expansion pipeline has been
established, and a number of locations in mainland China,
Hong Kong, Macau and even beyond Greater China — in
Malaysia — have been secured. Subsequent to the Year, the
Group has extended the cinema footprint to MOSTown in Ma
On Shan, Hong Kong and R&F Mall Johor Bahru in Malaysia.
The Group expects more “Emperor Cinemas” will be in
operation in the financial year of 2019/2020, with a steady
incremental growth of capacity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

PROSPECTS (continued)

To stay on track for long-term growth, the Group will focus
on boosting a series of branding and marketing initiatives,
strengthening its footprints, facility enhancements and
delivering service excellence. The Group will keep serving films
using a comprehensive set of advanced hardware, ensuring
audiences enjoy immersive, real-life experiences during
movies. Benefiting from the membership scheme, official web-
site and APP channels — which not only provide audiences
with a more convenient ticketing practice, but also reinforce
customer loyalty — the Group is committed to providing
a high-class, high-quality visual and audio experience for
audiences.

In April 2019, the local government welcomed several
relaxation measures from the central authorities, which further
facilitate the entry of Hong Kong films and film practitioners
into the mainland China market, and should further enhance
the flexibility of producing mainland China-Hong Kong co-
productions. The film industry in Greater China as a whole will
benefit from the new measures by leveraging the synergies in
both regions, to spur future developments.

Despite the recent market uncertainties, the Group is optimistic
about the long-term sustained growth of China’s film and
entertainment market. The Group will continue to strive to
respond to forthcoming market opportunities with flexibility and
decisiveness, and to expand according to a strategy that is
both disciplined and forward thinking. Riding on an ongoing
synergy with movie stars and pop singers under Emperor
Entertainment Group, “Emperor Cinemas” will continue to
receive positive publicity in Chinese-speaking communities.

Emperor Cinemas — Shin Kong Place, Chongging
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s number of employees was
333 (2018: 316). Total staff costs including the Directors’
remuneration during the Year were HK$53.7 million (2018:
HK$28.4 million). Employees’ remuneration was determined in
accordance with individual’s responsibility, competence and
skills, experience and performance as well as market pay level.
Staff benefits include medical and life insurance, provident
funds and other competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentive or rewards to staff, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which are set
out in the section headed “Share Options” on note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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K/
Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEBAEZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (CHAIRPERSON)

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Former Name: Fan Man
Seung), aged 56, an Executive Director of the Company
and Chairperson of the Board. Ms. Fan joined the Company
in March 2017 and has been responsible for the Group’s
strategic planning, business growth and development as
well as overseeing different functions within the Group. She
is the Chairperson of the Executive Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee as well as
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Currently,
Ms. Fan is also a director of Emperor International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 163) (“Emperor International”), Emperor
Entertainment Hotel Limited (Stock Code: 296) (“Emperor
E Hotel”), Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (Stock Code:
887) ("Emperor W&J”) and Ulferts International Limited (Stock
Code: 1711) (“Ulferts International”), all being associated
corporations of the Company. Having over 30 years of
corporate management experience, Ms. Fan possesses
diversified experience in different businesses ranging from
cinema development and operation to entertainment production
and investment, property investment and development, hotel
and hospitality, retailing of watch and jewellery, wholesaling and
retailing of furniture, financial and securities services, artiste
management as well as media and publication. She is a lawyer
by profession in Hong Kong and a qualified accountant, and
holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chi Fai, aged 63, joined the Company in March
2017 as an Executive Director of the Company and has
been responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business
growth and development as well as overseeing the financial
management of the Group. He is a member of the Executive
Committee and Remuneration Committee as well as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Currently, Mr. Wong
is also a director of Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel,
Emperor W&J and Ulferts International. Having over 30
years of finance and management experience, Mr. Wong
has diversified experiences in different businesses ranging
from cinema development and operation to entertainment
production and investment, manufacturing, property investment
and development, hotel and hospitality, retailing of watch and
jewellery, wholesaling and retailing of furniture, financial and
securities services, artiste management as well as media and
publication. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEBAEZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander, aged 33, joined the
Company in March 2017 as an Executive Director of the
Company. He is also a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company. Mr. Yeung has around 10 years of diversified
experience in different businesses ranging from cinema
development and operation to entertainment production and
investment, property investment and development, hotel
and hospitality, retailing of watch & jewellery, financial and
securities services, artiste management as well as media and
publication. Mr. Yeung is also an executive director of Emperor
International.

Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes, aged 56, joined the Company in
March 2017 as an Executive Director of the Company. She is
also a member of the Executive Committee of the Company.
Ms. Hughes is currently engaged in the management of
entertainment businesses involving production and distribution
of music, TV programmes and motion pictures as well as event
performance and artiste management. She was previously the
Chief Executive Officer of New Media Group and has over 30
years’ of experience in media and publishing business. Prior
to that, she worked for Hong Kong Commercial Broadcasting
Company Limited as Program Presenter and Producer as
well as for Hong Kong Cable Television Limited as Channel
Manager of Entertainment Channel and Controller for Program
Development and Production for more than 10 years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene, aged 56, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since July 2014. Ms.
Chan is a member of the Audit Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. She is a retired
solicitor and with over 20 years’ of experience as independent
non-executive director of various listed companies. Currently,
she is also an independent non-executive director of Chinlink
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 997) and Emperor
W&J. Ms. Chan graduated from The University of Hong Kong
with Bachelor's Degree in Laws.
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EERSREEBAEZEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

Mr. Ho Tat Kuen, aged 45, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since November 2016.
Mr. Ho is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as
a member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. He has been practising as a
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong since 2009. He has
over 21 years of experience in accounting profession. Mr. Ho
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, and is
a Certified Tax Adviser in Hong Kong.

Ms. Tam Sau Ying, aged 51, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since November 2018.
She is also the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee
as well as a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Ms. Tam is a co-founder and
partner of Messrs. Leung, Tam & Wong, Solicitors. She has
over 18 years of experience in the legal profession and is
also an accredited mediator and a China-Appointed Attesting
Officer. Ms. Tam is currently the Independent Manager of
The Incorporated Management Committee of CCC Ming Kei
College. She graduated from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor of Social Science Degree and gained
her Master of Arts Degree from University of Essex, England.
Ms. Tam later studied law in The University of Hong Kong and
was admitted as a solicitor in 2001.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
principally engages in entertainment, media and cultural
development businesses, particularly in Greater China,
which include (i) cinema development and operation; and (ii)
investment in films and a variety of cultural events. Details of
the principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 60 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the Year (2018: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year and an analysis of
the likely future development of the Group’s business are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages
4 to 12 of this annual report. Description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 29 to 52 of this annual report
and notes 5(b) and 6 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Group that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance, key relationships with the Company’s key
stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2018/2019 of the Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 168 of this
annual report.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment at a cost of HK$63,358,000.

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 62 and 63.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2019, the Company has no reserve available
for distribution to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) (2018: Nil).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 8 November 2011 (“Share Option Scheme”) as set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-
linked agreement was entered into by the Company during the
Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares of the Company
(“Shares”) on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of revenue attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers represented less than 30% of the
Group’s total revenue for the Year.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases and
services received attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers represented 68% of the Group’s total purchases and
services received. The largest supplier accounted for 61% of
the Group’s total purchases and services received during the
Year.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholders owning more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital had beneficial interests
in the share capital of any of the above major customers or
suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Chairperson)
Mr. Wong Chi Fai

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander

Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene

Mr. Ho Tat Kuen

Ms. Tam Sau Ying (appointed on 13 November 2018)
Mr. Ng Hoi Yue (retired on 13 November 2018)

Biographical details of the current Directors and senior
management as at the date of this report are set out from
pages 13 to 15 of this annual report. Details of the Directors’
remuneration are set out in note 16(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

In accordance with the Bye-law 87(2) and 87(3) of the
Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Chan Sim
Ling, Irene shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (“2019 AGM”) and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election thereat.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY (continued)

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2019 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which are
provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors
and officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in
respect of potential liability and costs associated with legal
proceedings that may be brought against the Directors and the
directors of the Group respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Interests in the Company

Capacity/
Name of Director Nature of interests
EENR S HERHEE

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong,

Eligible beneficiary of Albert Yeung

RABEE(E)
BERA019ORRBFRE L BEELTCE
EEARBRE TN EBRRRT B A EE A
R—FRENBECEERERINMFALLE
ZAREMRE AL -

EEEHN

AEBRAFEAL BT FEEBE R
R s EARBATE EFMEATD KRB ZEK
(BB & KBRS -

¥ FE B Y T 1R AR 3L
REFENRHEARETHEY  REFER
79 83 ) 5 T A T R 2 AT A A R
BERTREMA  AATEEEASOREER
X B HESCBNARR 2 B2 WA KA
EERBCEEREAERARELRN -

EERFTETBRAEZESER

MR2019F6H30H » EFERAR BITHA
BRARNT N HME Mil(m%ﬁ %&Hﬁf
GO ((EHFERBEMEEDEXVE 2 &M - 8
RO EEFTHAEDHNARARIEE SR
Eﬁaﬂﬂﬁﬂ%%ﬂlﬂ FEFEZELRMAZETR
MKE B EETEBAIIIAR AR ([H
XENEHLFTRAUTETHRBDZ FHEsT

AEFHETESFR %ZT? SFRIZE BT E K
RAIRB Rz EERRBE W
RAEQT 2 EH
Number of issued % of
Shares interested issued Shares
EERERZZEET EE#T
B EE BHED
1,064,200,000 33.12%

Alexander Entertainment Discretionary Trust
(“Mr. Alexander Yeung”) (“AYED Trust”)
BHBELEE(BTE]D Albert Yeung Entertainment
Discretionary Trust ([AYED{&5E))
ZEEBXEmA
Note: B 5 -

These Shares were held by Emperor Culture Group Holdings Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert Yeung Entertainment Holdings Limited
(“AY Entertainment Holdings”) which is owned by the AYED Trust of
which Mr. Alexander Yeung is one of the eligible beneficiaries.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

All interests stated above represent long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, none of the
Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on 8
November 2011. Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. No
option was granted under the Share Option Scheme since its
adoption.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Options Scheme as stated above, at
the end of the Year and at no time during the Year was
the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their spouse
or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 30 June 2019, the interests of the Directors or their
respective associates in the business which are considered to
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group (“Competing Business”) as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules were as
follows:

Nature of Competing Business:
(1)

Cinema operation

Investment in films and cultural events

)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING EERBEREE2ANZE(E)
BUSINESS (continued)
Interests in Competing Business: REFRE B -

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Certain companies controlled/ Director 1 & (2)
Vanessa owned by AYED Trust EoE
B E LT BAYED{E 5 ®l, A2 E T
NG]
Mr. Wong Chi Fai — ditto - Director 1 & (2)
mEELEAE -RAE - B5F
Mr. Alexander Yeung — ditto - Director and/or an 1 & (2)
15EE -@LE - eligible beneficiary of
the AYED Trust
EERHAYEDEREZ
BERE @A
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes — ditto - Director 2)
ST AT 22+ -RAE - B5F

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERFERHfMALTZE R
PERSONS’ INTERESTS

As at 30 June 2019, so far as is known to any Directors or chief 2019464300 * A EEFXARAR T E
executives of the Company, the persons or corporations (other TTIRA BTl » BREEXKARREEZTHAER
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had, % 5l A T3k 3% B R AR B B 5 = 48 B8 A% ()
or were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in AR E BB EEE A CERILRBE
the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as recorded # & HIEI&HIE33616BEFE 2 &M (&
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the EmMHZEZIARLT

SFO (“DI Register”) were as follows:

Long position in the Shares RBRGOZHEE
AY Entertainment Holdings Interest in a controlled 1,064,200,000 33.12%
15 5 PX IR 42 15 iR corporation (Note 1)

REZEGEE S 2 s (Kt at1)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS (continued)

Long position in the Shares (continued)

FTERRRHEM AL 2R (E)
RERGBzFR(E)

Alto Trust Limited

Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert
(“Dr. Albert Yeung”)
BEREL(BEL)

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon
BN &2t

Golden Skill Limited

Mr. Tse Nicholas

Trustee of the AYED Trust
AYEDEREZ X FEA

Founder of the AYED Trust
AYEDEREZ Bl A

Interest in a controlled
corporation

REZESDEE 2 # s

Interest of spouse
Fic 15 # &

Beneficial owner

BERmBEAA

Interest in a controlled

I ESELE corporation
MEEGEER 2 #EwS
Notes: B 7t -
1. These Shares were the same shares of which Mr. Alexander Yeung 1.

had deemed interest as set out under the section of “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” above.

2. By virtue of being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms. Luk Siu Man, 2.
Semon also had deemed interests in the Shares held by Dr. Albert

Yeung.

3. These Shares were the same shares held by Golden Skill Limited. 3.

All interests stated above represent long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, the Directors or
chief executives of the Company were not aware of any person
or corporation (other than the Directors and chief executives of
the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have, any
interests or short positions in any Shares or underlying Shares

as recorded in DI Register.
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97,000,000 3.02%

1,161,200,000 36.14%
(Note 2)
(Krit2)

350,000,000 10.89%

350,000,000 10.89%
(Note 3)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the

Company:

(A) Continuing Connected Transaction —
Master Leasing Agreement (“MLA”)

Date:

Parties:

Nature:

24 May 2018

(1) The Company
(2) Emperor International

MLA sets out the framework of the
terms governing all existing and
future tenancy/licensing transaction(s)
(“Tenancy Transaction(s)”) regarding
leasing of certain office properties
or other properties (including cinema
and advertising space) from Emperor
International and its subsidiaries for the
period from 24 May 2018 to 31 March
2021 with aggregate tenancy annual
caps being set for each of the financial
years ended/ending 30 June 2019,
2020 and for the 9 months ending
31 March 2021 (“Aggregate Tenancy
Annual Caps”).

Pursuant to the MLA, relevant members
of the Group and the relevant members
of Emperor International may from time
to time enter into any definitive leasing
agreements in relation to any Tenancy
Transactions (“Definitive Leasing
Agreement(s)’). The terms of each
Definitive Leasing Agreement shall be
on normal commercial terms or on terms
which are no less favorable to the Group
than terms offered by independent third
parties. The terms and rental shall be
subject to arm’s length negotiation and
determined based on the condition
of the properties and with reference
to the then prevailing market rents on
property(ies) comparable in location,
area and permitted use.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(A) Continuing Connected Transaction —
Master Leasing Agreement (“MLA”)

(continued)

Both the Company and Emperor
International were indirectly controlled
by The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust
(“AY Trust”) at the date of signing
of MLA. As such, under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, Emperor
International was a connected person
of the Company and accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under
the MLA constituted a continuing
connected transaction of the Company
and was subject to the approval by the
independent shareholders of Emperor
International and the Company. Mr.
Alexander Yeung, a Director, has
deemed interest in the transactions
by virtue of being one of the eligible
beneficiaries of the AY Trust.

During the Year, the aggregate amounts
of the Tenancy Transactions with
Emperor International or its relevant
members was HK$14,897,000.

Effective Date: 9 August 2018, whereupon the A EE]

Aggregate Tenancy Annual Caps had

replaced all the then annual caps

previously obtained by the Company for

the Tenancy Transactions.

I
off

Announcement: 24 May 2018 and 9 August 2018

i

Circular: 17 July 2018
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED

TRANSACTION
(B) Continuing

S (continued)
Connected Transactions —

Master Agreement on purchasing furniture

and obtaining furniture
consultanc
Agreement

Date:

Parties:

Nature:

Announcement:

! rocurement
y’)serwces (“Master Furniture

15 January 2018
Q)

@)

Pursuant to the Master Furniture
Agreement, Ulferts International and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“Ulferts Group”) shall (i) sell products and
provide furniture procurement consultancy
services to members of Emperor Group
(including the Group) in relation to their
projects and investments, or for their own
consumption; (ii) sell furniture coupons to
members of Emperor Group for their own
consumption and for the consumption of
their clients as a marketing strategy of their
projects and (iii) provide such other types
of ancillary services and any transaction
of revenue nature in the ordinary course
of business of Ulferts Group, commencing
from 29 January 2018 and up to 31 March
2020.

As both the Company and Ulferts
International were indirectly controlled
by AY Holdings as owned by the
AY Trust at the date of signing the
Master Furniture Agreement, Ulferts
International was a connected person
of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
Master Furniture Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions of the
Company. Mr. Alexander Yeung, a Director,
has deemed interest in the transactions
by virtue of being one of the eligible
beneficiaries of the AY Trust.

Albert Yeung Holdings Limited
(“AY Holdings”)
Ulferts International

During the Year, the amounts of
HK$4,732,000 and HK$2,000 paid to
Ulferts Group for the purchase of furniture
and the obtaining of furniture procurement
consultancy services respectively.

16 March 2018

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements
Save as the “Rental expenses to related companies” in the
amount of HK$14,897,000, the “Purchase of furniture from a
related company” in the amount of HK$4,732,000 and the
“Consultancy service fee to a related company” in the amount
of HK$2,000 for the Year as shown in note 36(a) — “Material
Related Party Transactions” to the consolidated financial
statements which constituted connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all other
transactions as shown in the note thereon are connected
transactions exempted from announcement, reporting, annual
review and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
relevant requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the above continuing connected
transactions.

Auditors’ Letter on Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions

The Group’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s
non-exempt continuing connected transactions (“CCTs”)
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” (“Auditors’ Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditors have issued an unqualified letter containing their
findings and conclusions in respect of the CCTs in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditors’
Letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive
Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company (“INEDs”) have
reviewed the CCTs and the Auditors’ Letter and have confirmed
that these transactions have been entered into by the Group:

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may
be); and

according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance which was significant
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or his/her connected entity
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at any time during the Year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of the independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are
independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the
Board as recommended by the Remuneration Committee
having regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures
a clear link to business strategy and a close alignment with the
Shareholders’ interest and current best practice). Remuneration
should be paid with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives, the salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the executive and non-
executive Directors, internal equity of employment conditions
across the Group and applicability of performance-based
remuneration. The Directors’ fees are paid in line with market
practice. No individual should determine his or her own
remuneration.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

EMOLUMENT POLICY (continued)

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual's responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration
package includes, as the case may be, basic salaries,
Directors’ fees, contribution to pension schemes, discretionary
bonus relating to the financial performance of the Group and
individual performance and other competitive fringe benefits
such as medical and life insurances. Details of the emoluments
of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the
Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 29 to 52 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 256% of the Company’s
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, the auditors of the Group,
shall hold office until the conclusion of the 2019 AGM and a
resolution for appointment of Messrs. Ernst & Young as the new
auditor of the Group to replace HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited will be proposed at the 2019 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 26 September 2019
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
“‘Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards
Shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as employees of
the Company.

The Board has adopted various policies to ensure compliance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. For
the Year, the Company has fully complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules.

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible
for the leadership, control and promotion of the success of the
Group in the interests of the Shareholders by directing and
supervising its affairs and by formulating strategic directions
and monitoring the financial and management performance of
the Group.

Board Composition

As at 30 June 2019, the Board comprised seven Directors,
four are Executive Directors (including the Chairperson) whilst
three are INEDs. The composition of the Board represents a
diversified mixture of age, gender, educational background,
skills, knowledge, length of service and professional
expertise in management, legal, accounts and finance as
well as corporate development which is beneficial to the
business development of the Company and ensures a strong
independent element with a balance of power and influence
between individuals in the Board. The biographies of the
Directors are set out from pages 13 to 15 of this annual
report under the “Biographies of the Directors and Senior
Management” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (“Ms. Vanessa Fan”) has been
appointed as the Chairperson of the Board who provides
leadership for the Board. With the support of the company
secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”), she
ensures that all Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information and are properly briefed on issues arising at
the board meetings. She is responsible for ensuring that
the Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities.
The Executive Directors are responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s businesses. The Board considers
that current segregation of duties can ensure a balance of
power and authority and make the Board and the operation of
the Group function effectively.

The Chairperson holds meeting without the presence of
Executive Directors with INEDs at least once a year.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

THE BOARD (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

All INEDs are professionals with valuable experience and
expertise in legal, accounting or auditing in business areas
who contribute impartial view and make independent judgment
on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. Each of them
has been appointed for an initial term of three years which
is renewed automatically for successive terms of one year
subject to early termination with notice being served by either
party. The terms of the INEDs are also subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election provisions under the Bye-laws of the
Company.

The Company had received confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs. Based on the annual review conducted
by the Nomination Committee, the Board considered each of
them to be independent by reference to the factors as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The INEDs had been
expressly identified as such in all corporate communications
of the Company that disclose the names of Directors.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (comprising all the Executive Directors of the Board)
which has been delegated powers and authorities to carry
out the day-to-day management and operation of the Group,
formulate business policies and make decision on key business
issues. The Executive Committee shall have all power and
authorities of the Board except the following matters as set out
in a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved by the
Board:

° determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;

o approving annual and interim results and financial

reporting;

° declaring or recommending payment of dividends or other
distributions;

° approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

o approving publication of the announcement (except for
discloseable transactions in relation to lease transactions
recognising the right-of-use asset according to HKFRS
16) for notifiable transactions under the Listing Rules;

° approving non-exempted connected transactions/non-
exempted continuing connected transactions (other than
those transactions took place from time to time under the
master agreement(s) previously approved by the Board/
Shareholders of the Company (as the case may be))
under the Listing Rules;
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

THE BOARD (continued)

Delegation to the Management (continued)

° approving proposed transactions requiring Shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules;

° approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company;

° approving the establishment of Board committees;

° approving policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, including but not limited
to risk management policy, remuneration policy and
corporate governance policy;

° approving financial assistance to Directors;

° ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions; and

° approving such other matters or transactions as specified
by the Board or as thought fit by the Committee or as
required by all applicable laws, rules and regulations from
time to time.

Induction, Support and Professional
Development of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director,
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors,
duty of disclosure of equity and business interest in the
Group and such induction materials will also be provided
to newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment
as Directors. All Directors have been updated on the latest
developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. There is
a procedure agreed by the Board to enable Directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in
order to assist them to perform their duties to the Company.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

THE BOARD (continued)

Induction, Support and Professional
Development of Directors (continued)

The Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training.
During the Year, each Director had participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/workshop/
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to
the Company:

Name of Directors EEnR

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa BHEL L
Mr. Wong Chi Fai mEEELEE
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander B BE &
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes =M A 22 &
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene PR8I L+
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen L E
Ms. Tam Sau Ying A Y am

(appointed on 13 November 2018)

Mr. Ng Hoi Yue (Fipis il

(retired on 13 November 2018)

Relationship between the Board Members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relations) among each other.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.
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(1) Corporate Governance
TEER

(2) Regulatory
BEE

(3) Finance
B 15
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EEERRE

THE BOARD (continued) EEg (&

Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment EEHEBE R REBEZ A

The attendance of the Directors at the meetings during the RAFEZEEHFEZ 2B RO T :
Year is set out below:

Executive Directors

HTES
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Note 1) 6/6 2/2 1 6/6 11 1
BEETT (Mt
Mr. Wong Chi Fai 6/6 11 6/6 11
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander 5/6 6/6 il
BHELE
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes 6/6 6/6 il
AR e
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUkHTES
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene 6/6 313 11 1/ 11
REkTt
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen (Note 2) 6/6 33 11 2/2 11 il
MEREE N iH2)
Ms. Tam Sau Ying (Notes 384) 4/4 1 1 1
Ba Lt (Wi#384)
Mr. Ng Hoi Yue (Note ) 2/2 2/2 il il il
hsTREMNHS)
Total number of meetings held: 6 3 1 2 1 6 1 1
BTeHz AR
Notes: B 7t
1. Chairperson of the Board, Executive Committee, Nomination 1. BEY  WILEY REEZEGRGEERZE
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee EgxE
2. Chairman of the Audit Committee 2. BEREEGER
3. Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee 3. THEEEER
4, Ms. Tam Sau Ying was elected as Director in the annual general 4. BERLZLTN2018F 11 AIBARITZARFIRE
meeting of the Company held on 13 November 2018 (2018 BEFARE(2018RRBFAG)) L ERAES -
AGM”) and was appointed as the chairperson of the Remuneration THR—BEZEATFWNEZESTEREURLRERZ
Committee as well as a member of the Audit Committee and ZEEKIREEEEKE

Nomination Committee on the same day

5. Mr. Ng Hoi Yue retired as director at the 2018 AGM and 5. HETFTRER0IBRRBEFASTLEAES
automatically ceased to act as the Chairman of the Remuneration VTEHEETHEESETRAREZEZES
Committee as well as a member of the Audit Committee and REZEBEKE

Nomination Committee

The Board has reviewed the contribution required from each ZESCEMEEEBETHYUARTNELH
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and {EZ Bft ' YR A BEEHO N HEHER
is satisfied that each Director has been spending sufficient time EBITEEHE

performing them.
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TEERRSE

THE BOARD (continued)

Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures as well
as all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the Board in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent
to the Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board
meeting. For all other Board meetings, reasonable notice
was given. Board papers and related materials which provide
appropriate, accurate, clear, complete and reliable information
are generally sent to all Directors and relevant committee
members at least 3 days before each regular Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting to enable the Directors to make
informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded
in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached, with draft and final versions being circulated to the
Directors for their comment and records respectively, within
reasonable time after the meetings are held. Originals of such
minutes, being kept by the Company Secretary, are open for
inspection at any reasonable time with reasonable notice by
any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting
on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/
her associates has a material interest and he/she shall not be
counted in the quorum present at the Board meeting. INEDs
who, and whose close associates, have no material interest in
the transaction are present at that Board meeting.
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TEERRE

THE BOARD (continued)

Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Corporate Governance Committee and Executive Committee.

All members of the Audit Committee and the majority members
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
are INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all the Board
Committees are given to the respective members of these
Committees. Details of the Board Committees are set out
below:

1. Executive Committee (set up on 28 January 2015)

The Executive Committee consists of all the Executive
Directors, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the
Committee), Mr. Wong Chi Fai, Mr. Alexander Yeung
and Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes. The primary duties of
the Executive Committee are (a) formulating business
policies and making decision (including entering into
transactions) on matters relating to the management
and day-to-day operations of the Group; (b) making and
reviewing corporate/financial/treasury planning investment
and operation strategy of the Group; (c) discussing
and approving any financial, borrowing, charging and
guarantee commitment to be made or on behalf of the
Group; (d) approving discloseable transactions, exempted
connected transactions and non-exempted continuing
connected transactions took place from time to time
under the master agreement(s) previously approved by
the Board/Shareholders (as the case may be) under the
Listing Rules; and (e) having all power and authorities
of the Board except those matters specifically reserved
for the full Board as set out in the “Formal Schedule
on matters reserved for and delegated by the Board”
adopted by the Board from time to time.
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TEERRSE

THE BOARD (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

2.

Audit Committee (set up on 4 December 1998)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Ho Tat Kuen (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Chan Sim
Ling, Irene and Ms. Tam Sau Ying.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditors; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; (c)
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditors; and (d) reviewing financial information
and overseeing the financial reporting, risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee held
three meetings during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out below:

i. reviewed with the management/finance-in-charge
and/or the external auditors the effectiveness of
audit process and the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, and the accuracy
and fairness of the annual consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 30 June
2018 (“Previous Year”) and the interim consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 31
December 2018;

ii. reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group;

iii. performed annual review of the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions of the Group for
the Previous Year;

iv. recommended the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditors at the 2018 AGM;

V. approved the audit plan for the previous Year,
reviewed the independence of external auditors and
approved their engagement; and

vi. made recommendation to the Board on the
adoption the revised terms of reference of the Audit
Committee.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 i

EEg(#E

BEEZEg (&)

2,

BREES (X1998F 12548 % 7)
%ﬁKE\AEﬁ BB IFRITEFRAK

E'J%T‘JL%?E%(K,\E &) BRIE
E?ﬁi&nﬂﬂk L o
EVLZERARE TED 3 1 80 (2 ) 0 B 52

FIRARNEIREER - BEZLZETETES
BE@UEE EFZERERINEZE
MREHEEE R (b)RT R ERIIMNEZ
Mz BYHEUAREZEFRF2EEER
B C)HEINNEZERMZ e KT
3R R () BB S E R K& BRI IR
EHE BEREEMANBELZRLS - F
% ,\EBA$¢FW§EHTT IR o

EVZEENAFERTZIEREH
ZIanR

i HERRE BEEaE AR, I
ZEMEMBEZBRENAEEMK
MmrzesRANEEZ KK AR
DRIE ZE2018F6 A30H I T FE
(LEEDZFEHEAUBEHRER LE
Z2018F12A31H I /N E Az &7
REVBRR 2 EBER QT

i /\EZ&EE&EM%AE\&%?K%
ERBEENMAIBELERRZK
B

i. BAEERELEFEZIFHRRIEN
BRETFEERN:

iv. BEFGR20BRRBAFARE L
E%ﬁ 2 B8 SIS X AT

V. Ttt)EKEJ*Z%%?r%‘J $*T£V\\H%
RBMzBIMERERLZE K

vii BMEMBERZEGZKEITRBESR
BERmEEeRbESR -



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

THE BOARD (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

3.

Remuneration Committee (set up on 26 October 2005)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Tam Sau Ying (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Mr. Ho Tat Kuen, both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong
Chi Fai, being the Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee is available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration
Committee is primarily responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on (a) the Company’s
policies and structure for the remuneration of Directors
and senior management; (b) the remuneration of INEDs;
and (c) the specific remuneration packages for individual
Executive Directors and senior management. Details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year
are set out in note 16(a) to the consolidated financial
statements. The Remuneration Committee held one
meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i reviewed the Directors’ fee and made
recommendation to the Board; and

ii. reviewed the remuneration structure/package of the
Executive Directors and senior management and
made recommendation to the Board on their specific
packages.

Nomination Committee (sef up on 23 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the Committee),
being the Chairperson of the Board, Mr. Ho Tat Kuen and
Ms. Tam Sau Ying, both being INEDs.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are (a) reviewing the structure,
size and diversity of the Board; (b) reviewing the
Board Diversity Policy; (c) determining the policy for
the nomination of Directors (“Nomination Policy”) and
identifying potential candidates for directorship; (d)
assessing the independence of INEDs; (e) reviewing
the time commitment of each Director; and (f) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment, re-election or re-designation of Directors
and succession planning for Directors. The Nomination
Committee held two meetings during the Year.
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TEERRSE

THE BOARD (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

4.

Nomination Committee (set up on 23 March 2012)
(continued)

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the
Board;

ii. reviewed the independence of INEDs;

iii. reviewed the time committed by the Directors in
performing their duties as Directors;

iv.  made recommendation to the Board on the re-
election of Directors at the 2018 AGM; and

V. made recommendation to the Board on the adoption
the revised terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee.

Board Diversity Policy

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives to the business nature of the Company.
Selection of candidates on the Board is based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Nomination Committee will also assess the
merits and contribution of any Director proposed for re-
election or any candidate nominated to be appointed as
Director that will bring to the Board against the objective
criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board that would complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

Nomination Policy

During the Year, the Company had adopted a written
Nomination Policy of the Group. It aims at assisting the
Nomination Committee in identifying and nominating
suitable candidates for directorship based on the Board
Diversity Policy and sets out the nomination criteria and
the nomination procedures for (i) nominating additional
Director to fill a casual vacancy on the Board; (ii) making
recommendation to Shareholders regarding any Director
for election or re-election of Director at general meeting;
and (iii) nomination by Shareholders on election of new
Director.
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THE BOARD (continued) BEEg(E)

Board Committees (continued) BEEZEE( ,,A)

5. Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 14 August 5. LEBREZEEE(K2015F8H14HK
2015) )
The Corporate Governance Committee (“CGC”) consists TEEARLZET((EEERZEES) AN
of four members, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson HZREHEK  HEDBAEESEIRBX
of the Committee), being the Chairperson of the T (ZESXR) BUFNITEEMHRE
Board, Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene, being an INED, a Bt  — 227 MEBRERRE—%
representative of company secretarial function and a MHEeg T BERE -

representative of finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CGC EE é%%@Zﬂﬁ%%ﬁ 5 1 &5 [ A]
is available on the Company’s website. The primary RARFRBUER  rEBEREES
duties of the CGC are (a) reviewing the policies and Eyﬂ&,\z\%( VREAABEREERS
practices on corporate governance of the Company EZE&Z%&%%EIF’J?%ATET EBE
and making recommendations to the Board; (b) (b )*A*T&EQ%ZIS AL & #xi%ﬁ&
reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of EEHTENEIBEREREER: T

the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory MS‘J&WQJ%i%&KEIH 8 Eé\tﬁ
requirements; (c) developing, reviewing and monitoring ZAN/N ReSEANTRTE] ()
the code of conduct applicable to Directors and relevant E:Z%%é%& BERBEB2EBIRFE
employees of the Group on dealings with the Company’s BEER REe)BRIAARAETEEER
securities; (d) reviewing and monitoring the training and FRAIZEARRAREZEE - EE
continuous professional development of Directors and BREEBEERAFEARITT—REHE °

senior management; and (e) reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
report. The CGC held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the CGC during hEEARLEENEAFERBITZ IR

the Year is set out as follows: ZHENNT

i reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and L E\‘Jﬁ% ERB RS MESZIRM
made recommendation to the Board; HEEE

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance i. BETETEALEEHRATETIEZ
with legal and regulatory requirements; B REHR

ii. reviewed the training and continuous professional i. BMNEFRSREREZHFIEEF
development of Directors and senior management: BEEER:

iv. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to iv. BRNESKAKEBEEBHEEZTA
Directors and relevant employees of the Group; AR

v.  reviewed on Company’s compliance with the CG v. BREAQAEETEEEARTACZE
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance MERTEEARABREZHTE &
Report; and

vi. made recommendation to the Board on the adoption vii BEERMEEERZEG LB
of the revised terms of reference of the CGC. BHERMEETSREEZ

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEXtEZXEBEERALT
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TEERRSE

COMPANY SECRETARY NAWE

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved by RQARWMEHEZEEZGH EZE  HAESYHESS
the Board, plays an important role in supporting the Board for FHEEEEZAE LM@%?%QWE‘BZE%H
ensuring good information flow within the Board and ensuring REBRIIKESETHRMEBEFESET - #
that the Board policy and procedures are followed. She is BERBBEE LRI B Z2EERNESCRMHE
responsible for advising the Board on governance matters & @ WiBEEZRUBREEER - FHAR
and has facilitated induction and professional development of &2 HB&® BB R °

the Director. She has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s

affairs.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had duly complied RAFERN @ RAWMECHABETLEMHRAUSE
with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing 3.291§18 T~ Z B E »

Rules.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS ESEZ2HHEX S

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in AR TET%ZWLFH%EE'JW%‘F%%ZZM =<1 Al
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct FREBMEFTFEHRFH2TRTH - K[
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made FMAEEFLHTEEHEK  BEL2RBBRES
specific enquiry to all Directors, all of them confirmed that they 7 2 (@ \ 2
have complied with the required standard of dealings as set TX5?
out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT BEREX

Financial Reporting B 7% T 3R

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare EFHMNEBFEAERUAEEFELZ LMK
annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and #&%&Lmiﬁﬁ'lﬁﬁﬁEZEfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ BEIE -
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules. EIEEESARNEELHMAKERBERIBY K
The management has provided all members of the Board with TREXZEHER U AEERHFEAH 2K
monthly updates on internal financial statements which give IR~ #k R R ATS B F & LA B 2 T4 -

a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s

performance, position and prospects as at the reporting date.

31
S

)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the MREARFEFEZGAPBRERE  EFSEK

Year, the Board adopted appropriate accounting policies and MAB SRR EEEBRER  LiEL

applied them consistently and made judgment and estimates J|EAEBZ B LHE  BRZESKETH

that are prudent and reasonable and ensured the consolidated R & IZ[#FE &2 | K ERE (B 1EL T EHE

financial statements are prepared on a “going concern” basis RFRIEH) T EE QA F R AEBRAREE

(with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary) ZEHBMRN - BEEECEHNESSREEHESEA

and showed a true view of the state of affairs of the Group for B HEHRENFTERERLER  UEREEE

the Year. The management had provided sufficient explanation 8 Gt A IR Xt ) 2 B #5 N b Bk - 1E

and information to the Board on the consolidated financial %115 E - REB 2 X EMERBEZ2HE

statements to enable it to make an informed assessment of BTN B X BRI RS AEH B -

the financial and other information put before it for approval.

The auditors of the Group had made a statement about their

reporting responsibilities in the Independent Auditors’ Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL [&| i & 32 & A 25 B 5

A. Goals and Objectives A. RERBE
Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation NHEEHRNECERBEEBEESR
and day-to-day running of a business and it assists a HBEZ HNTBR AR ERHEEKE
company in achieving its business objectives. Internal o AREBTEHEN 2 AFEIZBR KM
control policies and procedures within the Group are By BERRBEERANINEIERSR
updated regularly with the primary objective of providing ((ZERFEDERERREHR—KIEIIR
general guidance and recommendations on a basic =

framework of risk management and internal control
systems (“Systems”).

Emperor Culture Group Limited EEX{tEXKBEHRA A
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 “F3f



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL EkEERAFBEEZ(E)

CONTROL (continued)

A. Goals and Objectives (continued) REREBEE)

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group EFeaERRASEERLIRERSSE

establishes and maintains appropriate and effective NERMZZERG - ZERXHEEEH

Systems. Such Systems are designed to manage MIEEBRREERNEFEZ 2RR - I

rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business ErpERERFRAKBERREHSE f@ﬁﬁ

objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not JEMBEIRAF ©

absolute, assurance against material misstatement or

loss.

The key objectives of the Systems include: ZERMZETEZEERE

e safeguarding assets; s REEBE:

e  ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of s MRUBERBEEBEZTEM %
financial records and reports; e B U

e promoting adherence to policies, procedures, o  (REETHE  BF  ERKEE:
regulations and laws; and )5

e promoting effectiveness and efficiency of e RELEXZMRAEMN -
operations.

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s internal REEEHATTEHETRI()ANEED

control measures and procedures covering material NHEZERERLRERF  REMBEKRE

controls, including financial, operational and compliance 7 RENE - EERGHRERE KR

controls; and (i) risk management functions in the RElZEEZMBRARIMNRAREEHE -

principal subsidiaries of the Company.

B. Internal Control A 3B 1=
(1) Governance Control (1) EREE

The control structure of the Systems is set out as

RERG L EERBEINMT

follows:

The Board EFxe

e responsible for the Systems and reviewing their e BEZZTEARUAEHHEBY
effectiveness; {3

o oversee the Systems on an ongoing basis with
the assistance of the Audit Committee;

o ensure maintenance of appropriate and
effective Systems;

° define management structure with clear lines
of responsibility and limit of authority; and

o determine the nature and extent of significant
risk that the Company is willing to take
in achieving the strategic objectives and
formulate the Group’s risk management
strategies.
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TEERBRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)
Internal Control (continued)

Governance Control (continued)
Audit Committee

M

review and discuss the Systems with the
management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have
effective Systems. This discussion includes the
adequacy of resources, staff qualification and
experience, training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function; and

consider major findings on internal control
matters (if any) raised by external auditors and
make recommendations to the Board.

The management (includes heads of business
units, departments and divisions)

design, implement and monitor the Systems
properly and ensure the Systems are executed
effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate
risks in their day-to-day operations;

give prompt response to, and follow up the
findings on internal control matters raised by
internal or external auditors; and

provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Systems.

Internal Audit Department

carry out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Systems in respect of all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance
aspects;

alert the management on the audit review
findings or irregularities and advise them on
the implementation of necessary steps and
actions to enhance the internal controls of the
Group; and

report results of internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans to the Audit Committee
and the Board on regular basis.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

B. Internal Control (continued)
(2) Operational Control

The management is responsible for analyzing the
control environment, identifies risks pertaining
thereto, and implements various controls therein as
follows:

i. Approach taken: The management regularly
reviews the operational policies and
procedures, the Systems design and evaluates
findings of any deficiencies in the internal
controls, then provides recommendations for
improvement and assesses the effectiveness
of implementation of such recommendations,
where appropriate. The scope and findings of
the review will be reported to and reviewed by
the Audit Committee annually.

il Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines: They are in place to safeguard the
assets against unauthorised use or disposition
and ensuring maintenance of proper
accounting records that are in compliance with
the applicable laws, rules and regulations for
the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use and/or external publication.

ii. Management information system and
technology: To control over the business
activities, it allows close tracking of various
inputs and outputs of the Group’s business
such as inventory, products and customer
relationship and human resources. It also
tracks audit trails in the authorisation system,
under which permissions and responsibility
of authorisation are clearly identified and
adequate records can be maintained in the
systems.

iv.  Reports and variance analysis: Reports and
analysis of each segment are conducted on
regular basis.

V. Information flow: The transparent information
flow alerts the management promptly of
any deviations. Benchmarking with historical
database and comparisons with the same also
acts as a detecting device for spotting unusual
activities.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Internal Control (continued)
Operational Control (continueq)

@

©)

Vi.

Vil

Safeguarding of assets: Regular physical
count of inventories, daily cash, movie
vouchers and exchange coupons for each
cinema with reconciliation of report generated
from the ticketing system are performed
by Finance and Accounts Department and
reviewed by Internal Audit Department.

Service quality control: Regular review
on operational systems of cinema business
segment to ensure the service quality.

Flnanclal Controls

Vi

Vil

Viil.

proper controls are in place for the recording
of complete, accurate and timely accounting
and management information;

annual budget of cinema operation is prepared
and approved by the management before
being adopted;

the management monitors the business
activities closely and reviews monthly financial
results of cinema operation against the
budget;

regular reports on revenue, debtors’ ageing
and internal financial reports are prepared to
the management which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s
financial performance;

monthly updates on internal financial
statements are provided to all directors and
senior management which give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, financial position and
prospects in sufficient details;

annual audit by external auditors is carried
out to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the
Group’s accounting policies and the applicable
laws and regulations;

daily available fund report and monthly cash
flow forecast are reviewed to monitor the cash
flows of the Group; and

the Group’s policy and guideline on cheque
payment to individual is strengthened.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 i

EkEERABEEGE)

IR H ()

(2) Mgﬁt}'f‘(ﬁfm)
vii REEE:PBELEEIAME
BRHBRNER - El%fﬁi*
BYRSEFHRERENE

©)

Vii.

% T BB R A E KR
WMEETHE  WAHANILEZ
*BF'?%E%EJ

BR 3% fmE = E B B EL B
X0 BH)EE R RIARE R
HamE o

Bt 35 B 2

Vi

Vii.

Viil.

A EE 2 FERELA
RMATAEEEREHE:

BETYSEEREEL A
g BB 2 18 2 B 75 R 48 B TR
ﬁ?ﬁéi’tt*/s/\ﬂ ;

@

AT} G T

ﬁ%%mﬁ%& o 0t 5 25
' E%%ﬁﬁm

BARNERBEERAREEA
BIRHEAN MM RAAER
NREAEREHBEZARE
= BB R AT R AR
&% E%E’]ﬁfﬁ

HNIE % BRAD HE 1T 8 B % AR
ﬂ#:ﬁmajﬁki&%iﬁi\\nﬂgu /E
A AEBE®SFEHERE
ERFEOERERE:

EHERRESRENEH
T % i B TR A B AN o 3R
ERE R

MEAEBEBREALZENRZ
BERES -



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

B. Internal Control (continued)
(4) Compliance Controls

The following policies and procedures are in place
to safeguard the compliance control:

Systems and Procedures on Disclosure
of Inside Information to ensure, with the
assistance of an internal work team (if
required), that any material information which
comes to the knowledge of any one or
more officers should be promptly identified,
assessed and escalated, where appropriate,
for the attention of the Board. The Board
shall make timely decisions on disclosure, if
necessary, and take appropriate measures to
preserve confidentiality of inside information
until proper dissemination of the inside
information;

Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which
shall be reviewed and monitored regularly
by the Corporate Governance Committee as
delegated by the Board;

CCT Compliance Committee is established
to monitor, control and regularly review
connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions of the Company and
ensure proper compliance with all relevant
laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and
disclosure requirements;

Whistle-blowing policy for the employees of
the Group to raise concerns, in confidence,
about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters.
Such arrangement will be reviewed by
the Audit Committee which ensures that
proper arrangement is in place for fair and
independent investigation of the matters; and

Anti-money Laundering and Counter-
terrorist Financing Policy and Procedures is
established to set out the general framework
for combating crime against money laundering
and financing of terrorism. It provides guideline
to prevent the Group’s employees and clients/
customers/ suppliers/vendors/contractors from
being misused for money laundering, terrorist
financing or other financial crime and has set
out some indications of potentially suspicious
transactions/activities for employees’
reference.

Review of Internal Controls

Effectiveness of internal controls is tested by Internal
Audit Department regularly. Internal audit reviews
and agreed action plans should be reported to the
Audit Committee and the Board on timely basis.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

C. Risk Management

M

Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to
identify, analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and
communicate risks associated with any activity,
function or process within its scope of responsibility
and authority. Risks are evaluated by the Board and
the management based on (i) the severity of the
impact of the risks on the Group’s financial results;
(ii) the probability that the risks will occur; and (iii)
the velocity or speed at which risks could occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will
manage the risk as follows:

° Risk elimination — the management may
identify and implement certain changes or
controls that in effect eliminate the risk entirely.

° Risk mitigation — the management may implement
risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the likelihood,
velocity or severity of the risk to an acceptable level
or contingency plan for possible loss scenarios.

° Risk control and monitoring — it involves
making decisions regarding which risks are
acceptable and how to address those that are
not; accidents and other situations involving
loss or near-loss will be investigated and
properly documented as part of the effort to
manage risks.

° Risk retention — the management may
decide that the risk rating is low enough that
the risk is acceptable level and no action
is required and the risk will continue to be
monitored as part of the risk management
program to ensure the level of risk does not
increase to an unacceptable level.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

C. Risk Management (continued) C. RRERE(EZ)

@

Significant Risks and Control Measures

Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment.
Such significant risks of the Group together with their
respective risk levels and key control measures are
set out below:

Competition in China theatrical market:

There is intense competition in China theatrical
market due to continuous opening of movie theaters
in mainland China. No assurance that demand in the
film screening will increase in line with or outpace
the supply of new cinemas which can adversely
affect the Group’s cinema operation.

° Dedicate to provide a premium theatrical
entertainment service and environment for the
audiences by equipping the Group’s cinema
with the advanced visual and audio technology
to sustain its competitiveness;

° Improve marketing strategy and enhance
promotions and publicities in different social
media platforms from time to time in order to
attract more audiences;

° Provide different sources of on-line or off-line
ticketing services;

o Before commencement of a new site, market
analysis and projections are prepared by
Business Development Team and assessed by
Operation Team and the management; and

o Diversify geographically film exhibition
business in Hong Kong, Malaysia and Macau
markets.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

C. Risk Management (continued)

@

Significant Risks and Control Measures
(continued)

Competition in entertainment business:
Entertainment business is highly competitive, not
only in the film industry itself (between Chinese
and Western shooting films), but also subject to
availability and popularity of alternative form of
entertainment. There is no assurance to sustain
the Group’s competitiveness successfully in the
entertainment industry.

° Regularly review and adjust the business
strategic plans to cope with the competition in
the film industry;

° Diversify the Group’s entertainment business
and devote to expand cinema development
and operation business; and

o Take a prudent approach in the selection of
films and events to be invested.

Inherent risk on entertainment business:

Entertainment business including investment in
the film and TV industry and cinema operation
is inherently risky. There is no assurance of the
economic success of any motion picture or TV
programme since the revenues generated from
these businesses depend primarily on each film
or TV programme’s public acceptance and its
popularity, which cannot be predicted with certainty.

° Stay alert to the changes in market trend,
audience’s needs and preferences;

° Keep cautious in selection of stories and
scripts; and

° Co-produce, co-invest or co-partner with

business associates to diversify the risk.

D. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had a confirmation from
the management on the effectiveness of the Systems
of the Group. The Audit Committee and the Board
had reviewed the Systems and were not aware of any
significant issues that would have an adverse impact
on the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s

operational,

financial and compliance areas of the

Systems.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy and the Board shall review it on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness. The Company communicates with the
Shareholders mainly in the following ways: (i) the holding of
annual general meeting (“AGM”) and special general meetings,
if any, which may be convened for specific purposes which
provide opportunities for the Shareholders to communicate
directly to the Board; (ii) the publication of announcements,
annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as required
under the Listing Rules and press releases providing updated
information of the Group; (iii) the availability of latest information
of the Group on the Company’s website at https://www.
empculture.com; and (iv) investors/analysts briefings and/or
media conference (when necessary).

Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the Company’s
website to raise enquiries through our Investor Relations
Department whose contact details are available on the
Company’s website and the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” section of this annual report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
for substantial separate issues, including re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to the Shareholders for the
2018 AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business
days before the meeting and notices of all other general
meetings will be sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear business
days before the meetings.

The Chairperson of the 2018 AGM and the chairman/members
of the Board Committees and the external auditors were
available at the 2018 AGM to answer questions from the
Shareholders. With the assistance of the Company Secretary,
the Chairperson of the meetings had explained the procedures
for conducting a poll during the meetings.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company had adopted a written dividend policy setting
out the principles for the Board to determine appropriate
amount of dividend to be distributed. The Company intends to
provide Shareholders with regular interim and final dividends
(as the case may be) based on the earnings attribution to
its Shareholders after taking into consideration of the factors
stated in the policy, inter alia, (i) cash flow requirements for
business operations; (ii) cash available, financial liabilities and
capital commitment; (iii) market environment and challenges;
and (iv) future development and investment opportunities.
The declaration of dividends or recommendation on such
payment shall be subject to all applicable laws, rules and
regulations including but not limited to the Listing Rules, the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), the applicable laws of Bermuda and the memorandum
of association and Bye-laws of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG
Code:

Right to Convene/Call General Meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right to submit a
written requisition requiring a special general meeting (“SGM”)
to be called by the Board. The written requisition (i) must state
the object(s) of the meeting, and (ii) must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong for attention of the Company
Secretary, and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists. Such requisitions
will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar and upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in
order, the requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, the SGM will not be convened as requested.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM
for a day not more than two months after the date of deposit
of a proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them may convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said
date of deposit of the requisition. In addition, such meeting
convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Board.
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TEERRSE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of the registered Shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(“Requisitionist”), or not less than 100 of such registered
Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give to
the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition
signed by all the Requisitionists must be deposited at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong with
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in
case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less
than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that AGM is called for a date six weeks
or less after the copy has been deposited, such requisition
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed
to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available for viewing on the
Company’s website.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited. Other Shareholders’ enquiries
can be directed to the Investor Relations Department of the
Company whose contact details are shown on the “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” section of this Annual Report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in
constitutional documents during the Year.

the Company’s
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Corporate Governance Report
A MsAﬁd:

AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor
the independence of the auditors to ensure objectivity and
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members
of the Audit Committee were of the view that the Group’s
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited are independent.
During the Year, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has
rendered audit services and certain non-audit services to the
Group and the remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group
is set out as follows:

BBz BIERHE

ERZEBGRRERBER CEN RS RE
BREE BN UERESSEEMBEERE
ﬂﬁ#ZEH&&E&E ERLZBRZKE

RA - AEEZZBMBEFHEFMEEAAR
Qﬂ%%jki°%$$§'ﬁﬁgﬁﬁ$%
FIAERARERASEREHBZRELE T IE
BERRY  MASEHEN /BN TR2MEH
5T

Audit services E R

Non-audit services FEFBEZR

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4F

880



Independent Auditors’ Report
B A2 AR

B &R R G
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 60 to 167, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 30 June 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B2 AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

RAREEXER
BREXFASATREZXEHALE NEX
AEEHGAVBBRRTREENEER - $TTEA
EVEERAVBRREBETRELEENR
EREHEER MIASRUHFEREFER
BER-

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HRERER ROERNNEERRERSE

Fair value measurement of investments in film production

RESREZREZAABETE

Refer to notes 3(m), 4(c) and 27(a) to the consolidated financial statements

2GR BT B BREME3M) * 4(c) X27(a)

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had investments  Our

procedures in relation to the fair value

in film production with the carrying amount of  measurement included:

HK$164,969,000. AOIRARBEEFEZEZRERFBE:
720196 A30H - SEREXHEZRERE
157,%164,969,000‘}%750 . Evaluation of the independent valuer’s

The investments in film production mainly represent
investments in certain films that the Group is not
considered to be involved in the production process
or as the distributor.

EXRECRETFIEZRERN SEETHERDER o
{’E H%zid’ﬁ?%%éﬂ?ﬁzajﬁé%zhé °

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9: Financial Instruments,

the investments in film production were reclassified to
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as at

1 July 2018 and are subject to fair value measurement

at the end of each reporting period. The Group used e
discounted cash flows under income approach to
evaluate the fair values of the investments in film
production as at 1 July 2018 and 30 June 2019, and
recognised a gain on fair value of HK$4,682,000 in

the accumulated losses as at 1 July 2018 and a loss

of fair value of HK$7,982,000 during the year ended °
30 June 2019.

WERMB BB MELERNROR: [T AR - RNE
FEIEZRE 62018¢7H1E$%ﬁ“*é7%}
AABRRZEREE  WNSHEHRENT
e BEEEFERAK: /éiIETTﬁiEfﬁimg
B BE IR AN20185F7H1H 201956530
RfEME - WR2018F7TATHRN Rat B IEBER A
I %54,682, ooo,% T R R EL 220196 A30H IEF
ﬁE.:M&;uﬁTEESTE? 982,000/ 7T °

H

\ﬂ]\/\)DD
PmE S -
Wil md (N O T8 R SR

.
)

S I S ik

competence, capabilities, independence and
objectivity;
T?ﬁﬁiﬁ@ﬁﬂﬁ?f% CBUMERES

Assessing the methodology adopted by
the valuer and the appropriateness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
relevant industry;

$E¢J"“$mmﬁfﬁ T3 ) A B ET 4 1k (8 BT BT R A
Zﬁ/iﬁféfﬂﬁxuxz/a\%ﬁ'l‘i:

Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumption based on our knowledge of the
relevant industry; and
$E?F$THHHF‘%TT¥Z BHITERRZARE
IR HE B

Engaging an auditors’ expert to assist us to
assess the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology and the reasonableness of the
inputs, assumptions and estimations used by
the management.

BHEZH WZ%%B%E)JKTTMME{EH/%ZA
‘/@\gﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ)@ﬂf R& kfstz
(=) o

We found that the key assumptions were supported

by the available evidence.
These conclusions required the significant A{TRA BRBREOEMESEE S -

management’s judgement, with respect to the discount
rate and the underlying cash flows, particular future
revenue of the films.
hEERATEERMTRENEBRSRIELE XA
& t/\mﬂiXE&%H&ﬁn

Independent external valuation was obtained in order
to support the management’s estimates.

B EE I8  SN BB B DA X B R B 2 i BT o

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B A2 AR

Key audit matters
REREER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
AIZERNMNEERRERSE

Measurement of expected credit losses for trade receivables, other receivables and deposits

EZREUN HttBEUIARRE2RABFEEBRGE

Refer to notes 3(m), 4(a), 24 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements

2058 P REM E3(m) * 4(a) ~ 24525

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had trade receivables
of HK$4,761,000 and other receivables and deposits
with the carrying amounts of HK$1,952,000 and
HK$56,030,000 respectively. During the year ended
30 June 2019, the Group recognised an allowance
for expected credit losses for trade receivables of
HK$381,000.

2019F6A30H + EEEEAESEW 4,761,000
7B TT A K HoAth R UK K 3R & 2 BRTEIE 9 7l /81,952,000
78 7T 556,030,000/ 7T © REIE2019F6H30R IEFE
N BEXERBEIRKFBEREHNEEEERB
381,000/ 7T °

The balances of loss allowances for the trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits represent
the management’s best estimates at the end of the
reporting date of expected credit losses under HKFRS
9: Financial Instruments — Expected credit losses
model.

BN  HEW R R EEBEHRETERE
BERBEZEMGMELENZOR : [eMIT A — &
f@g%%Eﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁfﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁEﬂ%%%%ﬁﬁéi&%EIEHEEZ%&

The management assesses whether the credit risk of
trade receivables, other receivables and deposits have
increased significantly since their initial recognition,
and apply a three-stage impairment model to calculate
their expected credit losses.

ERENLEIRENR  HMERRARZRE ZEEM
REVIRERAREEABIE I WEA=BERHE
BAGEEEREEBE -

The measurement models of expected credit losses
involve significant management’s judgements and
assumptions, primarily including the following:
EHEERRBZAEEA S REXREEEHE MR
HOEFEREATEIE:

° Criteria for determining whether or not there was
a significant increase in credit risk, or a default
or impairment losses was incurred; and
ETEERBREESABBEMKESHIREL K
WIEEEZ G &

o Economic indicators for forward-looking
measurement, and the application of economic
scenarios and weighting.
EE%’I‘EL;?#%Z,@%?‘ﬁ%&%ﬁ%@ﬁ%%&ﬂﬂéz
EH -

Emperor Culture Group Limited

Our procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits included:
RIREEEHESRKRR  EERFR REE 2
WMEN G ZERREFBE:

° Discussing the Group’s procedures on credit
limits and credit periods given to customers with
the management;

HEREwm BEEERATFPRHEZEERSE
MEEHZRERF:

° Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile
of the trade receivables as at 30 June 2019 to
the underlying financial records and post year-
end settlements to bank receipts;

MR EN2019F6 A0R G KRNz &
SRR AZRRIEARFEBEZRITEP&
BFWE

° Evaluating the management’s impairment
assessment of trade receivables and other
receivables and deposits; and
AHEREEHESERWI  EMERRRIES
ZRER M R

° Assessing the appropriateness of the
methodology of allowance for expected
credit losses, examining the key data inputs
on a sample basis to assess their accuracy
and completeness, and challenging the
assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine
the expected credit losses.
AETEREEBERETECERNL MR
ERGEABE - AFMEERE R BT
THRARETEHPEEREZRR(BEE L
NATEEER) REE & -

We found that the management conclusion to be
consistent with the available informatiqn.
RIRR EREBEZHEWRECEMBEN - -

REXERRERRAF
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B2 AR S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon (“Other
Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Ht&EH
EFAHHMERAEARL - HAROER
ANERZEH  BTOERAGA B RE
RATH R RE0ERN (RIGER) -

AITHGEVBERRNBEALL T REHEME
£ RITIA S B E M E RHE R E A A

DK gk =
EG 4 af ©

RATHHGEAMBHRRNEEMS - XTZE
IRHEHEMEN  EPEREMENEALES
MBEBRRAARTERTBREFAAENIER
EERFREERN —RAUFEEEARHERR
dto WRBEARTETHIE  ATRAZRFH
MEMFEEAHERRL  MATERSE
AEE - ATTHUH T EEMNERARS °

EERFLEEENGEMBRE
AEEZEE

EFARARBEEEGMAERHZIER
MEREERNRBAERRAGI 2 KERER
HEEMAFZHEAVBRE  LHER/R
FEHREVHRROBE AT EARKEFXE
RMEYWERNERRAFAFTOABES &

= o°

ERBESAMBHREAE EFAAANE
BEEERELENE)  TREEFELE
BAONEREGER)  ARERFELLE /SR
A KRIEFEERS BSEEBBIEFL
g SR EEMERNERTER -

il

BE

£ AR
BB

EREEZHMBRER

o B
o N
horl
I
i3

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 i



Independent Auditors’ Report
B A2 AR

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B2 AR S

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Kwok Tsz Chun.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Tsz Chun
Practising Certificate Number: P06901

Hong Kong, 26 September 2019

Emperor Culture Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 F#

%%Eﬁﬁ%&.ﬁé‘ﬂﬁ%iﬁiz,%&

ATRBEEVZEGRE BMEAHRS
MHBRERBEZIFENRERZR NERE
ZER - BRIPERIAR I BT ARBKELL
F=RS(EBREENB/RAT)ANTR BB EL
FERAAEAHNIRERBBEIRA
BUFEEMNEEM TNEERSH TURE
BARTTEERBMREPHEASFTEIE -

HARNBY ZBMBENETHEES R

& o

BE R AEBAERAT
HE

BRER
HEEEZ /9 P06901

F# - 2019F9H26H

RENCEXEEERQF




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REREREMEZERER

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It F/E

Revenue A 7 145,753 91,202
Cost of sales FizR= N (FARE)) (42,972)
Gross profit EH 78,640 48,230
Other income and gains H AU A KU % 9 4,768 10,552
Selling and distribution expenses HEREZEITER (109,583) (75,959)
Administrative expenses TR X (54,867) (41,911)
Allowance for expected credit losses BRI R 2 TEH
for trade receivables EEEEEE 10 (381) -
Other operating expenses Hib gz 10 (31,383) (67,568)
Change in fair value of financial assets &2 A {BEFAEZE
at fair value through profit or loss LEMEEZ
NABEEEE (22,918) (31,691)
Loss from operations KEETE 2 BB 10 (135,724) (158,347)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBARZWZ
(B#8) 33 3,476 (8)
Finance cost BF 18 B AR 11 (2,037) -
Loss before taxation PR 75 A &S 18 (134,285) (158,355)
Taxation credit IR & 13 - 242
Loss for the year FEEE (134,285) (158,113)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income & H# 2 & (&
for the year B/),
Items that may be reclassified HEEAEG DIEZER
subsequently to profit or loss: = ZHEE -
Exchange differences arising on BMEFINERFRE
translation of foreign operations ErERERE (8,829) 3,216
Release of exchange reserve upon kRN NN
disposal of foreign subsidiaries r B R B R B 33 305 -
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FERBEEMEE
for the year, net of tax (B18) W= (8,524) 3,216
Total comprehensive loss for the year &€ 2 H & B &% (142,809) (154,897)
Loss for the year attributable to: EBLEEERHE:
Owners of the Company VNN DN (126,437) (153,797)
Non-controlling interests FEE AR M = (7,848) (4,316)
(134,285) (158,113)
Total comprehensive loss for the EtFEE2XEEE
year attributable to: BE:
Owners of the Company ZN/NSIE DN (133,870) (151,473)
Non-controlling interests FE 1 IR 2 (8,939) (3,424)
(142,809) (154,897)
Loss per share attributable to the EARER AR
owners of the Company: BREE:
Basic and diluted EARK#EE 14 HKS$(0.04)8 £ EGLEI(OKI NP

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these MIBEMMEBRESHRETBHRETATDE
consolidated financial statements. ZEm o

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR &R

At 30 June 2019 7220196 H30H

Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I F R 17 262,699 236,902
Goodwill mE 18 = 68,260
Intangible assets mEEE 19 = 27,661
Deposits paid BEff&® 25 56,002 -
318,701 332,823
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE \ 20 894
Film and TV programme rights EYNERMBERE 21 14,031
Film and TV programme production IWER 2B RER
in progress & 8 ] 22 150,797
Investments in film production REFRIEZIRE 23 = 35,302
Trade receivables B 5 & WK 24 4,761 12,227
Other receivables, deposits and HMh W - 2e Kk
prepayments AN 25 38,922 64,432
Contingent consideration receivable B AR E 26 - 7,210
Financial assets at fair value through AR BEAEZ
profit or loss ZERMEE 27 170,783 20,750
Cash and bank balances Be METHET 28 166,465 264,142
381,572 569,785
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E fth JE - 5k 29 40,776 101,045
Contract liabilities aHAaE 30 11,128 -
Amounts due to related companies NN R NGB 31 5,651 15,553
Amount due to non-controlling JE AT IE 12 IR 4 2 SR IR
interests 31 43,589 44,870
101,144 161,468
Net current assets RBEEFE 280,428 408,317
Net assets BEEFE 599,129 741,140
Capital and reserves attributable ERREEAEBERE
to the owners of the Company Ri#E
Share capital P A 32 32,133 32,133
Reserves ki 591,385 720,573
623,518 752,706
Non-controlling interests RS (24,389) (11,566)
Total equity AT 599,129 741,140

2019926 HAX & == it f K 0TI 35
THTNINEERKXRESE:

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 26 September 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa Mr. Wong Chi Fai

WHEZ EEEEAE
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITESE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREBHR

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It F/E

At 1 July 2017 R2017E7A1H 32,133 912,843 50 58,658 (2,138) (97,367) 904,179 (23,285) 880,894
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - (153,797)  (153,797) (4,316)  (158,113)
Other comprehensive FEHEM2ENRE

income for the year - - - - 2,324 - 2,324 892 3,216
Total comprehensive FE2ENE

income/(loss) (E1B) e

for the year - - - - 2,324 (153,797)  (151,473)  (3,.424) (154,897)
Elimination upon disposal i\ i & 2 ) 5 ¥

of subsidiaries 8 (W7 7£33(b))

(note 33(b)) - - - - - - - 15143 15,143
At 30 June 2018 7201846 430 H 912,843 (251,164) 752,706  (11,566) 741,140
Effect arising from MRERE B M B

initial application of HEERER

HKFRS 9 (note 2(b)) EEXvEE

(Bt #2(b)) = 4,682 4,682 - 4,682

At 1 July 2018 2018 7H18 32,133 912,843 58,658 (246,482) 757,388 (11,566) 745,822

Loss for the year FEBRE = = (126,437) (126,437) (7,848) (134,285)
Other comprehensive FEEMEZAEBR

loss for the year (7,433) = (7,433) (1,091) (8,524)

Total comprehensive loss ~ FE 2 H K 8458
for the year (7,433) (126,437) (133,870) (8,939) (142,809)

Elimination upon disposal & [ff B A &) 5 %
of subsidiaries 8 (H7i#33(a))
(note 33(a)) = = = = = (3,884) (3,884)

At 30 June 2019 H201956H308 912,843 58,658 (7,247) (372,919) 623,518 (24,389) 599,129

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these FMiIBERMERKEFHEEH BRI D EH
consolidated financial statements. =i 5 M
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERERBER

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

Notes:

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium
The application of share premium account is governed by Section
40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve arose on the cancellation of
repurchased shares and accordingly reduction of nominal value of
share capital of the Company.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the amount transferred from the
capital account due to the capital reduction and share premium
reduction as a result of the capital reorganisation of the Company
took effect on 8 May 2014.

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot make a distribution out of the contributed surplus
if: (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would
thereby be less than its liabilities.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations.

Wi at -

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁﬁﬁii

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It F/E

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before taxation:
Adjustments for:
Allowance for expected credit losses
for trade receivables
Amortisation of film and TV
programme rights
Amortisation of intangible assets
Change in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Cost of investments in film production
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of:
— goodwill
— investments in film production
— trade receivables
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

REKETBHZHERE
B 75 AT &S 1R -
HEIFA -
g5 RS
B
B L EARE B h e #iE

A TEHREEER

| B E
BEAREBEFABSZZ SR
BEZANBEEZD
REZREZZEKAK
Y MBEERREBZTE
RTINS HEERZ REEE:

_Fﬁéa

— REXEEZERE
— B ER

HEYE BERREZ

&5 18

Loss on fair value change in respect  JEWSKAREZ AREE
of contingent consideration 2EEE
receivable
Written off of film and TV programme & ez EF M EBHREA
production in progress 5
Interest expense FERX
Interest income FEW A
(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMEAR Z (W), HiE
Gain on derecognition of contingent BRI RERIARE 2 W
consideration receivable
Operating cash flows before RIATEEELEBHAZ
movement in working capital REFRERE
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERLD( i"jJIJ)
Increase in film and TV programme BER 2B REHRETE LM
production in progress
Increase in trade and other receivables, B Kk H @K 2 & &
deposits and prepayments TE A FE N
Decrease in contingent consideration & I sk 28 (X (B L

receivable
Decrease in financial assets at fair value

BAREBEFAEZZ

through profit or loss TRMEERD
Increase in trade and other payables B85 & H b &< F0 18 N
Increase in contract liabilities B BaELM
Cash used in operations REEEB RS
Income tax paid E BAER
Net cash used in operating activities AREE ETEH 2B L FHE
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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(134,285)

381

8,111
1,942

22,918

3,110
2,037

(2,710)
(3,476)

(654)

(44,834)
253

(5,608)

(28,347)
7,864
8,503

22,283
6,613

(33,273)

(33,273)

(158,355)

7,150
2,015

31,691
6,430

16,387
27,354
37,046

1,775

35

(28,961)
(763)

(40,094)

(7,297)

(53,593)

(53,593)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= s B
MEBEERER
For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It FE

Cash flows from investing REREZHZRERE

activities
Purchase of property, plant and BEWSE  HREREE

equipment (106,145) (132,159)
Additions of intangible assets ERVEENE (4,524) (4,187)
Interest received 24 F B 2,710 1,890
Net cash inflow/(outflow) on disposal HEWE AR ZR &N

of subsidiaries A CRR ) F88 33 47,871 (1,731)
Net cash used in investing ARREEHZ

activities e FE (60,088) (136,187)
Cash flows from financing REMEETEHZ

activities BEeERE
Advances from related companies BERA 2B 35 9,163 46,165
Advances from non-controlling JEE R R 2B

interests 35 672 -
Proceeds from other loan H B KR8 RIA 35 12,000 -
Repayments to related companies BEBERRNKIE 35 (18,563) (47,019)
Repayments to non-controlling BRI RS NIE

interests 35 (1,953) -
Interest paid BT B (2,037) -
Net cash used in financing ARMEEESZ

activities REFE (718) (854)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRESEEYRD

equivalents B (94,079) (190,634)
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXxEH o w8

changes (3,598) 2,160
Cash and cash equivalents FYzBRekREEFED

at the beginning of the year 264,142 452,616
Cash and cash equivalents atthe HTARZEERREE

end of the year, representing By HRER

cash and bank balances RITERF 166,465 264,142

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these FMIBERMEREKEFHEEHBHRET D EH
consolidated financial statements. LB o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 27 March
1992 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company’s
immediate substantial corporate shareholder is Emperor
Culture Group Holdings Limited (“Emperor Culture
Holdings”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”) with limited liability. The ultimate
holding company of Emperor Culture Holdings is Albert
Yeung Entertainment Holdings Limited, a limited liability
company incorporated in the BVI, which is held by Alto
Trust Limited as the trustee of Albert Yeung Entertainment
Discretionary Trust as set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing,
Albert. The address of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information and Key Dates” section of the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as
the functional currency of the Company and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except
otherwise indicated.

The Company acts as an investment holding company
and is also engaged in investment in securities. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
38.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H30H ItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first
time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HKFRS 2 Classification and
(Amendments) Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions
HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
(Amendments) Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts
HKAS 28 As part of the Annual
(Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle
HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment
(Amendments) Property

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It F/E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERFITIRKEBIEBHBER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG £ ER(EBHEHREER )
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Z)

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

Certain of the above new and amendments to HKFRSs
have been applied in accordance with the relevant
transition provisions in the respective standards and
amendments which results in change in accounting
policies, amount reported and/or disclosures as
described below.

(@) Impact on the consolidated financial statements

The following table shows the adjustments
recognised for each individual line item. Line items
that were not affected by the application of new and
amendments to HKFRSs have not been included. As
a result, the sub-totals and totals disclosed cannot
be recalculated from the numbers provided. The
adjustments are explained in more details by the
standards as stated below.

PO 5 5 16 AR B iz T AT R AR S
AEBUBBREENE)

biiETHATRKETEBY B MEE
A2 RIRF R RER] 2 HH B8 IR R X
EA  ERTXMASHRE 2WE
B/ RBEBELRES -

() HELHBBRZIPEY

TRET R ER R
B ARWAMITRGIETE B
B 75 4 25 S B B 4 9 08 B 3 1 0 45
TR e Eil BRE 2N R E
TR PR BT B i E
2% 58 g T3 2 0% 5 A AR
-

Current assets REBEE
Film and TV programme BERZEX

production in progress REREB 150,797
Investments in film REFREZ

production = 35,302
Financial assets at fair value % 2/t B {E &+

through profit or loss ABRzZ®
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables E5 &k EA

JE 15 3R 101,045
Contract liabilities BHEE =
Reserves f# &
Accumulated losses R EE (251,164)
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{LEXEEERALOTE

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4F

(141,605) 9,192

(35,302)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H30H ItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces
new requirements for 1) the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for
financial assets and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9,
i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have not
been derecognised as at 1 July 2018 (date of initial
application) and has not applied the requirements
to instruments that have already been derecognised
as at 1 July 2018. The difference between carrying
amounts as at 30 June 2018 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 July 2018 are recognised in the
opening accumulated losses and other components
of equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from the application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 3.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into three
principal classification categories: measured
at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL’). These
supersede HKAS 39’s categories of held-to-
maturity investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets measured at FVTPL. The classification
of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on
the business model under which the financial
assets is managed and its contractual cash
flow characteristics.

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

o Amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Interest income
from the investment is calculated using
the effective interest method.

o FVTOCI - recycling, if the contractual
cash flows of the investment comprise
solely payments of principal and interest
and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”), except
for the recognition in profit or loss of ECL.
When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in OCI is
recycled from equity to profit or loss; or

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H30H ItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAFIIRZETERMBEIR
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG SEA(ERMHREEDD

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (4&)
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

RAFERGIERZFTREE
AEBUBBREERE)

(continued)
(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) (b) BRUKEREEANFEIFRIERMITA]
(&)
Summary of effects arising from initial LG FE & BB % 3 & ERI 9%
application of HKFRS 9 (continued) EXCHEHMEE)

(i)  Classification and measurement (continued) (i) DHBERFE(E)

o FVTPL, if the investment does not
meet the criteria for being measured
at amortise cost or FVTOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVTPL unless the equity investment is
not held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group makes
an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised in OCI.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in
OCI remains in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to accumulated
losses. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified
as at FVTPL or FVTOCI (non-recycling), are
recognised in profit or loss as other income.

o BARBEAEZRUN
BRETTRZHAHEKA
A REBETAEAM
2EKEAERE
MIEE) - WERREE
EE(EEMNB)NER
e e

BAEZFKEDBREAR
BEFARD  RIERAKE
VIAEERBOMETE B
REHERRER - AEEE
BEERE/RASEBETA
Hitt 2w e (MR ER) @ (£
AABENREZEHNEME
EW R - AREEZE
BITEMEL - HEESEHETA
RREBEETARANTE R
BT HEfEdl - (FLEH
EER REMEEREARR
AN BEREBEANEBERKB
(THER) BEERELER
1o RHEER - RAREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It F/E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continueq)

Summary of effects arising from initial

application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i) Classification and measurement (continued)
The table below illustrates the classification
and measurement of financial assets and other
items subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and
HKAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1
July 2018.

R KRBT ERY B R
ﬁfﬁﬂ@%%ﬁ?ﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁuj)

REFEBRGIERZFTREE
AEBUMBBREENE)

(b)

Eﬁ@fﬁﬁﬁ%zﬁﬁmgaﬁrﬁﬁuﬂj

Vo=l

B EFE BB IREEREIN

EXCEHEHEE)

(i) DBERFE(E)
TRHAEARBEE LU REE
B RE B S ERF39
SRR YA FE P B 1 (201847 A
1R)ATE I IRFEHAE BB
CREEREMBBEREZOER

e -

Closing balance at R2018F6A30H 2
30 June 2018 R
- HKAS 39 - BB LR
#3957

Effects arising from initial #KERE B Y
application of HKFRS 9: BEEAEIRZ

B/ %5 -
2 -

Reclassifications EFAE
— From film and TV -RE®ERZ
programme production BEX
in progress ERN S
- From investments - REREF
in film production BEZIRE
Remeasurement from BEHERAZEAAE
amortised cost model BEEXZEHTE
to fair value model
Opening balance at R2018F7A1EZ
1 July 2018 i) 4 4
- HKFRS 9 - BANB®RE

AR F 95
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H30H ItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. EAHIIREZEITERBIBEIR
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HFEA (BB KERESED ]
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (/,/\)

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are RAEE R E W2 Fa] R EHE
mandatorily effective for the current year AIERBMBEREERZ)
(continued)
(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) (b) BEMBHREEFEIRIEHMIA]
(&)
Summary of effects arising from initial 6 FEFH & B R 7 1 & BRI FE 93
application of HKFRS 9 (continued) EE Z TEEE)
(i) Classification and measurement (continued) () DR EE)
From film and TV programme production in BREF s BEZRERME K
progress and investments in film production to %%%M’EZ&é%ﬁﬁﬂj
financial assets at FVTPL BESAERCLBAE
The Group has certain investments in film AEERBETREZRIELZ
production which entitle the Group to receive BE  FAEEAERREARSE
a fixed and/or variable income based on the NRESEREETZRE
Group’s investment amount and expected 5 M TE I R E S E
rate of return as specified in respective E R A BN o R A fE
film investment agreements. At the date of AEAMBRELENFSRE
initial application of HKFRS 9, the Group’s A AEERZEEXRIFZ
investments in these film production did not BEWNN S EF BB REE
meet the HKFRS 9 criteria for classification Al BONR AR 2 - 47 55 X K K%
at amortised cost and financial assets at o BEFARMEEK S
FVTOCI, as their cash flow did not represent MEMEEDLE  JTHNER
solely payments of principal and interest. EnETNMEREAE RFE
As a result, the carrying amounts of film BSSK At - BHER 2 BE
and TV programme production in progress NEH ﬁﬁEMLGQS,OOO}%E&
of HK$141,605,000 and investments in film ME R B1E 2% & 35,302,000
production of HK$35,302,000 were reclassified BIIHEABEERTSBEEER
to financial assets at FVTPL. Related fair value RBEFABG ZEREE
gain of HK$4,682,000 was recognised in the 16~ 7o & 1B # 254,682,000
accumulated losses as at 1 July 2018. ;ET_EEE$2018¢7H1EI EN
BEPER -
The remaining balance of HK$9,192,000 was BRI 45 #£9,192,00078 TT B AN 5
the films and television drama series under = P & $E’&?‘-€7ﬂ5§,%’
the Group’s production. Hence, it remained Bl o & It - ®2018F7H1H
to be classified as film and TV programme HNoBREERIEER
production in progress as at 1 July 2018. RENE °
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEAANBGZZEZRE
=
The Group has reassessed its investments REBEESHMAHERERS
in equity securities classified as held for S ERFEIR OB RFFEE
trading under HKAS 39 as if the Group had BERBRAGE 7 2 A - BIAR
purchased these investments at the date of SENBERBHDEAX
initial application. Based on the facts and LB - BREBERVIRERBE
circumstances at the date of initial application, MERBL  AEEOBRAE
the Group’s investments in equity securities 77 $% & 20,750,000/% 7T /& #5 {F
of HK$20,750,000 were held for trading and BE VHEZAREBEA
continued to be measured at FVTPL. BaETE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. EAHIIREZEITERBIBER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HFEA (BB EREED ]
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (4&

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are REEEBRBERZFTRLHE
mandatorily effective for the current year AIEBMBEREERNZ)
(continued)
(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) by EEMBEHREEAFESRIeRmIA]
(&)
Summary of effects arising from initial LG FE & BB % 3 & E R 9%
application of HKFRS 9 (continued) EXCHEHMEE)
(i)  Classification and measurement (continued) () DHBERFE(E)
Financial assets at FVTPL (continued) BEAnRBAEFABGZEHE
E(E)
There was no impact on the amounts EREBEBMBEHREERNFIR
recognised in relation to these assets from the HZEEERANSRI B
application of HKFRS 9. 2o
Except as above described, there is no BR E SRt E SN - I BB A AR
reclassification or remeasurement of the &8 B 1% R S 22 R B 95 i &
financial assets, including cash and cash EREEHETEMNEFHEX
equivalent, trade receivables, deposits and B¥stE RERELRESE
other receivables for the adoption of HKFRS BY  BIRKFK a2 kH
9. b & UK o
The measurement categories for all financial FrEemEE T 2R %
liabilities remain the same. The carrying BIE - FiEemAER2018
amounts for all financial liabilities as at 1 July F7TAIBZREEHRZS
2018 have not been impacted by the initial EREBEBMBEHREERNFIR
application of HKFRS 9. T o
(i) Impairment under ECL model (i) TEAlEEEEBEN T RE
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified REBEERERBN G wELEL
approach to measure ECL which uses a FOR 2B R AT EEHE
lifetime ECL for all trade receivables from EEE BABEREEFPEX
contracts with customers. Except for those ZEBHRWRMEERZETE
which had been determined as credit impaired HEEEIE - BREEBEE B
under HKAS 39, trade receivables from HEB|EIE T AEZEERES
contracts with customers have been assessed SN REBEPEHZESER
individually with outstanding significant REBBNE WHEFPAE
balances with customers, the remaining AREERTE  BRTIHERIKL
balances are grouped based on internal credit NEME BT AR KBRS ITET
rating and past due analysis. The Group has S Bt - AREREBER
therefore estimated the expected loss rates BHTHEARETPEHZ
for the trade receivables from contracts with EIRWFNTBEEBLRE o
customers based on the assessment by the
management.

Emperor Culture Group Limited #E2X{tEEEEER LD 7 I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H30H ItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

FERFE KRBT ERY B R
ﬁfﬁ!ﬂ@éiﬁ,ﬂzi&?ﬁ%ﬁﬁw

RAFERGIERZFTREE
AEBUBBREERE)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) (b) BEMBHREEAFEIRIEHMIA]
(&)
Summary of effects arising from initial LG FE & BB % 3 & ERI 9%
application of HKFRS 9 (continued) EXCHEHMEE)
(i) Impairment under ECL model (continued) (i) FERIIEEEBERNN T RE
(&)
ECL for other financial assets at amortised HtmmEHENAZEMEE
cost, including deposits and other receivables (BiERe & H MK RN K&
and cash and bank balances are assessed on RekRTEF2BAREER
12 months expected credit loss (“12m ECL)) BB Z12E AEHEEEIE
basis as there had been no significant increase (M2EREHEERERE ) H%E
in credit risk since initial recognition. S THERAEEERBE
IR TR AR I REEIG N -
As at 1 July 2018, allowance for expected R2018E7AIE » EHIZEEH
credit losses was insignificant and thus was BREEILTIEXR - BERETA
not provided against the accumulated losses. ZEHEE o E— S EEH N
Further assessment is set out in note 5(b). iE5(b) °
(¢) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with ) BERMBEBMEEANEGHKIZEFE
Customers and the related Amendments KA RAEEERT]

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following

major sources:

o Cinema operation
° Investment in films and cultural events

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 July 2018. Any difference at the date
of initial application is recognised in the opening
accumulated losses (or other components of equity,
as appropriate) and comparative information has not
been restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the

AEBERAFEEREBELEYH
HEEDESH - BEUHREE
A F155 MR F 8 g 5t R 185k
WAL BHBETERBEIRIEE
BRIRMEHERE -

AEERATERHRERUA

. BEEE
« BERXLEBRA

AEECEPEREEMBREE
A SE155% - I A% ¥ 45 /& A &% £ A /Y
R FERNEEM B B (201847
A1B)HER - RYBERBM ZE
MERENFNRFEE(EEEN
Halon (M) R BXES
SILL B EHL o WO RIBEF B
¥E R FA165E 2 IR R 3 N

transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has E % 1212 3t 2018 F7A1H M A 7=
elected to apply the standard retrospectively only to KZa®BPEBAZER - AR

contracts that are not completed as at 1 July 2018.
Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 and the
related interpretations.

RERDREE B LR F185
REZEGFERER LERRE
e At ETHEREMAREE
ERELL® -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It F/E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)

(c) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers and the related Amendments
(continued)
Information about the Group’'s performance
obligations and the accounting policies resulting
from the application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in
note 3.

Except the reclassification, as the table shown
below, of receipts in advance under trade and other
payables to contract liabilities and further disclosure
set out in the relevant note to the consolidated
financial statements, the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) believe that the application of
HKFRS 15 has no impact on the amounts reported
set out in the consolidated financial statements.

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15

The following adjustments were made to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 1 July 2018. Line items
that were not affected by the changes have not been
included.

R KRBT ERY B R
ifﬁﬂ(rﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁuj)

REFEBRGIERZFTREE
AEBUMBBREENE)

() BERUBHRESEASISHRIZFE
W AREBERTI(E)

BRASBRETEEINREREEY
BmEEYBIRELNGTHR
MER BRI ES -

BRESREMENRAZBRRE
HMOBEANBEMTRAR) A
RE NG B 7R R e HE R &E
ME—-FRBEIN ARFAESR(E
ENRRERBEBMBRELLS
SRHE RSB RRAANZRE
BILEZE -

HNIBEFRE B BEREERFS
BELZHEHME
MR2018F7A1R ¥ 4r & A AR A &
BRNSHEEHATHAE - k&
FEMNBEEYEBEER -

Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables  E 5N H M ERM K 101,045 (10,934) 90,111
Contract liabilities EHEE - 10,934 10,934

As at 1 July 2018, receipts in advance from
customers of HK$10,934,000 in relation to cinema
and film and TV programme production businesses
previously included in trade and other payables
were reclassified to contract liabilities.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

FERFE KRBT ERY B R
EEAA(TEREMBHREED D)

(%

REFERBERZHITRES
AEBUBBREERE)

(continued)

(¢) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with () BEEBMBHREERFGREIZFE
Customers and the related Amendments HWARBEMERTIE)
(continued)

Disclosure of the estimated impact on the 2018 F7H 10 RME BRI B &

amounts reported in respect of the year ended
30 June 2019 as a result on the adoption of
HKFRS 15 on 1 July 2018

The following tables summarise the estimated
impact of adoption of HKFRS 15 on the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as at
30 June 2019 and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the current year for each of the line items
affected. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

Line items in consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2019 impacted by the
adoption of HKFRS 15:

ERIFE15% ¢ B F2019F6 530H
UEEFEHRCEN LT HES
#E

TRBMRATBYHRELER S
1558 ¥ 7% & B 720196 4308 &Y
BATBERRERAFERAE S
MERSITEBEZHTFE -
AR ENBEEYERER
W °

20196 A30H 2 &2 & B 5 Ak
RPZHENE BT REERFE15
SRR EMIER:

Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables &5 & H fth fE {5 3¢ 11,128
Contract liabilities aHaE (11,128)

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEZEBEERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It F/E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)

(c) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related Amendments
(continued)

Disclosure of the estimated impact on the
amounts reported in respect of the year ended
30 June 2019 as a result on the adoption of
HKFRS 15 on 1 July 2018 (continued)

Line items in the reconciliation of loss before
taxation to cash used in operations for the year
ended 30 June 2019 impacted by the adoption of
HKFRS 15:

R KRBT ERY B R
iﬁﬁﬂ(rﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁuj)

REFEBRGIERZFTREE
AEBUMBBREENE)

©

ERMBH/EEUBIRIEFE
W AREBERTI(E)

R2018F7F1HFNE B BEHKE
ERIFE 155 ¢ H F201966530H
UEEFEHREEN G EHES
#wE(E)

B ZE 20196 A308 I EEBR T AE
BHLEEBMARS ZHEFPT
RWE BT EREENFI5HTE
FIEH

Cash flows from operating REKEEEH 2

activities BERE
Decrease in trade and B REM MR
other payables e

Increase in contract liabilities & 49 & & & 1N

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue

but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

2.

not yet effective:
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
HKFRS 3
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9
(Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS

28 (Amendments)

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

(Amendments)

HKAS 19
(Amendments)

HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

Leases'
Insurance Contracts?®

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation'
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Definition of Material?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement!

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined.

Except for application of HKFRS 16 mentioned below,
the Directors anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

FERFE KRBT ERY B R
HEA(EEMBREER]D
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A BB RS ER
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#E QI 1655k
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R FATHR
&5 (BRTH%
BEREBEZES)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases
by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of
low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of
lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presented upfront
prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in relation
leasehold lands for own use while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
the application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flows by the Group, while upfront prepaid lease payments
will continue to be presented as investing or operating
cash flows in accordance with the nature, as appropriate.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
HKFRS 16.

required by

As at 30 June 2019, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$1,876,307,000 as
disclosed in note 34(a). An assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease
under HKFRS 16. Upon the application of HKFRS 16,
the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AT REE BT BR
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HFEA (BB KERESED ]
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (&
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue 2 MM R E R Z R R &S
but not yet effective (continued) AIERBMBEREERZ)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued) ERMKREEAF6RIBEEIE)
In addition, the Group currently considers refundable o AEBE B KENAIREEE R
rental deposits paid of HK$56,002,000 as rights under $56,002,0008 TR BB B FEHERE
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition 17RERMNEETHRERN - BEBEF BN
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are BREEBFEIHREERENTE B
not payments relating to the right to use the underlying BizeWIRBBEEFTRAEBEBOR
assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such H Al ZEZReNEEETKEEH
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and such BREHHENKABEEBARW R AEING
adjustments are considered as additional lease payments. ERE - BENUROEEZRSNARES
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be WHRABEIINHERBELATAFTREEE
considered as additional lease payments and included in ZHEREEA -
the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.
The application of new requirements may result changes JERFBMEARSI M EXRZFE -
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated 2NNEBBEEMESY AEEDLEAR
above. The Group has elected the practical expedient ERRELCZBESE  UNEARBTEH
to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously BwmEEAE16H NN HARN AHEEN
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)- JERE B ERFE17H AE S (BB
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a BWMEREBLZES) - REBEZ4NET—
Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that were BHLZHEREBEEHEZEHN  UERTER
not previously identified as containing a lease applying EART ERERIEZANAEEHEN
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group has FERE B ERFE17H AE S (BHBR
not reassessed whether the contracts are, or contain a BHREREZEY) -RERIR2EH -
lease which already existed prior to the date of initial Bt "EELEERTHEEHONREAR
application. Furthermore, the Group has elected the FBEE—ERVGBERBHAIEFELZ
modified retrospective approach for the application of HE - AEBERERESYH
HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative HwEER B (TERAM A)EBLE
effect of initial application to opening accumulated losses RIZBME  WKERVIRER 51
without restating comparative information. FEZFYRER MILEEI LR

B R} o
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT FESHHREHUE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

BUEZEGAVBRRKEAZEES
ABERHENR T RRBEREPAI  %F
BMRECRMAEZIZFERNERER -

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEXtEZXEBEERALT
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 %k




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
which collective term includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, HKASs and Interpretations
issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost convention except
for certain financial assets which are carried at fair
values. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services. The preparation of the
consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. A fair value measurement of
a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefit by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.

3. FEEFHRMEE)

(o)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation (continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair

3. FEEHRMEE)

(b) MREEE)
beoh - BB REM S - DA EE
FEREARGBEGEZBARE

(c)

value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can assess at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved where the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of subsidiaries begins when the

AERREE M ABBEHAAEE
AEVEREEMSBARFEIR B
2B - BT

s FIRBABBREBLERS

BEIR AR MG A ARG Z
HEEEXBBRECKEA
B’

)

s F2RBMARBREENRE
HESEEABE 28 ABUR
(FIRABREZRERIN - K

s FIPBABER/EEXRE
ZTABRGEARE -

mERAEE
BABBRERBEARAURALD
AREMBATILH 2 BB MG
BE - ARREHAUTHERER
18 12l -

e BEEHIREHR:

s RH2HERKREUREBMAREY
BEHFABRKFEER

(©)

s HITEENIFEAREHRZ
@ & -

fi /A % B s 15 0 BUR Bt = TRl
BAERFE—HA A LHRES
AEBEEHFHEREEFKRE
HR e

AEBERESMHERRZEG #R

T

Group obtains control over the subsidiaries and BEEAEAR  WRKEHB AR
ceases when the Group loses control of the IR IEAR c AE2mE - R
subsidiaries. Specially, income and expenses of FEAKBIEEZHB AR 2K

subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Basis of consolidation (continued) (c) RERBE(E(E)

3. FEEFHRMEE)

Profit or loss and each component of OCI are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent ownership interests entitling
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in OCI in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred directly to accumulated losses as
specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FEEFHERBMEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Goodwill d BE
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business WHE—IBXEES 2B RN
is carried at cost as established at the date of BEBAHMEET 2K AR Lt
acquisition of the business (see the accounting EBOR) B AFREEE(1WE)5
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, Bk o
if any.
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is HBEARAMNE BHEGEIEE
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating FEHREH I HRARERZE 2
units (“CGU(s)”) (or groups of CGUs) that is rEEEEHRReELEM(RE
expected to benefit from the synergies of the BB (KReELESEMAR])
combination. B oo
A CGU (or groups of CGUs) to which goodwill has EERENEBCREEEEM(H—
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or ARESELEBEMBEFHE RN
more frequently when there is indication that the unit ENRBETREBEMAIELERE)
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on acquisition ETRENH R EEREME
in a reporting period, the CGUs (or groups of CGUSs) BBES2EENS  BEEOE
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for ZEHEZReELEEN(GREE
impairment before the end of that reporting period. ABENARNBERZRERRA#E
If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than TRENR - MEBESEEELZA
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated WReEINZEMZEREE &
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill BEEBEELIRIVEIEEZENZ
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of FREEZEEE REBNUZE
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying NEEEZEREBEAEERLAS
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment LR ZEMNcHEMEE - BB ZF
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or MREBETEERERZRNER -
loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is ERREE BEEEBNEZ
not reversed in subsequent periods. AT HEE -
On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable MEEEHRSELEN REXE
amount of goodwill is included in the determination HEBEReERNEHARGEE R
of the profit or loss on disposal. B o

(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) W% WERRKE
Property, plant and equipment held for use in RERARNEERHEE R RBEK
the production or supply of goods or services, THRAZZ2ME  HERFZHEREE
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the G AR R AR K AR E 18 RET
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, HERERZGFREBE(WAE)T
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and fk o

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for AREE HEIITHEREZER
production, supply or administrative purposes Y1) 3 DA AR (E A B 1 SRR B B 1B
are carried out at cost, less any recognised R - ZEWMERTIWEEZRTE
impairment loss. Such properties are classified to REzAFERMREESEEGEDN
the appropriate categories of property, plant and Y BERZEER - ERFE
equipment when completed and ready for intended EEEBRTReCATRAMRER 1%
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same HEMYEEE 2EREEFEN
basis as other property assets, commences when E-

the assets are ready for intended use.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEXtEZXEBEERALT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

3. FTESHHERMEE)
(e) Mk  HBERRE(E)

(continued)

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price,
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its present working condition and location for its
intended use and the initial estimate of the costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which is located. Expenditure incurred
after the asset has been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure
has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the
asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional
cost of the asset.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets (other than construction in progress)
less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following
annual rates:

Leasehold . Over the lease terms or
improvement 10%, whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures and : 20-33 '/,%
equipment
Plant and machinery 10-20%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost). Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in the business combination are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis
as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Categories of the intangible assets of the Group are
summarised as follows:

(i) Trademarks
Trademarks are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of trademarks over their
estimated useful lives of 5 years.
(ii) Production rights
Production rights acquired in business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost) and subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income over the contract
terms.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, and are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9) Film and TV programme rights

(h)

M

88

Film and TV programme rights represent films and
television drama series produced or acquired by
the Group for reproduction, distribution and sub-
licensing and are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any identified impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. In the case where
there is any impairment in value, the unamortised
balance is written down to its estimated recoverable
amount.

Filmm and TV programme production in
progress

Film and TV programme production in progress
represents films and televisions drama series under
production and are stated at cost incurred to date,
less any identified impairment losses. Cost is
transferred to either film and TV programme rights
or investments in film production upon completion.

An impairment loss is made if there has been
a change in the estimate used to determine the
recoverable amount and the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

3. FEEFHRMEE)

(0) EXREREE E

BEYLEGHAMRBEASERE
FBAZEZRBREBBAERE
2BOMBREFAZ  BYRK
AR 2 T 3E R A ] 2 3Bl 2 OB
BEEETI - BHREGAER
FHAEBGRELERER - MBREM
BAE - BRSSO E H b

AR E & AR e

(h) RIEEPZEZLRERTE

SUER 2 EXMNERBHAERE N
EREBR2EZNEREEE - XA

(EEHEEL ZRARIAEE
B 2 BB B 1R I B o A 52 X B
BERZEZLERHERBEINE

FEEZRE -

fief PR VE 8 € MJ MR Bl & BB 2 il 5T 3R
2 HREEBBAIWESE

AELRERE B -

i &8

FERKA B BN FEZBIEE
5Bk o 17 & AR I AE SR A
BB FERRFRAENEE
B P 7 i 5T 52 AR AR B HE AT 35 & P
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHHEBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Revenue and other income G) WA R H b Uk 55 R 52
recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon REEFEHAZRARBHE22
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with BEFRXERAEEBYBRELEDSE
transition in note 2) 1555 &)
Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue BIER BT BRELERFI55 - &
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, AEETKENEEREIEE R
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services SIRBEFRECROHEFER TR
underlying the particular performance obligation is P2 T2 ) | B ) B SR LA ©
transferred to the customer.
A performance obligation represents a good or BAETIEBENERIRE (k—
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is M E MR 35— R 5| K BRE A
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that BRI E MRS o I HI N — R
are substantially the same. Control is transferred MAEYR  MAFEATER—IBEK
over time and revenue is recognised over time " WARIZREXNEEBNET
by reference to the progress towards complete HERBAN —BRRFEER:

satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if
one of the following criteria is met:

e The customer simultaneously receives and e RAKEREBHNR BFRFFR
consumes the benefits provided by the S REAAEBEEAOMEHD
Group’s performance as the Group performs; Al

e The Group’s performance creates and e AEENEBAEALIEA—IE
enhances an asset that the customer controls BE MzEEERISERE
as the Group performs; or ARBEPIES %

e The Group’s performance does not create an o AEEMBHNVRELEHASE
asset with an alternative use to the Group and EEERAEMEE  BA&%
the Group has an enforceable right to payment = & o bl Eh 1T R UCER B AT A& L
for performance complete to date. 258K B A B RKIB o

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time BRI - WAREFPESBPEE MK

when the customer obtains control of the distinct AR 755 B ¥ ] 8 B FERR o

good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation AEHBEEEAEBRRNEFEYEM
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which SRBZET MAKEFLE M
the Group has received consideration (or an amount B YEAE (32 B EA AT B (B
of consideration is due) from the customer. TEE) °

For contracts that contain more than one HRES—KUEZBEHNEED
performance obligation, the Group allocates the B AEEERREHBEINEE
transaction price to each performance obligation on EE BRHGERIBESEHNE
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. T -

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEXtEZXEBEERALT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j)) Revenue and other income

recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transition in note 2) (continued)

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good
or service underlying each performance obligation
is determined at contract inception. It represents
the price at which the Group would sell a promised
good or service separately to a customer. If a stand-
alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques
such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods or services to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on
output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value of the
services transferred to the customer to date relative
to the remaining services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of services.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

()  Income from box-office takings for film
exhibition is recognised when the services
have been rendered to the buyers;

(i) Income from screen advertising is recognised
at the time when the services are provided;

(i) Income from sales of goods is recognised at
the point of sales when the goods are given
to customers;

(iv) Income from gift voucher purchases is
recognised when customers exchange the
vouchers for goods/services or upon expiry;

3. FTESHHERMEE)
() MAREMEmRA(E)

REEFEFEHZBARBHE22
BEAFNEATEYBRELEASE
1555 %) (&)
HEELHETHENPREE DR
BEBEENANI L ZHET -
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B
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BlENER -
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HRB TEREHER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j)) Revenue and other income
recognition (continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation (continued)

Output method (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Income from ticket booking service s
recognised upon provision of the services;

Income from licensing of the distribution
rights over films and television programmes is
recognised when the master materials of films
are delivered to customers and the amount can
be measured reliably;

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset;

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attached to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group
for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()]

Revenue and other income
recognition (continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 July 2018)

Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts received for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

Revenue from licensing of the distribution rights
over films and television programmes is recognised
when the master materials of films are delivered
to customers and the amount can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from investments in film production is
recognised when the Group’s entitlement to such
payments has been established, subject to the terms
of the relevant agreements.

Revenue from box-office takings for film exhibition
is recognised when the tickets are sold to the
customers and the film is released.

Revenue from the screen advertising is recognised
when the relevant advertisements and programmes
are exhibited in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements.

Sales of goods are recognised when the goods are
delivered and the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods has passed to the buyer.

Revenue from event investment is recognised when
the events are completed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to the
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Compensation income is recognised when the
Group’s entitlement to receive such payment has
been established, subject to the terms of the
relevant agreement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHHEBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Foreign currencies (k) S
In preparing the financial statements of each REREZENERELR 2 M BRE
individual group entity, transactions in currencies B UZERBNEEE AN EE
other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign (INE)ETTZ RGHERS5BH 2
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange BITEXER REREFHR N
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At INEFE2EKIBRRER ZETT
the end of each reporting period, monetary items EXREHRE - R AAEBEIEL
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated NINEEBEZIEEEERERRAR
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary BEETERZRITEXRENHRE -
items carried at fair value that are denominated RINERLKATFECIHFEKIEE
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates BRAENME -

prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of ERBEEAEREBEENETR
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary BRESXZIERZ/MNHEE 4 BIE
items are recognised in profit or loss in the period RIBEAER

in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated MEINGAUBREME A5 E
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of BINEBLEERBENERER
the Group's foreign operations are translated into FHRZBITEXBRERAEEZ
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) 25 EEENVET)  MBRARRBX
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each BEDREZFE 2 FIEREITHR
reporting period. Income and expense items are B BRIEEZINZEEALIR KB
translated at the average exchange rates for the RE - RILERAT AIERBRRXS
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly EHZER - FRELZERZ5 (10
during that period, in which case the exchange rates B)REMEZEKSBRRNE
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange =AZEHRBER TR (WER -
differences arising, if any, are recognised in OCI Al BN IEERER) -

and accumulated in equity under the heading of
the exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (ie. a REEBINER (ANEEAEERZ
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign BINE 2 2 H R HHEFR
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control KEBEBINEBIBERR ZEH
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, -HESRKEBESBINEBZ
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a SEDEZHRESE SHED
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a REAXEHBDEBIINEBR 2B ERT
disposal involving loss of significant influence over ZERNTE)R  REARTHEAARE
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of M EBRERRFTCMBERZE
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in HEMH BEEEE -

respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE
For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It F/E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

M

Leasing
All leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

(m) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation and convention in market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15 since 1 July 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H30H ItFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)
Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling;
and

the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at FVTPL:

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost and
debt instruments/receivables subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. For financial instruments
other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOC/

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts
for debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI
as a result of interest income calculated using
the effective interest method are recognised
in profit or loss. All other changes in the
carrying amount of these debt instruments
are recognised in OCl and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation
reserve. Allowances for expected credit
losses are recognised in profit or loss with
corresponding adjustment to OCI without
reducing the carrying amounts of these debt
instruments. The amounts that are recognised
in profit or loss are the same as the amounts
that would have been recognised in profit
or loss if these debt instruments had been
measured at amortised cost. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in OCI
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHHEBEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Financial instruments (continued) (m) €@ TH(E)
Financial assets (continued) CRMEEE)
Classification and subsequent measurement THEEC T ERAEZE (ZE
of financial assets (upon application of B2z BB X EFEBHBER
HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in BRI EIH#)(E)
note 2) (continued)
(iii) ~ Financial assets at FVTPL (i) BAALEEAAER D Z ZH
BE
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured BEAnRBEFABRZEME
at fair value at the end of each reporting ERESMERRIZRAAEBER
period, with any fair value gains or losses E-HAEMAABEKZIE
recognised in profit or loss. The net gains or BERE=ER RNERERZ
losses recognised in profit or loss exclude any W ERFEIEER SR
dividend or interest earned on the financial & BE WA 2 AR B 3 R B
asset and are included in the “Other income FEATE A Y A Rk & | & [ 1%
and gains” and “Change in fair value of NABEFAEZZEREE
financial assets at FVTPL’ line items. Fair value ZANBEEZEIEEAN - Q
is determined in the manner described in note S BE LK sE5(c) Pt ;5 = &
5(c). JE °
Impairment of financial assets (upon 2R EERE (KRB T228E
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with T EHE B EREERFEIR
transitions in note 2) #)
The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL AEBERBEEEVHBREERFE9
on financial assets which are subject to impairment FHAEREBECEREE(BEAR
under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables from PeatizBo RN e kAEM
contracts with customers, deposits and other UMK ARIRITHEF) 2 TBHEE
receivables and bank balances). The amount of ECL EEEREEEE BHEEEIE
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes JEBEREREAEEN  ARBE
in credit risk since initial recognition. EERBBVIIAERARZE L -
Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result THEHEEBEEREBEIA
from all possible default events over the expected ZTEHAE RN A RIS A 28
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month NEHMEEBEEEEBE - |
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that R 128 AEBE B BB EEBER
is expected to result from default events that wEABRBI2EARNAEEA 2B
are possible within 12 months after the reporting HNEHMEA 2T 2 BHEHREE
date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s BB BN ORBREBEAEE 2B
historical credit loss experience adjusted for factors FEEEBLERET  WRKER
that are specific to the debtors general economic AFBZEER BELEMRTUR
conditions and an assessment of both the current RS B HRR 2 & AR R ATl ROR
conditions at the reporting date as well as the P AR S T8 R T AE R R o
forecast of future conditions.
The Group measures the loss allowance equal AEBEZER12EABEHEEEE
to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been MEBTEBEEE BRIEBTER
a significant increase in credit risk since initial BRULEERMRBEZIEN K&
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. EewReHBEHEERB - 2%
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be HREMEHEEEENTE IR
recognised is based on significant increases in the REVIEERAREZEEEL 208
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial M EORREEEEILM -
recognition.
The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade AEB-—BUBSHEREFEK
receivables under simplified approach. The ECL on HERLMEMEEEE - HZFE
these receivables are assessed individually. g%l%ﬁ%?ﬁZﬁ‘Eﬁﬂ%%Eﬂé?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’'s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure
that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

(1ii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables from contracts with
customers when the amounts are over 2
years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated on
amortised cost of the financial assets.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is through an
allowance for expected credit losses account.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement

of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets at FVTPL and
loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and decognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established

by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

() Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as FVTPL when
the financial assets is (i) held for trading or (ii)
it is designated as at FVTPL or (iii) contingent
consideration that may be received by an
acquirer as part of a business combination.

A financial asset is classified as held for

trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term

profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHHEBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued) (m) @ ITAE)
Financial assets (continued) CRMEEE)
Classification and subsequent measurement THEEZHBRE#ZTE (R
of financial assets (before application of 2018F7H1HEHE BB HEE
HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018) (continued) B 9% 5i)(#&)
(i) Financial assets at FVTPL (continued) (i) f ﬁfD/E EHEFAEm 2@ E

/,5

A financial asset other than a financial asset imﬂiéﬁ?(hf’ﬁ EESREE

held for trading or contingent consideration U B 5 AT IR ERVE B TS A B

that may be received by an acquirer as part Z**B 57 SR E R A0 AT

of a business combination may be designated TANE SR TR 15 #E R K18 TE
as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if: %Tﬁ@fﬂﬁfﬁ FFAER:

e such designation eliminates or * %8 E OB FR SR IE R A
significantly reduces a measurement A BE & IR ) 5 2 SR
or recognition inconsistency that would R EEA— B0 sk
otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a s ZEMEEBK =R
group of financial assets or financial MEENETREBEKMA
liabilities or both, which is managed R & B — 2o - WR
and its performance is evaluated on a BASEHENRERE
fair value basis, in accordance with the B iRERBEIE RN
Group’s documented risk management NABENEERE B
or investment strategy, and information ElDH 2 BB IR I E
about the grouping is provided internally AR A B 3K
on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing o HEKBE - HXZIEMR
one or more embedded derivatives, and AXTETEBN G
HKAS 39 permits the entire combined — & MBE LR
contract (asset or liability) to be R 25395 /o 7 % 2 & 48
designated as at FVTPL. EEHNEESXAR)IE

EREBEAABHEIAR
E o

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair BARBEFABZZEME

value, with any gains or losses arising on ELARAEBEGE  BFEHT

remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. EMEL 2Kk EiEa

The net gains or losses recognised in profit or R AR - RiEm AR

loss exclude any dividend or interest earned ZH&E&E?TE?%%ET@%%

on the financial assets and are included in A& B B A2 A () AR B sk N B

the “Other operating expenses” and “Change ]Iaﬂ\fﬁﬁﬂz@i‘iﬂﬂ S

in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL" line NEBEEAAEZZEMEEZ

items. Fair value is determined in the manner DABEEZYIBEEAN - AAE

described in note 5(c). B % i 5E5(c) it EYEE °

(i) Loans and receivables (i) B W R

Loans and receivables are non-derivative ff‘k&fﬂﬁl R T B E sk

financial assets with fixed or determinable A EEMR A EFERT ISR

payments that are not quoted in an active EZ;F@TEEEEK‘%Q%% Efy\&
market. Loans and receivables (including trade JEUW BR R (B IEE 5 . WK
receivables, other receivables and deposits EI?@F'?H&ZM&TTZ%M&EEi&
and cash and bank balances) are measured BITHEGF)HAERN R EZ
at amortised cost using the effective interest T%ﬁﬁ}izﬁ BB ERE -

method, less any impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018) (continued)
(i) Loans and receivables (continued)
Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, the objective evidence
of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’'s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 30 to 180 days,
as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3. FEEHRMEE)

(m) Financial instruments (continued) m)&@MITAE)
Financial assets (continued) CRMEEE)
Impairment of financial assets (before il EERE(R2018F751H

application of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018)
(continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit
or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. On
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued)

(n)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables and amounts due to related companies/
non-controlling interests) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before
taxation, as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n) Taxation (continued) (n) BE(E

3. FEEHRMEE)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investment
in subsidiaries, interests in associates and interests
in jointly controlled entities except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(0)

Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax (continueq)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in OCI or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in OCI or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the assets belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

3. FEEFHRMEE)

(n)

(0)
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0)

(o)

(@

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect
of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can
be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Q)

(s)

Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will
then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

Employee benefits

(iy  Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leaves,
leave passage and the cost to the Group of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered
by employees of the Group. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

(i) Payments to defined contribution retirement

benefit schemes are recognised as an

expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)

The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the
share options is recognised as an expense
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined with reference to the fair value
of the share options granted. At the end of
the reporting period, the Company revises
its estimates of the number of share options
that are expected to become exercisable that
become vested. It recognises the impact of
the revision of original estimates, if any, in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, and a
corresponding adjustment to equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position will
be made over the remaining vesting period.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

() Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control over the

Group; or

or joint control

(2) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(3) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(H) Related parties (continued)

(ii)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

M

(8)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others); or

one entity is an associate or a jointly
controlled entities of the other entity (or
an associate or a jointly controlled entities
of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member); or

both entities are jointly controlled entities
of the same third party; or

one entity is a jointly controlled entities
of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity; or

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group; or

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i); or

a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is apart, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources,
services or obligations between a group entity and
a related party, regardless of whether a price is

charged.

Close members of a family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. ERSTHERGESTIEER
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION EZ2FERR
UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, e RN SE3FTIt N EEE 2 & 5K B -

which are described in note 3, the management is
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed

EEEARKEMKEIEMSR 2 &
ENBEREEFELHE - HEEER -
ZEREFRERABRRVERBEL R R
M\Z%J*ﬁFﬁZHﬁﬂlﬁﬁﬁf’EHj - BIRA
EEBRNZEMET -

+

4+

ZEmET REER *”Aﬁi AT o i

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates R BITEREEE quHﬂ Il
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is BT eEZ M EE*] o W5 B #E
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the R BETTHREARARKEHE - BIA@AE

period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

HT/\E /H\E&EE;K/H\EFHEEWUO

B TRERRZEERR

DA B3t I R O 2 B i R R 1A 5 B

ﬁﬁ?ﬁml%ZE@i%Xﬁ%%ﬂ
EEEERANT - HMRFEEER

%E%ﬁ@%ﬁk@%%Ziﬁ@@%

(@) Allowance for expected credit losses for trade (@ EBEZEWR- HttEUIRERZREZ
receivables, other receivables and deposits FHEEFERE
The allowance for expected credit losses for trade BRI N EERA RIZE 2

receivables, other receivables and deposits are
based on assumption about ECL. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
bases on the number of days that an individual
receivable is outstanding after considering the
subsequent settlement as well as the Group’s
forward-looking information at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in these assumptions
and estimates could materially affect the results of
the assessment and it may be necessary to make
additional allowance for expected credit losses to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The information about the ECL for the Group’s trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits are
disclosed in note 5(b).

BHEEBRBEFEIDENHEMIE
EEENBRREL - AREREL
ERERGEENERBYRKREE
RBARAKEBRHERRZATHE
HER - REHZ SRR MEIGH
BORE 2 B A BUR K E B - 5%
FREBEL LTI AL S LT
MEREEEATRE  Hit - A8
FERGeBEREMEERER
MBI B EEBEER -

REBE H R - H A B UK K
ResRREEBREZENBEER
Bt 5E5(b) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

4. ERESFHERMAETFTIEER
E2ETERRGE

HA A RERZRZETERR(E)

(continued)

(b)

(©

Estimation of useful lives and impairment of
property, plant and equipment

(b) WX  BBERRENGETAEAF
R R A

The management determines the estimated useful MRETEWH  HERREHRBOI
lives and depreciation method in determining EBRK BEREBETHMGAE
the related depreciation charges for its property, REMRITEE - ZMeHERE

plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the management’s experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions in the past. The management
will accelerate the depreciation charge where the
economic useful lives are shorter than previously
estimated due to foreseeable removal or closure
of factories and office premises. Actual economic
useful lives may differ from estimated economic
useful lives.

EEBEWABLUMERIENY
¥ MENRKEERAERFHELN
KEEL - AR IHMAENAEWE
B AT T8 BT S 3k 3 B B B R O Al
RAFEBHEREAGHTRE  EEES
MRNERAS BERLEAFERTF
ﬁﬂzﬁ%ﬁﬁ?%@Tﬁﬁi

In addition, the management assesses impairment [ Mﬁ%ﬁﬁ\ =P “{tﬁaﬁﬂ’\f@
whenever events or changes in circumstances % 1 28 K 5% 18 TE B /Y BR T 1B Al B8
indicate that the carrying amount of an item BRI IR BIEETARE - BA

of property, plant and equipment may not be
recoverable. In determining whether impairment on
property, plant and equipment is required, the Group
determines the recoverable amount which is the
higher of value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. The management has made a number of
key assumptions in the value in use calculation. The
key assumptions include discount rate and the future
expected cash flows based on the management’s
view of future business prospects and past
performance of the Group. When the recoverable
amounts of property, plant and equipment differ
from the original estimates, impairment loss will be
made and recognised in the period in which such
event takes place.

Fair value measurement and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
management is responsible for determination of the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for the
fair value measurements.

©

FZE%% MERREELTEE
HRER  AEBEEFEAE &5
BERAEENAABERLEX K
ZF‘?E’J:‘Fm%o Aﬁaﬁiﬂfﬁﬁfﬁ
@Eﬁﬁ SER— RN EEHBE
j“@%%mﬁﬁFﬂXX%
ﬂ‘kﬁl ShAEEMNBERRBIELD
BRI KRG RIRTEHIR S RE - 5D
¥ BMELIZHEOITWRE 2SR
RERAETER - B ELR R EEEL
REELHBER -

MABEFEREERER

P EMS ZXEI*M}E?
BRARBEFS EREEEET
’Aﬁfﬁ%@ﬁ%Z@%ﬂEﬁ&ﬁ&im
ABE -

The Group uses valuation techniques that include AEBFEARSWIHFERTHAE
inputs that are not based on observable market RYBLBABBE 2EERTT A
data to estimate the fair value of certain types of HEtETEASRITAZARE
financial instruments. Note 5(c) provide detailed & - 51#%‘5(0)?5—:@?%& BEER
information about the valuation techniques, inputs BEZCAAEBEMERANMMER
and key assumptions used in the determination of O -WASBRERREEBANG
the fair value of various assets and liabilities. BEF o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H30H (- F/E

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(continued)
(d) Current income taxes (d) FHFEH

4. EXREHHAERMAEFTIRER
EZEERF(E

HA T RERZZETERR(E)

The Group’s subsidiaries that operate in Hong Kong,
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), Macau
and Malaysia are subject to income tax. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax in the period in which such determination is
made.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Categories of financial instruments

AEBREE PEARANE
((E - RFIRBFRAGDEE
B AR ABMMEH - BEMS
MEERFSEELERNHEH - XA
FEBBREFT AHAZXHLRAE
BHAREELREZRBETE -
AEEZRREELRBINERR A
ZAFAREEMEABEARBEE
EEXEZRE -

MxEFELZRERBERRBINA
RECEEIR AHEZEKER
EEHERRERNZMAER

5. #@IT A

Q) €T RE2SHE

Financial assets EWMEE
Amortised cost 58 K AR 229,208 -
Loans and receivables (including EREERERR(BE
cash and bank balances) e RIBITER) = 348,224
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAREBEFARS
ZERMEE 170,783 27,960
399,991 376,184
Financial liabilities cHmaes
Amortised cost 55 P A 90,016 150,534

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 & £2019F6H30H IF F/E

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
investments in film production, trade and other
receivables, deposits, contingent consideration
receivable, financial assets at FVTPL, cash and
bank balances, trade and other payables and
amounts due to related companies/non-controlling
interests. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks include
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the
Group’s exposure in respect of financial instruments
or the manner in which it manages and measures
the risks.

Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Malaysia, and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi
(“RMB”) and Malaysian Ringgit (“MYR”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities denominated in a currency that
is not the functional currency of the individual
group companies and net investments in
foreign operations.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

5. ®®M I RA(ZE
(b) BiXREKREEBZMBEK

AEBEZETERZERTABRERES
2R E  BHREMEER
e BUREIAKRE BAREE
FAERZERMEE  RE MRTT
17 B 5 R EAM RN RIA R EN
MEREFERERRIR - ZF
TR T A ZFFBEMERNEP R
B-AHZSeRIAZRRERE
mis AR (BESNERRE - A EE R
REMERER)  EERR &R
B R e EZ SRR Z
BREBNTIX - EEEEENMER
ZERR BRABRRBERZA
ABETABZHENE -

AEE L& B T EATHEERZ E R R
W AKREERNFEZSTRRZ
AL EE -

™ 15 & B

(i) shEmEE
AEBMEEEFE  FERS
REARLE  WEAZTREE
EEZERER TBEEAR
BEIARBDEFRAEME
FIMRERDAER - EXER
BAKBERS EEREE
NS N AN ERIE S NCIRYE- 2
BEWANNEEIIE)  ARE
SNRIGZ FREESE -

AEBUSNEFHEZREREE
MEBEERRERRZER
BT

RMB AR
MYR N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &
5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

5. ®mIA(Z

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) HHEEkREERFEMBER
and policies (continued) (%)
Market risk (continued) ™is Rk ()
(i) Foreign currency risk (continued) (i) sP¥mEE(E)
Sensitivity analysis R E 2T
The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of AEBFEBMmHARBEMNS
fluctuation in RMB and MYR. BESz2HE -
The following table details the Group’s TRAMANEBGRETHE A
sensitivity to a 5% increase or decrease in R M E A B B2 E5%
HK$ against RMB/MYR. 5% is the sensitivity CHERE o 5% NE M EE
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk BIE A B W INE = b s B B
internally to key management personnel and ZHRELE  WRKEEE
represents the management’s assessment of HHNEE RSB AR E B) 2 5T
the reasonably possible change in foreign o RE DT EIELAINE 5
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis BzAFEEKEB TR®W
includes outstanding foreign currency FHRBAEAEBRE - AN
denominated monetary items and adjusts MR 5% & E) o LNTNIESR
their translation at the end of the reporting MEARE MEFLEBRE
period for a 5% change in foreign currency HES%  AEEEERS
rates. A positive number below indicates a B o EARM, ME R A
decrease in the Group’s loss where RMB/MYR HEKEENS  HEBBE
strengthen 5% against the relevant currency. ARRNEELE W TR
For a 5% weakening of RMB/MYR against the HEgSB 8 -
relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the loss, and the balance
below would be negative.
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F& T
Decrease in loss for the year FEEBERD
- RMB - AR% 2,580 826
~ MYR ~ HRE 54 -
In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity EERR  RAESITILATRE
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent RERBEHZIINERR  AAR
foreign exchange risk as the vyear end WEHR 2FRRER I
exposure at the end of the reporting period MAFEE 2 &R -
does not reflect the exposure during the year.
(ii) Interest rate risk (i) FEmE L
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair FMERERBRIBEESIARR
value or cash flows of a financial instrument BEXBESREEATIES FRE
will fluctuate because of changes in market BmgE Rk - AEEmR
interest rates. The Group is exposed to fair BFEBRITHEREBE 2 AAE
value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate BEF =R & 8ZERITFER
bank deposits and also exposed to cash flow MRS RENERE o K
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank SEEAWEBBANERR 2
deposits. The Group currently does not have WEMEE WK - A &
policy on cash flow hedges of interest rate risk. BEEZEMNZERIT EHNEE
However, the management monitors interest BrEE S mE KFRER -

rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the
need arises.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank deposits at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 10
basis points increase or decrease for variable-
rate bank deposits is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents the management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates.

If interest rates for the variable-rate bank
deposits had been 10 basis points (2018: 10
basis points) higher and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s loss for the
year would decrease by HK$88,000 (2018:
HK$112,000).

If the interest rates had been lower in an
opposite magnitude and all other variables
were held constant, the potential effect on the
Group’s loss for the year would be equal and
opposite.

Other price risks

Equity security price risk relates to the risk
that the fair values or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than changes
in interest rates and foreign exchange rates).
The Group is exposed to equity security price
risk arising from individual equity investments
classified as financial assets at FVTPL.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below indicates the
approximate change in the Group’s loss for
the year and other components of equity in
response to the reasonably possible changes
in the relevant stock market prices, to which
the Group has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period.

In response to the reasonably possible change
in the market price of the listed securities,
if the equity price had been 5% higher or
lower, the Group’s loss for the year would
decrease or increase by HK$291,000 (2018:
HK$1,038,000).

5. ®®M I RA(ZE
BREREEEEMBEK

(b)
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

5. ®®MIA(E
(b) BiXEAKREEBZMBEK

and policies (continued)

Credit risk management and impairment
assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge obligations by the counterparties at the
end of reporting period are arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model upon the application of HKFRS 9 (2018:
incurred cost model). In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, lifetime ECL
of HK$381,000 for trade receivables from certain
individual customers with an aggregate gross
carrying amount of HK$381,000 is recognised
as the management considered these customers
are credit-impaired. The management has also
assessed all available forward looking information,
including but not limited to the economic outlook of
mainland China and Hong Kong and subsequent
settlement of these customers. As at 30 June
2019, allowance for expected credit losses with
an aggregate balance of HK$381,000 represents
individually credit-impaired trade receivables from
the individual customers as the management
considered the outstanding balances from these
customers were uncollectible.

Lifetime ECL for the remaining trade receivables
with an aggregate gross carrying amount of
HK$4,380,000 was insignificant and thus was
not provided due to the low probability of default
of those debtors based on historical credit loss
experience. The management has also assessed
all available forward looking information, including
but not limited to the economic outlook of mainland
China and Hong Kong and subsequent settlement
of these customers, and concluded that the credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding trade
receivables is insignificant.

(&)
EEEREE R AT

RBERR  AEERXZEH TR
REETEEMSECAEBBBY B
BRZEANEERR  IHXEHE
MBRAKMIERCHER SR E
EZREE -

ABEERREERE AEEE
BECDZKk—ZXBEBFREEEREH
REE - EEEHR L EMEZERERN
VAT £R 2R BUUER #E 45 5 Wx [0 8 H (&
oo ttih REERBEBHEEE
BRANERAETEMBRELERE
5% By #E 77 R (B FT 1l (20184F = A&
RARR) - st s - EFRAAN
SEZEERRBREKERE -

HZE2019F6A30BILFE  ARE
BERAZERFELEEZERE
#ABRTI(E381,000/8 Tt 2 & THEBE
FzBSRURZ2HEHEES
$8381,0008 TEMR - EEEINC
EFTERERMATEEER B
FEERR AP BRI N E B & ER
ShZERFPZEBEE - 112019
F6H30R  HRNERERAKEZ
EEFZAREELEBEZRE @ K
TEHE E R E R 2 8 45482381,000
B ARBENERZEREER
BEESEWR -

F 72 BR T 42 (84,380,000 7T 2 Tl #4
BoRWRZz2HBEBHEEBEY
TEKX Ep W EFIR o B TAR
BEBTEEFBHBELER ZEEHK
AEHWAREERE - EEEND
FEARERMAIEEER 8
FEERRERPEANEBZEE
AEhZERPZEBEREBR
WHEEAEB 2 REEZEFHEKK
MEIEEERBITERX -
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk management and impairment
assessment (continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for credit-impaired
trade receivables from individual customers under
the simplified approach:

At 1 July 2018 #2018F7H1H
Change due to financial instruments 2018 F7A1H AN ER & &t
recognised at 1 July 2018: TEMEAZEE:

— Allowance for expected credit losses
recognised (note)
Disposal of subsidiaries

-BRAREEBRERB
th & K & A )

5. ®®M I RA(ZE
(b) HBEEBEREEANBEE

(&

FERBREERBERGE)

TRIRBRERE T A HER?
B1E R &P 25 &R E 8 5 R KK
ZEHMEHEEERES:

At 30 June 2019

R201956A30H

Note:

The trade receivables with gross carrying amount of
HK$381,000 which were recognised as at 1 July 2018 had
been defaulted and transferred to credit-impaired as at 30
June 2019.

For the other receivables and deposits paid,
allowance for expected credit losses was
insignificant and thus was not provided since the
management considers the probability of default is
minimal after assessing the counterparties’ financial
background and creditability.

For the bank deposits and bank balances,
allowance for expected credit losses was
insignificant and thus was not provided since the
management considers the probability of default is
negligible as such deposits are placed in banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies, and have low credit risk.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate bank deposits and cash, monitoring

forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

As at 30 June 2019, based on the existing levels
of bank balances, the Group will be able to meet
its future cash flow requirements. Accordingly, the
management considers that the Group’s liquidity risk
is minimal.

The following table details remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities that
will result in cash outflow. The table below has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes principal cash flows.

5. ¢amIA(E
(b) BiXEAKREEBZMBEK

(#%&)
AEEERBEFARRITFERR
B EFERARERRSREN
EEHESREERBEZ B HEMHE
xORENEERBETER -

R2019F6 83018 « iR & IR K5 38 17
HEERKTE  AEEBEAmEER
REERERK -Alt - EEERB
AREBZRBESRAREM -

TRAMKSEBRS AL 2 IITE
TREAEZHKTAMNIHE - TX
ERBEAKREARRKFARZE
BMEBEZARFTARSREFEL - T
REBRIZHEZRE -

2019 20195

Non-derivative financial ~ #T££BEE:
liabilities:

Trade and other payables — Z 5 & £ B 5

Amounts due to related
companies

Amount due to non-
controlling interests

ERNEERRRE
FEA IR R AR B 22 3K R

Total &
2018 20184
Non-derivative financial HiTELHER:
liabilities:
Trade and other payables  Z 5k E# B K - 90,111 90,111 90,111

Amounts due to related

A BB AR

companies - 15,553 15,553 15,553
Amount due to non- JER IR 2R KB

controlling interests - 44,870 44,870 44,870
Total B 150,534 150,534 150,534

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEZEBEERAT
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(¢) Fair value measurement of financial

instruments
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are determined
(in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs
used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are

categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.

Equity securities listed 20,750  Level 1
in Hong Kong Eak

REBLTZ

Contingent consideration 7210 Level 3
receivable (note 1) E3

R AR E
(W1

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEE
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 &=k

5. ¢amIA(E
c ERMIBEZAAEBHEE

BEEMEEUAREEFEZS
SEEMEEZAIREE

AEEETEREENSREHRR
BAnBEFE TREHRESS
MEEZAARBENFNET 2ER
(LEZMREAZEERT REAR
) WERBAAREBEFEZGA
BEZAIERBEEALEBESEMN
BAZARBEFR(FIEIRL) -

Quoted bid prices in an

active market

TS E ARE

Income approach —

in this approach, the
discounted cash flow
method was used to
capture the present
value of the expected
future economic
benefits that will flow
into the Group arising
from the contingent
consideration, based
on an appropriate
discount rate

WATE - BERES

ERERERBEAR
BEBRERMRAX
MERBXANER
MAREEZBHAK
K2R EnRE

ROFE

(i) Discount rate, taking

N/A N/A
TER

~ER

(i) Note 4
into account of weighted Bt 5F4
average cost of capital
(“WACC") determined
using a modified capital
asset pricing model at
18.98%

18.98%HAE - Z B
EIEAEEERRE
BEOMEFTHERRAE
(ImETHERREK])

(ii) Probability-adjusted (if) Note 3
revenues and losses, Bt k3
with a range from
HK$16,691,000 to
HK$18,311,000 and a
range from HK$3,054,000
to HK$4,673,000,
respectively

HEERRZUARE
2% 85 7 /16,691,000
# T £18,311,000%

70 %.3,054,000% T &
4,673,000/ 7T
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. €®®IT A&

(c) Fair value measurement of financial c) eI AEZAREEGE
instruments (continued) (4&)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that REEMHEENAABHETEZR
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis EEeMEEZAABEGE)
(continued)

Investments in film 164,969 - Level 3 Income approach - Discount rates, which were the Note 4
production ERF in this approach, cost of equity determined Bt 5E4
(note 2) the discounted cash using a capital asset pricing

REZHEZRE flow method was model and cost of debt were
(his2) used to capture the 20.21% and 5.07%

present value of 20.21%125.07% B % - BB A
the expected future BAEETERE REBKK
economic benefits to AEEZERRA
be derived from the
investment, based
on an appropriate
discount rate
WATRZE - BARER
HRBEEREERAR
DEREERERE
DERERELES
AREENGNERE

Notes: M &t -

1. Contingent consideration receivable is in relation to 1. FRAKNEEERASZEREGRAR(E
the acquisition of Jade Dynasty Multi-Media Limited EHZHEBDRANE QR (HHE
(“*JDMM") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to (FEHZERER]) 2 EREIAR
as “JDMM Group”), details of which is disclosed in B FBEHRENGEEMBHREM G
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements. 26 °
As at 30 June 2018, the Directors had engaged with M20185F6H30H - EF 2L 1B B
an independent firm of valuers, Flagship Appraisals WU HEMEEEEFGERAER
and Consulting Limited (“Flagship”) to determine the RAl((EBDEEAR D AEBES
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair BEZHEMERTRE AR -
value measurements.

2. The investments in film production mainly represent 2. REZREZEREXEZERNETE
the investments in certain films that the Group is FIRE MAEETHEASH
not considered to be involved in the film production B RERESRIERETHE -
process or as the distributor.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, the investments in R2018F7ATBRMBE B B WME
film production were reclassified to financial assets ERIERR  NEFHREZERE
at FVTPL as at 1 July 2018 (see note 2(b)) and are ENOBARRAAEEFABRZ
subject to fair value measurement at the end of each SR EE (R E2b) KSR
reporting period. HHRETANEBEE -

As at 1 July 2018 and 30 June 2019, the Directors had 720184 7H18 K 201996 H308 -
engaged with an independent firm of valuers, Flagship EFEEABUMERMEREETA
to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and RARBEFEZEELERDGR
inputs for fair value measurements. ENE €

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEZEBEERAT
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. EMIAE

(c) Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

3. Due to the variety of basis of determination used
in profit forecast, it was not practicable to provide
any meaningful sensitivity in relation to the critical
assumptions concerning future profitability of acquired
business and the potential impact on the fair value
change on the contingent consideration receivable as
at 30 June 2018.

However, if the probability of worst and best scenarios
is 5% lower or higher and the probability of normal
scenarios is 10% lower or higher, there will not be
any material impact on the fair value change of the
contingent consideration receivable. If the expected
result after tax of the acquired business is 10% lower
or higher, there will not be any material impact on
the fair value change of the contingent consideration
receivable.

4. An increase in the discount rate used in isolation would
result in a decrease in the fair value measurement
of the contingent consideration receivable and
investments in film production respectively, and vice
versa. A 5% change in the discount rate holding all
other variables constant would change the recoverable
amounts of investments in film production and
contingent consideration receivable by HK$52,000 and
N/A (2018: N/A and HK$28,000), respectively.

In estimating the fair values of the assets, the
management worked closely with Flagship to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model and reported the findings to
the Directors at the end of that reporting period to
explain the cause of fluctuations in fair values of the
assets.

Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair values of
contingent consideration receivable and investments
in film production are disclosed above.

Emperor Culture Group Limited EEX{tEXKBEHRA A
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 “F3f
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(¢) Fair value measurement of financial

5. ¢amIA(E
c EMIBEZAREBEFE

instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

In view of the financial performance of JDMM Group
for the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2018, the Directors considered that the likelihood
for JDMM Group to meet the Profit Guarantee
(as defined in note 26) was remote. Therefore,
the Directors considered that it was likely for the
Group to receive the Shortfall (as defined in note
26) of HK$7,864,000. During the year ended 30
June 2019, a gain on derecognition of contingent
consideration receivable of HK$654,000 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. As at 30
June 2019, the entire amount of the Shortfall had
been received.

The following table presents the changes in
contingent consideration receivable and investments
in film production which are classified as Level 3
instrument at the end of the reporting period:

(&)
BEEHEEUARBEETEZR
SEESREEZQAAREBEE)

ENTEWHLEREEEN2018F 18
1HZE2018F12 A1HHAIM Z B &
B EBERAIE2HZHEEER
EmARE (& R K 7E26) Ma g
MHMTER Bt EERALE
ERJEEESEZE(EE RME26)
7,864,000/ 7T ° & £20199F 630
BIEFE  KRIEEREWRKANRE
2 W 256540008 TR GABE X
H a2 AWK &R ER - R2019F6
A308 2 E=ELE WM -

T 2505 & 1K 5 B A 3R
TAZEERARERRE P RIE
IREZED:

At 1 July 2017 R2017F7A1H 8,483 - 8,483
Loss on fair value change FEAALEBEES

for the year &5 18 (1,273) - (1,273)
At 30 June 2018 R2018F 6 H30H 7,210
Effect arising from initial IR ERE B G HmE

application of HKFRS 9 ERIBOREE Z
(note 2(b)) T E (W iF2(0b)

At 1 July 2018 R2018% 7818

Transfer to other receivables & % & H th J& Ul 3¢

Amount received during the FE B WA
year

Gain on derecognition
for the year

Loss on fair value change FEAALEBEE
for the year & 18

FREKILER Y =

At 30 June 2019 201966 HA30H

Emperor Culture Group Limited

REXLERXRKEEERATF
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4

181,589 181,589

181,589 188,799
(135) (135)

(7,864) (8,503)  (16,367)

= 654

(7,982) (7,982)
164,969 164,969
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)
During the year, there were no transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level
3.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of
the events or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

Other than disclosed above, the fair values of
other financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts
of all other financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost at the end of each
reporting period approximate their corresponding
fair values.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts
(which include amounts due to related companies/non-
controlling interests, as disclosed in note 31), net of cash
and bank balances and equity attributable to the owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through issue of new shares, new borrowings raising and
repayment of borrowings.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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7. REVENUE

7.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

Recognised at a point in time:
Income from cinema operation

Recognised over time:

Income from film and TV programme production

REEHEBRI:
BB & 8 2 WA

R—BREBER:
EXMNEGHBRER

LN
REEZWADTMT -

142,971

and others Hhz WA 2,782
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFEH2ZWA 145,753

Except for the income from film and TV programme
production and others arising from the disposal group as
mentioned in note 33(a), all revenue contracts are for one
year or less. As permitted by practical expedient under
HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to unsatisfied

contract is not disclosed.

BRRB M 33t HESBELNE
TLEGBHBREREMZWAI - B
WHEAEHNWHARY R —FRIN—F -
RIEE B M| EERF1GR N BEFRAE
B EMANE UARAKRBEIEERE
TARKNNXZER -

Cinema operation BBt & & 65,578

Film and TV programme production and EYNEROEREEEER
investment and others H Aty 24,633
Event investment and others RBEBHEKREREAM 991
91,202

Emperor Culture Group Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4

REXLERXRKEEERATF




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS HRER M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance, information reported to the
Executive Directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision makers (the “CODM”), focus on types
of goods or services delivered or provided.

In the current year, the Group reorganised its internal
reporting structure which resulted in changes to the
composition of its reportable segments. In the prior
year, the Group’s reportable segments included “Cinema
operation”, “Film, TV programme production and
investment and others”, “Event investment and others”
and “Investment in securities” segments. In accordance
with the way in which information is now reported
internally to the CODM for purpose of resource allocation
and performance assessment and the recent streamlining
of certain reportable segments, the financial information
of the Group’s “Film and TV programme production and
investment and others” segment and “Event investment
and others” segment are now reported within the
“Investment in films and cultural events” segment while
“Investment in securities” segment is no longer a part of
an operating segment. Prior year's segment disclosures
have been represented to conform with the current year’s
representation.

In the manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the CODM for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the
business activities of the Group are organised into the
following operating segments:

- Cinema operation

- Investment in films and cultural events (including
investments in film and event projects; and
production, distribution, licensing of animated TV
episodes and theatrical films)

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 i
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEER(E)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments is AEENEROEEHZREOT

presented below:

(a) Segment revenue and results (@ PERVRARESE

2019 20194
Segment revenue oM A 142,971 2,782 145,753
Segment results DEEE (67,947) (41,584) (109,531)
Interest income A EWKA 2,710
Gain on derecognition of 4% 11 T R W sk A

contingent consideration BfEzZH &

receivable 654
Unallocated corporate RESPERX

expenses (6,639)
Change in fair value of BARBERA

financial assets at FVTPL BazemBE

ZANBEEE (22,918)

Loss from operations KERETE 2 BB (135,724)
Gain on disposal of HERBARZ

subsidiaries U %5 3,476
Finance cost B 75 X 7R (2,037)
Loss before taxation B 1 B E5 18 (134,285)

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEZEBEERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It F/E

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Segment revenue and results
(continued)

8.

(@) ?HBAREE(E

2018 20184
Segment revenue DERA 65,578 25,624 91,202
Segment results DEEE (65,838) (56,075) (121,913)
Interest income e A 1,890
Loss on fair value change of FEW s XK (B 2

contingent consideration NABEE

receivable =i} (1,273)
Unallocated corporate REHIDPERAX

expenses (5,360)
Change in fair value of BARBERA

financial assets at FVTPL BRzemEE

ZRAREBEED (31,691)

Loss from operations REEBZEHE (158,347)
Loss on disposal of HEWBAFZ

subsidiaries & 18 (8)
Loss before taxation BR 7 AT &S 18 (158,355)

Segment revenue

reported above

represents

revenue generated from external customers. There
were no inter-segment revenue in the current year
(2018: Nil).

Segment results represent the loss suffered
by each segment without allocation of interest
income, central administration costs which mainly
include Directors’ emoluments and corporate legal
and professional fees, gain on derecognition of
contingent consideration receivable, fair value
changes in respect of contingent consideration
receivable and financial assets at FVTPL, the
relevant gain/loss on disposal of subsidiaries and
finance cost. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEEHRGE)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities b)) 7BEEERAERE

2019 20194

Segment assets DHEEE 361,711 166,000 527,711
Unallocated assets RAEHEE 172,562
Consolidated assets HREBE 700,273
Segment liabilities DEEaE : 99,520
Unallocated liabilities A#ENBE 1,624
Consolidated liabilities meafE 101,144
2018 20184F

Segment assets DEEE 295,459 321,955 617,414
Unallocated assets REDEE 285,194
Consolidated assets REEBE 902,608
Segment liabilities NEEE 139,906 19,814 159,720
Unallocated liabilities rELBE 1,748
Consolidated liabilities IrEBaE 161,468

For the purposes of monitoring segment %Tg’&g"*ﬁﬁéiﬁﬁﬁ’\Tﬂ"*ﬁfﬁ

performance and allocating resources between HEEIR:

segments:

-  all assets are allocated to reportable segments - BREBEFRERKRESBNFR
other than investments in securities and R EEREGREESHE
unallocated head office and corporate assets LASN - MBEEHDEE®RE
that are not attributable to segments; and NER

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable - BREHILESBMABBERES
segments other than unallocated corporate "‘E;zé%ﬁ*ﬁbw\ B AREY
financial liabilities that are not attributable to SHEREDLE -
segments.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEZEBEERAT
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It F/E

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.
(c) Other segment information

TEEHR(E)
(c) Hit 7 BEHR

2019 20194

Additions to property, plant AE ¥ E - #E N
and equipment B

Allowance for expected B 5 WK 2 T8 H
credit losses for trade EEEBEBERE

receivables

Amortisation of film and TV
programme rights

Amortisation of intangible
assets

Depreciation of property,

EXNEEIMAER
1 B 55
B E E

ME - HwELRE

plant and equipment ZIE
Impairment loss recognised FiEE MR 2

in respect of goodwill VERIEN SR
Written off of film and TV %zf’EEF‘ZEEE/

programme production in B 15 &0 B M i

progress
2018 20184
Additions to property, plant HREE - KRB

and equipment nx{% 178,885 63 178,948
Amortisation of film and TV =~ &% & B iR

programme rights ﬁé%fﬁ - 7,150 7,150
Amortisation of intangible EmREEE#E

assets - 2,015 2,015
Cost of investments in film  REF & IEx

production ®E KA - 6,430 6,430
Depreciation of property, E Y e

plant and equipment ZIE 16,314 73 16,387
Impairment loss recognised  Ft T %Il % I8 R

in respect of: VERIEN S

— goodwill -EHE8 - 27,354 27,354

— investments in film -REZ&EZ

production ®E - 37,046 37,046

- trade receivables - B EWRK - 1,775 1,775
Loss on disposal of HEME - ek

property, plant and HEZEE

equipment - 35 35
Written off of film and TV P ZER

programme production in B 18 & B i 3H

progress - 120 120

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It FE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(d) Geographical information

The Group's revenue from external customers by
location of sales and information about its non-
current assets by location of assets are detailed as
below:

8.

(d) HHEH
AEB R E D 2 WIS
2B H R B ) 52 3
BEEEMFIMT

Mainland China B A 3

Hong Kong &

Other regions in Asia H fih 5p KM [
Pacific

(e) Information about major customers

No individual customer contributed over 10% of
the Group’s revenue during the year ended 30
June 2019 (2018: one major customer contributing
HK$16,745,000, which were derived from the
segment of investment in films and cultural events).

9. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

114,692
31,061

145,753 91,202

189,322
91,133

- 38,246
318,701

e FEFFEHR
H £2019F6A30H It F[Z - &
& AE PG A& B UK A10% A £
(2018F: —HBEBREFZWA B
16,745,000 7T - TIRBEZ R XL
EENIRE D) o

HAt W A K U &

Bank interest income |ITH B WA 1,890
Compensation income fERA 7,864
Exchange gain, net PE 5 W 55 5 58 146

Gain on derecognition of contingent BRI RER K ANRE
consideration receivable 2 Wz -
Government grants (note) BT 8 Bh (B 72) 592
Sundry income MW A 60
10,552

Note:

The Group received certain financial subsidies from PRC local
government authorities. There were no unfulfilled conditions and
other contingencies attached to those government grants. These
government grants were recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income upon receipt.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It F/E

10. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

10. EEXB2EHE

Loss from operations has been arrived
at after charging/(crediting):

e B BEREHG,
(FFA)TFI%E:

Auditors’ remuneration for audit services 2 1% iz 15 2 % B Al B & 800
Allowance for expected credit losses for EZEWH 2 FEHEE

trade receivables BEERE -
Amortisation of film and TV programme &5 &R &0 B Ak & 6

rights (included in cost of sales) (BT ASH &R A) 7,150
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#EH

(included in administrative expenses) GTATTERAX) 2,015
Cost of investments in film production RS § & 1E 2 3% & A A&

(included in cost of sales) (BT ASH &R A) 6,430
Cost of inventories sold (included in cost E&7F & KA

of sales) (BT A S8 & A &) 1,493
Depreciation of property, plant and M- KREEBEZ

equipment e 16,387
Impairment loss recognised in respect Bt %I & B R

of: ERIEN SR

— goodwill (note) - Pﬁ@(ﬁ/fﬁf) 27,354

— investments in film production (note) REFEIEZIRE

(K1 5) 37,046

- trade receivables (note) - BRI (AT 2E) 1,775
Loss on disposal of property, plant and & - #22 N RE

equipment 2 51 35
Loss on fair value change of contingent EWSHARE Z A NE

consideration receivable (note) BEHEENZE) 1,273
Operating leases in respect of rented MEMEZKERE

premises 27,760
Written off of film and TV programme BEP B NEREE

production in progress (note) 5 (A1 aE) 120
Exchange loss/(gain), net PE N B e (W) F 58 (146)

Note: B 7t
The aggregation of these items are included in “Other operating ZEBACBBEHSHAGEEERAEMEERK

expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

mERANZEMEEH] -
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e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H30H (- F/E

11. FINANCE COST 11.
During the year ended 30 June 2019, the amount
represents interest expense arising from other loan. (2018:

Nil).
12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 12.

B 3% X 2
H E2019F6A30B I FE 248 AH
HERELEZF B (20184F : &) -

BE/BMBX

#ra M E g A
B ARAR I 5 & 5K

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

26,230
2176

28,406

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of independent trustees. The
Group and each employee make mandatory and voluntary
contributions of 5% of relevant income to the scheme with
monthly cap of HK$1,500 for frontline staff and HK$5,000
for back office staff respectively.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government. The Group is required
to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll to the
retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

Equity compensation benefits
Share Options

The Company operates a share option scheme, details
of which are set out under the heading “Share Options”
in note 32.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 & £2019F6H30H IF F/E
13. TAXATION CREDIT

13. BIEE %

Taxation credit comprises:

Hong Kong Profits Tax: BEBENEFH
Current tax RHEAFRE 1B
Deferred taxation iR I8

HIRHE % B

242

242

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to
be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. No provision
for Hong Kong Profit Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
assessable profit derived from Hong Kong for both years.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiary is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards. Macau subsidiary is subject to Macau
Complementary Tax at the maximum progressive rate of
12% on the estimated assessable profit for both years.
Malaysia subsidiary is subject to Malaysia Corporate
Income Tax at a maximum rate of 24% on the estimated
assessable profit for the year (2018: N/A).

No provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax, Macau
Complementary Tax and Malaysia Corporate Income Tax
have been made in the consolidated financial statements
as the Group has no assessable profits arising in the PRC,
Macau and Malaysia for both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It FE

13. TAXATION CREDIT (continued) 13. BIBBE R (&
The taxation credit for the year can be reconciled to the FEMBEEEGSER XAMEEK
loss before taxation per the consolidated statement of HRAZBBAIEEEERENT:

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

Loss before taxation R AIEE (134,285) (158,355)
Tax rate in relevant tax jurisdictions EZHRBREEER 2
BRI E > FIE 26,832 30,084

Tax effect of expenses not deductible  BL& %M 5 7~ a 1A

for tax purpose X oG e (18,299) (16,357)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax LM = B 7B R

purpose WAZBR BT E 2,411 349
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not RIERGETHIEEE 2

recognised Misee (10,995) (17,682)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERITHRE =2

differences not recognised BT E 242
Utilisation of estimated tax losses E A SR R TER 2 b 5T

previously not recognised MIEEE 2,705
Others HAh 1
Taxation credit for the year FEMEBESL 242

14. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE 14. XAREEABESREE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share RARRFEBEAREEREARALBEEE
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on TR T EIETE -

the following data:

Loss attributable to the owners of the FTEEREARAKEE
Company for the purpose of basic RNzl P N
and diluted loss per share HBAEREBE (126,437) (153,797)

Weighted average number of ordinary &t & & % & A & # &

shares for the purpose of basic and BB FT R 2 &R

diluted loss per share hnE F AR &K 3,213,341
For the years ended 30 June 2019 and 2018, the diluted B £ 2019F & 20186 A30R L FE -
loss per share was the same as the basic loss per share R#EBEERGRERNBEEAER T
as there was no dilutive potential ordinary shares for both HRAMEFEATELAETBEETE Y
years. TiEmR o
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e ERRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It F/E

15.

16.

DIVIDENDS 15.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2019
(2018: Nil).

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 16.
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
Directors during the year ended 30 June 2019 are
as follows:

R B
EEETEZMEE2019F6H30H 1IEF
&R A 4E 7T % B.(20184F : 4&) o

EEMERTEESFHMAL
@ ESHE
B ZE2019F6 A30BIEFE - Bk
BRNEEECHME0T:

2019 20195
Executive Directors HITEE
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa  E&ff &+
Mr. Wong Chi Fai BEEBLE
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, BHELE
Alexander
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes Fmar L
Independent Non-executive BUIEHT
Directors EE
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene RER T
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen L E
Ms. Tam Sau Ying' BEERZL
Mr. Ng Hoi Yue? mgFEE

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It FE
16. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 16. EEMEREBESHHMA L

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) (4&

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) () EEM e (2)
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the HZE2018F6A30BILFE » Bk
Directors during the year ended 30 June 2018 are ERNEEEZMeNT:
as follows:

2018 20184F
Executive Directors HITEE
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa 2@ s &+ 175 - - - 175
Mr. Wong Chi Fal BEEBAAE 175 - - - 175
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, BHREREE
Alexander 175 - - - 175
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes AmET L 175 - - - 175
Mr. Albert Lee® 18 5 A2 59 - - - 59
Independent Non-executive BUIEHT
Directors EZ
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene RIER L+ 190 - - - 190
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen BF=3 ¥ 190 - - - 190
Mr. Ng Hoi Yue mETFEaE 198 - - - 198
1,337 - - - 1,337
Notes: Kt
1 Appointed as Independent Non-executive Directors on ! MR2018F 1M AIBHEZ £ AL IE
13 November 2018. HiTESE -
2 Retired as Independent Non-executive Directors on 13 2 #20184F 11 A13H iR E %8 L JE A 17T
November 2018. £% -
8 Appointed and retired as Executive Director on 31 8 2RI 2017963 A31H & 2017411 A
March 2017 and 22 November 2017 respectively. HEZMERBERITES -
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e ERRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It F/E
16. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 16. EEMEREBESHFHMA L

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) (&

(b) Five highest paid individuals b) EEESFHFMAL
The five highest paid individuals did not include MEFERLEERFHMALTETE
any director of the Company for both years, details BARRIMEMNES  EMEFBET
of whose emoluments are set out above. The HREX - RREFEINTAA
aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid EagMALTzMeBEENT

individuals for both years are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits Fre &k HMmE R 2,755

Retirement benefit scheme RORAE B EH B3R
contributions 153
2,908

The emoluments of those individuals are within the ZEANTE Z2HEBIMT:
following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/8 7T 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 T2
2,000,000 7T 1
5
For the years ended 30 June 2019 and 2018, no HZE2019F KX 2018F6 A30H L FfE -
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five AEESERAAERSTMAL(R
highest paid individuals, including the Directors, as REZ)ZME  ERRSIKE
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group MAREE SR IMARE B R 42
or as compensation for loss of office. Except as BISERBERAEE - R EMBES
disclosed above, none of the Directors has waived Hh - ZREFEAMBRESRERL
or agreed to waive any emolument during both REREEMNME -
years.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It FE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. % - BBERRE

Cost: B

At 1 July 2017 20174 7A1H 21,474 29,123 8,426 28,540 87,563
Exchange realignment BE 5 38 635 862 209 844 2,550
Additions wE 163,532 4,915 1,506 8,995 178,948
Disposals HE - - (1,166) - (1,166)
Transfer [E£2 (181,245) 119,397 4,325 57,523 -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AT

(note 33(b)) (H7:£33(b)) - - (147) - (147)
At 30 June 2018 and R2018F6A308 &

1 July 2018 20184 7A1H 154,297 13,153 95,902 267,748
Exchange realignment EHAE (4,875) (344) (3,574) (8,884)
Additions NE 6,252 641 8,888 63,358
Disposal of subsidiaries HEN B AR

(note 33(a)) (B #33(a)) = (584) - (584)

At 30 June 2019 R20196 A30H 155,674 12,866 101,216 321,638
Accumulated depreciation:  REFIFE:
At 1 July 2017 R2017F7A1H - 4,595 3,570 7157 15,322
Exchange realignment BE 358 & - 137 66 212 415
Charged for the year FEME - 7,481 2,075 6,831 16,387
Eliminated on disposals & R 6 - - (1,131) - (1,131)
Disposal of subsidiaries HE W B AR

(note 33(b)) (B 7#33(b)) - - (147) - (147)
At 30 June 2018 and R2018F 6 A30H &

1 July 2018 2018 7A1H 30,846
Exchange realignment BE 3 & (1,133)
Charged for the year FEMNE 29,519
Disposal of subsidiaries & KB A A

(note 33(a)) (B i#33(a)) = (PLE)]
At 30 June 2019 #2019 6 A30H 25,504 58,939
Carrying amount: BRI A
At 30 June 2019 #2019 6A30H 130,170 262,699
At 30 June 2018 201846 A30H 4,396 142,084 8,720 81,702 236,902

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 & £2019F6H30H IF F/E
18. GOODWILL 18. &

Cost: AN
At 1 July 2017, 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 MR201747A818 ~ 201846 A30H
N 2018F7H1H 98,250

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33(a)) & BB AR (K2233(a) (98,250)

At 30 June 2019 #2019 6H30H =

Accumulated impairment: R REE:

At 1 July 2017 R2017E7A1H 2,636

Impairment loss recognised for the year FEBRZAEEE 27,354

At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 7R20184F 6 A30H & 2018F7A1H 29,990

Impairment loss recognised for the year FEBAZREER 28,273

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33(a)) & B B AR (47 7£33(a)) (58,263)

At 30 June 2019 720196 H30H

Carrying amount: FREE:

At 30 June 2019 720196 H30H

At 30 June 2018 #20184F6 A30 8 68,260
Goodwill represented the amount attributable to the mENEEBNEIEHSHESEFME
acquisition of JDMM Group. The goodwill is primarily A7 MEBETEGBRBEHBES
attributable to the significant synergies expected to EAHBRABECHEERFELERE
arise in connection with the production, distribution and HLBE S BITREEEL - ZBaBER
licensing of animated TV episodes and theatrical films o 65 B B8 2 ) B 8 (R BT 3E33(a)) ©

business. The goodwill was written off upon the disposal
of subsidiaries (see note 33(a)).

Impairment test on goodwill 22 R E R R
The goodwill is allocated to the production, distribution HMEWIEEHEERHEREBREY
and licensing of animated TV episodes and theatrical ZEME S BITREREE -

films operation.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, Z=201946A30H It F &

18. GOODWILL (continued) 18. B& (&)

Impairment test on goodwill (continued)

During the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2019, the
management considered that the profitability and the
operating performance of the production, distribution and
licensing of animated TV episodes and theatrical films
business were affected by the change in the market
condition in the PRC which causes the deferral of certain
animation projects to be released and have impact on
their expected income. Hence, the management took a
prudent view to forecast the production, distribution and
licensing of animated TV episodes and theatrical films
business.

During the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2019, the
recoverable amount of the goodwill were assessed by the
Directors with reference to the valuation carried out by
an independent firm of valuers, Flagship. The valuation
was appraised on the value-in-use basis. The key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculation were those
regarding the discount rate and budgeted gross margin
and revenue. The Group estimated discount rate using the
rate that reflected current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the production,
distribution and licensing of animated TV episodes and
theatrical films business. Budgeted gross margin and
revenue were based on past practices and expectations
associated with the production, distribution and licensing
of animated TV episodes and theatrical films industry.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group had
prepared 3-years cash flow forecast derived from
the most recent financial budget of the production,
distribution and licensing of animated TV episodes and
theatrical films business using a pre-tax discount rate
of 22.8% (30 June 2018: 22.7%) and the projection are
extrapolated using a constant growth rate of 3% (30
June 2018: 3%) per annum for subsequent years. Since
the recoverable amount was less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss of HK$28,273,000 (2018:
HK$27,354,000) for goodwill was recognised for the year
ended 30 June 2019.

BEZBENHRE)

M E £20184F k201946 H30H IF & F
E’Aiﬁn/uﬁ @J ?E.Zﬁ,)}\g&ﬁg%
B RE BOIAREBERKZABFRE
NREBRRIEBFPEMGHRRE L2
VR BYPETHEEBEZHBMTEER
E/%%:E%EHM&A it B BEFEE
EEENHEERFERBRET 2R
ﬁE BITRBEER -

7

M E £20184F k201946 H30R IF & F
B ZEEZAlEBEsEHREELR2EHE
VIEEMITEEET 2 HEETEMG -
HEREREEEELETHG - FHE
TE.#“ZF'%JE““ X E BT IRER
BEEFRBAZEBER - AEBFRAK
Hg%gaﬁlm HEBREEAERDEEHR
FERBREX 2 RE BITRRESE
f“Zﬁiﬂ T2 ERGFIRE -
78 %%U&MQJ\TJ%EAﬁiﬁﬁ)#%&
BREFZRE BIREBEETEZB
FEFRIBEHMEE -

REE2019F6A30F ILFE » AEE5
HEERAFENRBREY 2 EE - BT
MEEREERFVEEERUIFE
mETEA - FRAHETITIRE22.8% (2018
F6H30H :227%) k 12 F € H F3%
<2o18$6H30E| 3%)ZIFELREHE
B ARAIKRE S EERANERRE
&t B 22019F6A30H FFEHER
72 2 (B 85 18 28,273,000 7 7T (20184F -
27,354,000/ 7T) °
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It F/E
19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. B EE

Cost: )N

At 1 July 2017 R2017F 7818 81 27,336 27,417
Additions NE - 4,187 4,187
Written off 85 (81) - (81)
At 30 June 2018 and 20186 A30H &

1 July 2018 2018F7H1H 31,523 31,523
Exchange realignment bE 5 & (53) (53)
Additions = 4,524 4,524
Disposal of subsidiaries B B A A

(note 33(a)) (Hf#33(a) (35,994) (35,994)
At 30 June 2019 #2019 6H30H = =
Accumulated Eag: £

amortisation:

At 1 July 2017 20178 7A18 81 1,847 1,928
Amortisation for the year FEEH - 2,015 2,015
Written off 1 85 (81) - (81)
At 30 June 2018 and 20186 H30H &

1 July 2018 2018F7H1H 3,862 3,862
Amortisation for the year FEEHE 1,942 1,942
Disposal of subsidiaries B B A A

(note 33(a)) (#i#33(a)) (5,804) (5,804)
At 30 June 2019 #2019 6H30H =
Carrying amount: PREE:

At 30 June 2019 #2019 6H30H

At 30 June 2018 R2018%F 6 A30H - 27,661 27,661
The following useful lives are used in the calculation of R UAT AT HE:
amortisation:
Trademarks 5 years R 5%
Production rights Over the contract terms B E hig & &K F H
The above intangible assets are amortised on a straight- N EmEEENESENIEEEEANE
line basis over the relevant periods. TS -

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It FE
20. INVENTORIES

21.

Finished goods

20. 7€

Inventories represent food and beverage, consumable FEEBREZEZRERRERARL - BHEBR
and other goods of cinema operation. During the year K EME G - RE £2019F6A30H IEF
ended 30 June 2019, the cost of inventories recognised B RiEeEakAMEHE KRR
as expenses and included in “Cost of sales” in the REARAZWEFATHERR] 2 FERRR
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 3,402,0007% 7T (20184 : 1,493,000/ 7T) °

comprehensive income amounted
(2018: HK$1,493,000).

to HK$3,402,000

FILM AND TV PROGRAMME RIGHTS 2. EXRERTDERE

Cost: RN

At 1 July 2017 20178 7A18 18,856
Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 B 524
Transfer from film production in progress (note 22) #E B & {erh 2 B ¥ (I i#22) 8,745
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33(b)) & B A | (B 5233(b) (2,700)
At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 7R20184 6 A30H & 2018 7A1H 25,425
Exchange realignment & H R (1,168)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33(a)) & B8 A | (B 7233(a)) (24,257)
At 30 June 2019 7A2019%6H30H =
Accumulated amortisation: E-S g £

At 1 July 2017 MR201747A18 6,870
Exchange realignment b H R 74
Amortisation for the year FEHH 7,150
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33(b)) & KB A F) (K7 233(b)) (2,700)
At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 7201846 430 A 201847 A 18 11,394
Exchange realignment M H R (304)
Amortisation for the year FE#EH 8,111
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33(a)) & M B A F) (# 7233(a) (19,201)
At 30 June 2019 20196 830H

Carrying amount: BREE:

At 30 June 2019 20196 830H

At 30 June 2018 R2018F 6 A30H

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEZEBEERAT
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 “F#f




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 & £2019F6H30H IF F/E

21.

22.

FILM AND TV PROGRAMME RIGHTS
(continued)

During the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2019, the
Group reviewed its library of film and TV programme rights
regularly to reassess the estimated recoverable amounts
of the film and TV programme rights with reference to
marketability of each film and TV programme and current
market condition. The estimated recoverable amounts of
the film and TV programme rights was determined based
on either net realisable values of film rights to be disposed
of or a value-in-use calculation which uses the present
value of the expected future cash flows arising from the
sub-licensing and distribution of fiim and TV programme
rights and subsequent to the completion of fim and TV
programme production, which was derived from discounting
the projected future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate of
22.8% (30 June 2018: 22.7%).

Key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations
related to the estimation of cash inflow/outflow which
include budgeted sales and gross margin, growth rate
and discount rate. Such estimation was based on past
experience and management’s expectations of the market
development.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, no impairment
loss on film and TV programme rights was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (2018: Nil).

FILM AND TV PROGRAMME
PRODUCTION IN PROGRESS

21. €

EXRERBEREE)

R Z20184F 20196 A30H IF R FE -
$Elﬂ%hi%%&@ﬁﬁ527%%

E& TR RRTESE 2 EYRE
WEKE - A EH A ERRERDE

HWEEZH#TH&@;E%E BEXLERGA
MRAEZ R AT B 2 B0 A HE B R RE
“fﬁ/ﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘iﬁﬂr LA EE R

77‘&)31%%%% EBARET R R BRI
NEBETANEZ LB BBUETKR A

EEBHARKRERENE BRI
BT IR %22.8% (201846 H30H : 22.7%) 78
BRRRBRERETIRMEE -

EREEAET A ZBRER Y MG
fﬁ@fﬁ)\/fnbﬂj @?‘E?’E fﬁ%&%ﬂ N
BEERFBEEXR - ZEADERBER
BREEBERB I MISERMGE

EA%Z12019¢6)5130E|JJ:EF 18 £ 7D 4R
clEakHEMZ2ENRERAREZRE
1580 B hi i M R R (B 5 18 (20184 - 48 ) o

22. RIFPZELREREE

At 1 July 2017 R201747A18 215,463
Exchange realignment ME 5,8 B 438
Additions NE 40,094
Transfer to investments in film production HEZE N %%%f’ﬁz&ﬁ (78,072)
Transfer to film and TV programme rights (note 21) %ﬁé?ﬁﬁ% B R B RAE

(Hit21) (8,745)
Transfer from receipts in advance 8 5 I8 W RIR (18,261)
Written off 1 54 (120)
At 30 June 2018 7R2018%F 6 A30H 150,797
Reclassify to financial assets at FVTPL (nhote) EMOHEERAAEBAEFAEBR

LEMEE ML) (141,605)
At 1 July 2018 R20184F7H1H 9,192
Exchange realignment E H ' (363)
Additions NE 5,608
Written off 8 (3,110)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33(a)) & BB AR (K2£33(a) (11,327)
At 30 June 2019 A2019%6H30H

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H30H (- F/E

22. FILM AND TV PROGRAMME 22 RWIEPFcEFRERBHH (&
PRODUCTION IN PROGRESS (continued)
Note: B 7t
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, certain of the film production in RERMNE BT B IRELRIFEIRE - & TRIEF
progress were reclassified to financial assets at FVTPL as at 1 July ZBEHR01I8FTAIBET D B AR ARERA
2018 (see note 2(b)). Details of the fair value measurement over AERzemEE (RWia(b) - B#EMN2019
these film production in progress as at 30 June 2019 are disclosed FEASHZEERZEFAABEMFEAER
in note 5(c). B 5E5(c) # 55 ©

23. INVESTMENTS IN FILM PRODUCTION 23. REEFREZBE

Investments in film production (note) REZREZIRE
(Kt at) 35,302

Note: M &t -

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, the investments in film production RN BE BB EER BRI - REZEIE
were reclassified to financial assets at FVTPL as at 1 July 2018 ZERER0BF7TAIBEF DB AR ANERA
(see note 2(b)). Details of the fair value measurement over the STABmzemEE(RME2(b) o BREK2019
investments in film production as at 30 June 2019 are disclosed in FOABZREFRIEZRERABE =
note 5(c). 1B MY 5E5(c) ¥ & -

As at 30 June 2018, the amount represented investments 2018 6A30H * Zo AR BIEER
in certain production houses for production of films. The mmE TREQAFEL ZKRE - KREXR
investments are governed by the relevant agreements HEBREAE Bt AXEEEHEEIE
whereby the Group is entitled to benefits generated from E’\H_ﬁ FREEABZIEBOLERZEE
the distribution of these films based on the percentage HZETHER °

of capital contributed in the film production projects.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group RE E2018F6 308 LFE  AEEE
recognised the cost of investments in film production of RE & B AE IR & X 76,430,000/8 7_5 ji
HK$6,430,000 and an impairment loss of HK$37,046,000 SEHMHEURENTR  BZEFSE
based on the expected future revenue to be generated R E K 2 TEHIR R UK )\ﬁE 2R B B 18
from the films with reference to their marketability and 37,046,000/87C © AN+ IEKAFTE N
current market condition. In addition, an over-contribution ZRABREITT0008 THREFRIELZ
of investment costs of HK$977,000 was transferred KREEBZEE S R E b fE YR - 72018
from investments in film production to trade and other F6H30H 2 BRM{E35,302,000/% 7T 78 HA
receivables. The carrying amount of HK$35,302,000 as AMFERKE - At Z28BR&FE
at 30 June 2018 was expected to be repaid within 1 year DERRBEE °

and therefore, the amount was classified as current asset

in that year.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEZEBEERAT
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It F/E
24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

24. E 5 WK

B 5 e WK

Trade receivables, net

FH8

As at 30 June 2019, trade receivables comprise
receivables from contracts with customers of
HK$4,761,000 (1 July 2018: HK$12,227,000)

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 180
days (2018: 30 to 180 days) to its customers. The ageing
analysis of the trade receivables of the Group based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

R2019%F6H30H * & 5 E W (8 & &

BEREFPAH 2 ERFR) A4761,000/% 7T
(2018 7A1H : 12,227,000/ 7T)

AEBL TFTEEFFH30£180H (2018
F:302180R) 2fEEH - U TALREE
RRERRLZEZAHF 2 E RN
ZERER DT

0 to 90 days 0£90H
91 to 180 days 912180H
Over 180 days 180H A £

12,302

1,700

Less: Allowance for expected credit
losses/impairment loss
allowance

B EBEEBEERE
AR B R

14,002

(1,775)

12,227

Movement in the impairment loss allowance was as
follow:

BEBRBGEZEZFHMT

At 1 July 2017 R201747A1A 6,172
Impairment loss recognised for the year FEBRZAEEE 1,775
Disposal of subsidiaries &K B AR (6,172)
At 30 June 2018 7R2018%F 6 A30H 1,775
As at 30 June 2018, trade receivables of HK$1,700,000 201846 A30H - %ﬁ%ﬁéuﬁm 700,000
were neither past due nor impaired. The outstanding BT ARBENARBE ZAEREHE

amounts were contract bound. The Directors had
assessed the credit history of the aforesaid trade
receivables and concluded that there was no adverse
change on the credit quality of these customers and
considered these trade receivables were recoverable.

Details of allowance for expected credit losses
assessment for the year ended 30 June 2019 are set out
in note 5(b).

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H30H (- F/E

25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

25. HtEW R - M REAMNK

Other receivables H b & U 3K 1,068
Deposits paid (note (a)) B &S (H it @) 27,621
Prepayments (note (b)) T~ 3k (H1 22(b)) 27,879
Compensation income receivable JE 435 (B A (B 2% ()
(note (c)) 7.864
64,432
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEHRMEBSTAT
Non-current ER B -
Current &b 64,432
64,432
Notes: B 7t

(a) As at 30 June 2019, the amount mainly included rental, utility
and other deposits of HK$56,002,000 (2018: HK$27,596,000)
for cinema and office premises.

(b) As at 30 June 2019, the amount mainly included (i)
value-added tax recoverable of HK$19,464,000 (2018:
HK$19,103,000) derived from payments purchases of
property, plant and equipment and construction works for
cinemas and (ii) prepaid rental and management fee of
HK$11,265,000 (2018: HK$5,608,000) for cinema and office
premises.

(c) As at 30 June 2018, the amount of HK$7,864,000
represented the shortfall payment as at 31 December 2017
in respect of the profit guarantee given by Jade Sparkle
Holdings Limited and Mr. Huang Yulang (formerly known
as “Mr. Wong Chun Loong”) (collectively referred to as the
“Vendors”) to the Group in relation to the acquisition on
JDMM Group. As at 30 June 2019, the compensation income
receivable was fully settled.

Details of allowance for expected credit losses
assessment for the year ended 30 June 2019 are set out
in note 5(b).

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEZEBEERAT

(@) A2019%F6H30H ' LA B X B 68 i E
M REMEZHES - KEREMZS
56,002,0003% 7T (20184F : 27,596,00058 7T)

(b) H2019%F6A30H  ZAEXEBIEGNH
BEYWE BELIBEREREETIRN
FPTE £ 2 ] i Bl 1EE F£19,464,000/%8 7T
(20184 : 19,103,000/ JT) K (ii) L Bt Kz ##
ANEYEBMNE S LEEE11,265,000%8
7T (20184 : 5,608,00078 JT) °

(c) F2018%F6H30H © A #7,864,0007% T 2
CHIBBERBRAANE EBELE
(MBlIERELED(FEIZEEADH®
BT EeHEsHEREERASEERER
2017F12A31B 2 & AR B 2 Z 88N IA -
201966 A30H * B E W A D EH
B -

HZE201946A30HILFE » BEIEE
BB AE 2 ST B EH K FE5(b) ©
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26. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

RECEIVABLE

Contingent consideration receivable represents the profit
guarantee given by the Vendors to the Group in relation to
the acquisition of JDMM Group. Contingent consideration
receivable has been designated as financial assets at
FVTPL upon initial recognition and is measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The movement
of the fair value of contingent consideration receivable is
as follow:

26. B A

&
i

RURIAKELZEETRREEEN
Z IR 08 S B (7 AN 5 BE R 2OE AR EE -
R AREBRNGERBIEEREAR
REEFABDZ2EMEE T NRE
HRZAAEBEFNE EBRIAREZ
RABEESHET:

At the beginning of the year e 7,210
Amount received during the year FEBEWHRIE (7,864) -
Gain on derecognition for the year FEKRIEER K= -
Loss on fair value change for the year FEAREBEZEEE (1,273)
At the end of the year RER 7,210
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement in relation BEVNBEEAZHEHESB  EEH=
to the acquisition of JDMM Group (“S&P Agreement”), (EEmR]) %F= EEF’lﬂ$ B 2t
the Vendors have given a guarantee to the Group that RE MEEFAZHESERE E2016
the audited consolidated profit after tax of JDMM Group ¢12H 318 - 2017412 A31H &2 18412
for the three financial years ended 31 December 2016, ASTHIE=EM B FE (& @REHE )
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 (each of Z%&%Vﬁ?%ﬂ@:#&é 2 A PR & 18 1R 35 B
the “Guaranteed Periods”) would be no less than 815 K 710,000,000 7T (R B £ 5 )
HK$10,000,000 (the “Guaranteed Sum”) for each of the (PEFRE]D -
Guaranteed Periods (the “Profit Guarantee”).
In case the Profit Guarantee is not fulfiled for the fisl 48 & F 5 2 % A AR 78 AR 2 BK
corresponding year, the Vendors shall pay 78.64% of FRERRFCHEAESHLHE
the difference between the Guaranteed Sum and the KEZRBIEGEE RNE =58 ([
audited consolidated profit after tax of JDMM Group 278.64% X i F (

(the “Shortfall”) to the Group. During the year ended
31 December 2018 and 2017, the audited consolidated
profit after tax of JDMM Group did not satisfy the Profit
Guarantee. Hence, the Vendors are required to pay the
Shortfall to the Group in accordance with the terms and
condition stated in the S&P Agreement.

Upon the expiry of the Guaranteed Periods and the
settlement of the Shortfall in accordance with the
terms and condition stated in the S&P Agreement, the
contingent consideration receivable was derecognised
during the year ended 30 June 2019 which resulted in a
gain on the derecognition of HK$654,000 to the Group
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Details of the fair value measurement over the contingent
consideration receivables as at 30 June 2018 and 2019
are disclosed in note 5(c).

The contingent consideration receivable was classified as
current asset as at 30 June 2018.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4F

bH
o
o

Y

2017¢12ﬁ] 31H Jt$ § '
4=

ﬂ{% CE - REES
P 3 22 A5 3R B A6 A 1R AR

+>r
hEL A
H> i)
BELy
2y B
SET
R N
A3 S oo i AT R

2 551> 78 ) 25 18 4
© B B A SN B

S
i s
Wi o
L S
_L\
pjiig

%

REHREE MM EE B &g
ﬂmﬂ#imﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁj JEU S AR B F A
RBZ2019% 6 A30H IF F R A& I #ER -
BYAEENEaES R A MEEKS

RET AR FER U 75654,000/8 7T °

].

7

R20184F 2019464308 » fEUR sk FAMK
g; KRB Z AAEBEZ2 ZFBRMTFES(0)
5 o

R20185F6 A30H - B ARERESD
BARBEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It FE

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

27. %Qﬁﬁﬁ%flﬁﬁz&ﬂﬁ

Investments in film production (note (a)) MEFEIEZHRE
(K177 (a) 164,969 -
Investments in securities BHEEE
— Equity securities listed in Hong - BB LETRAE
Kong (17 (b))
(note (b)) 5,814 20,750
170,783 20,750
Notes: B2
(@  Investments in film production (@) REFEEZRKRE
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, the investments in film E’\%;?imﬁ}%ﬁﬂ%#ﬁ ZERIEIFEE - RE

FREZ IR B N2018FETAIHEFH NIEA

production were reclassified to financial assets at FVTPL as

at 1 July 2018 (see note 2(b)). ?E ARBEFABGZZEREE (RKF
2(b)) °
Movements in investments in film production were as follows: REXEIEZIREZESHAOT

At 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H
Effect arising from initial application of HKFRS 9 MBERBEBMIB RS EREIN

(note 2(b)) FE (K E20b) 181,589
At 1 July 2018 M201856F7H1H 181,589
Transfer to other receivables B AR (135)
Amount received during the year FEBWKKIEAE (8,503)
Decrease in fair value for the year FEALEBERD (7,982)
At 30 June 2019 720196 6H30H 164,969

(b)  Investment in equity securities (b)) BEABEHEE

As at 30 June 2019 and 2018, all of the equity securities
were listed in Hong Kong and denominated in HK$, and were
stated at their quoted price in the active market at the end
of the reporting period.

A decrease in fair value of these financial assets at FVTPL
of HK$14,936,000 (2018: HK$31,691,000) has been included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Detail of the fair value measurement over the investments
in film production and equity securities listed in Hong
Kong as at 30 June 2018 and 2019 are disclosed in note

5(c).

Emperor Culture Group Limited

20194 K% 20186 H30H - FT A I AN &
FREBLTRABTHE  LRRBRE
HIREERMS ZMEIIR -

‘xi?ﬂ@ﬁfﬂﬁﬁ)\}%ﬁ{lz%ﬂﬁﬁz

N Fo B 18 414,936,000 TT (20184 :
31,691,000,%75)Eu+)\ﬁ AEEMHEME
mREE -

R2018F 201946 A30H » ME & &1E
CHREREBLITRAZLEZAAEE
u_I—EE/\\[Kﬁ?E)( )T&Eﬁ °©
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28. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

28. RERBTER

Re RBITHET

Cash and bank balances

Notes:
(a) At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB and MYR
amounted to HK$68,145,000 and HK$341,000 (2018:
HK$92,550,000 and Nil) respectively.

c

Cash at banks earn interests at prevailing market rates which
range from 0.01% to 2.49% (2018: 0.01% to 2.04%) per
annum.

—
o
~

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are
subject to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

B EE

(a)

(b)

166,465

264,142

RBERR  MARBEMREFRGFEZA
SEB S RIRTETFH H A68,145,000/8
7T %.341,0003% 7T (20184F : 92,550,000
TC M) o

RITIBEZL N T0.01EZE2.49E (20184 :

0.01E £2.04F) 2 HMBITHIHFFHG
B o

BEUAREHEZEELBRBINE RIS
B EZRTEFRRESERTEE - A
18 T R B U AR M 2 SN B A6 <2 48 R 16k 91
KA -

29. EFRHEMEMNRK

Trade payables B S ENR
Accruals et & A

Other payables (note (a))
Receipts in advance (note (b))

HoAth & 3R (A 22 (a))
JEU IR (B 72 (b))

Notes:
(a) Other payables mainly comprise of (i) HK$7,865,000 (2018:
HK$50,652,000) for consideration payable to independent
third parties for enhancement and expansion of cinemas and
(i) HK$3,528,000 payable to a film investor in respect of the
film financing as at 30 June 2018.

Due to the adoption of HKFRS 15, effective on 1 July 2018,
the balance of receipts in advance were reclassified to
contract liabilities.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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(b)

5,684
21,346
63,081
10,934

101,045

EMENREZRREORRERERE
BT 5 T 98 3 8 = 77 & #(7,865,000/% 7T
(20184 : 50,652,000/ 7T) 2 fE R R B &
(B R2018F6 AR EF R B E N T —
ZLEFREEHBEH3,528,000/8 T2 ;A ©

HREMNE BT B REERNEIGHE &
2018F7A1HE r BRFBEHREENHE
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 29. B 5Kk H it (&
DA 7K R B A R o5 B R 1R B B B Bt
ZEBEAR LB DN

30.

31.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables of
the Group based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

0 to 90 days 0&90H

5,684

8,678

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30.

BHNAE

Short-term advances received from

customers
Pre-sales proceeds from cinema BB & & 2 T E RIE
operation

KEEFZRHENA

Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group recognised
pre-sales consideration received from customers in
relation to cinema operation and film and TV programme
production businesses as receipts in advance in trade
and other payables. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15,
receipts in advance of HK$10,934,000 in trade and other
payables were reclassified as contract liabilities as at 1
July 2018 (see note 2(c)). An amount of HK$9,260,000
which was included in the contract liabilities as at 1 July
2018 was recognised as revenue during the year ended
30 June 2019.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the contract
liabilities of HK$5,994,000 in relation to fim and TV
programme production business was written off upon the
disposal of subsidiaries (see note 33(a)). The balance
of HK$11,128,000 represents the pre-sales consideration
received from customers of cinema operation.

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED 31.
COMPANIES/NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Members of the key management and shareholders of
the Company have controlling interests over these related
companies.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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32. SHARE CAPITAL

32. lgA&

Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ER®EEOIE LY
T AR
At 1 July 2017, 30 June 2018, R2017E7H818 - 20184
1 July 2018 and 30 June 2019 64308 - 2018781
H X 2019%6830H 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each EREEB L ER
H&
At 1 July 2017, 30 June 2018, R2017%E7H1H - 20184
1 July 2018 and 30 June 2019 64308 - 2018781
H X 2019%6830H 3,213,340,890

Share options

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 8 November 2011. The major terms of the
Scheme are summarised as follows:

1. Purpose of the Scheme: To enable the Group to
grant options to eligible participants to subscribe for
shares in the Company as incentive or rewards for
their contribution to the Group.

2. Eligibility: Eligible participants include employees,
including any Directors, its subsidiaries or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds an equity
interest.

3. (a) Total number of shares available for issue as at
26 September 2019 (i.e. the date of this report)
under the Scheme: 321,334,089 shares;

(b) Percentage of the issued shares that it
represents as at the date of this report: 10%.

4. Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
under the Scheme:

(a) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders;

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Share options (continued)

4.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

under the Scheme: (continued)

(b) options granted to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive Directors
or their respective associates in any one
year exceeding the higher of 0.10% of the
shares in issue and with a value in excess
of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option: At any time from the date of
acceptance of the option to such a date determined
by the board of Directors (the “Board”) but in any
event not exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised: No minimum period
unless otherwise determined by the Board.

(a) Price payable on application or acceptance of
the option: HK$1.00;

(b)  The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date
of grant;

(c) Period within which loans for such purposes
of the payments or calls must be repaid: Not
applicable.

Basis for determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board
(subject to adjustment) and will not be less than
the highest of (a) the closing price of the share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for trades in one or more board lots of Shares
on the date of grant; (b) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

The remaining life of the Scheme: approximately 2
years (expiring on 7 November 2021).

During the year, no option was outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Scheme.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(a) Disposal of Magic Well Group

33. HEWE AT
(a) HEMagic Well&H

On 17 June 2019, the Group completed the
disposal of 100% equity interest in Magic Well
Holdings Limited (“Magic Well”) together with its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Magic Well
Group”) to an independent third party at a cash
consideration of HK$48,000,000 which resulted in
a gain on disposal of HK$3,476,000. Magic Well
Group was principally engaged in the production,
distribution and licensing of animated TV episodes
and theatrical films in previous years. Details
of this disposal was set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 17 June 2019.

No disposal-related costs has been charged
to administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Summary of the effect on disposal of Magic Well
Group is as follows:

20196 H178 » AEBUR &K
848,000,000/ 7T 58 fX ) & Magic
Well Holdings Limited ([Magic
Welll) & [F) H fff & 2 7] (41 78 [Magic
Well &£ @ |) 2 100% M # T — & E L
F=7 BEHEKZE3476,000/8
JC ° Magic Well &EERBAFE £
ZRERUME BITREEDHEER

FEREREY - ZHEFTHEZH
BHEHNAXRIHE A2019F6/817H
2R e

WHEENEEEMEE K ATAE
£ 20196 A30H BEzieiE
=hkEMEERS TEAX

A o

& Magic Well&2 @ 2
T

TEBEND

Property, plant and equipment ME I RRE 291

Intangible assets mEE 30,190
Goodwill S 39,987
Film and TV programme rights B LEREERE 5,056

Film and TV programme production in progress ®/Eh > EF L EEER 11,327
Trade receivables g 5 MWKk 1,700
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments  HMEWH L& MFEN K 1,153

Cash and bank balances Re RIBITHETT 129
Trade and other payables B 5 & B At & 3K (23,736)
Contract liabilities BHEE (5,994)
Other loan Hi B (12,000)
Net assets disposed of HEZEERE 48,103

Consideration received R E 48,000
Net assets disposed of LEZEEFE (48,103)

Cumulative exchange differences in respect of
the net assets of the subsidiaries reclassified

MEREMBRBZEGERS
BasHHoBEBmZ

from equity to profit or loss upon loss of MEBARIEEFEZ

control of the subsidiaries ZHELERE (305)
Non-controlling interests I 1% AR #E 2 3,884
Gain on disposal & W &= 3,476
Net cash inflow arising from the disposal: BHEEEZRERAFH:
Cash consideration received B RE 48,000

Cash and bank balances disposed of

PTHEERE MRITHET

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 33. HEMB AT (E)
(b) Disposal of Corporate Faome Group (b) & Corporate Faome & &

On 2 May 2018, the Group disposed of its 100%
equity interest in Corporate Fame Limited together
with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“Corporate Fame Group”) to an independent third
party at a cash consideration of HK$8,100,000
which resulted in a loss on disposal of HK$8,000.
Corporate Fame Group was principally engaged in
film and TV programme production and distribution
and provision of event management services in
previous years.

No disposal-related costs has been charged
to administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Summary of the effect on disposal of Corporate
Fame Group is as follows:

M2018F5A2H  AEB UK $
X {€8,100,0007% 7t i & Corporate
Fame Limited:Z R E KB =) (718
[Corporate Fame% H |) 2 100% %
Y —2BUE=H BRLEEE
188,000/ Jr » Corporate Fame%
ERATFEFENREEEZLER
MERERBEITURRERHERBELNE
EBRY -

WEHENEEEMRE 2K ATAE
ZE2018F6A30HIEFEZFEER
FEMEPERER ZITHRRAYA -

tt & Corporate Fame £ & 2 2 2
2T

2018
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment M HREERE -
Film and TV programme rights B NERE B MRE -
Trade receivables 2 5 WK -
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H b EUW K & & M FEF K 35
Cash and bank balances BE MRTHERE 9,831
Trade and other payables B 5 & E Ath JE - 5K (16,901)
Net liabilities disposed of HEZEEFE (7,035)
Consideration received B UK E 8,100
Net liabilities disposed of HEZBEFE 7,035
Non-controlling interests FE 1 R == (15,143)
Loss on disposal HEEE (8)
Net cash outflow arising from the disposal: BHEEEZHRLSRHEFE:
Cash consideration received EWBRERE 8,100
Cash and bank balances disposed of FrtERES RIBITER (9,831)
(1,731)

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEXtEZXEBEERALT
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34. COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease commitments
The Group as lessee

34. EiE

() KEHEKIE
REBEREEA

Operating leases rentals paid or HEEMEEK
payable for the year in respect of E 2 FEKE
rented premises HEHRS

27,760

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases, in respect
of rented premises, which fall due as follows:

RBEPRR AEERBEEHEHEE
MEZNAIBEEEHERETLZ
RRFEHSKAAFER AT FH
JE i

Within one year 1F A 74,496 31,064
In the second to fifth year inclusive  F2EF5F (BREER

™A A) 654,466 133,954

Over five years 5 1,147,345 97,215

1,876,307 262,233

The leases are mainly negotiated for an average
term of 1-15 years and the rentals are pre-
determined and fixed.

In addition to the minimum lease payments
described above, the Group has commitments
to pay contingent rent based on the sales of
the cinema premises pursuant to the terms and
conditions as set out in the respective tenancy
agreements. As the future sales could not be reliably
determined, the relevant contingent rent has not
been included in the above table.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 &=k

REMZEETEFYRSHIE165F
ke RBELEEERATETE -

RERSEBREFKAIN  NEHZ
SRS AEDIREABHE W=
T80 2 16 R R AR IR B B 0 5 2
HERBN - AR RKHEEIAA
FET HBEAESL RFAL
* o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It FE

34. COMMITMENTS (continued) 34. AE(EZ
(b) Capital commitments (b) EXREIE

Contracted for but not provided the — #t N3 &EZ 418

consolidated financial statements, ARG ET B ImE
net of amounts paid, in respect of: AR 2 IR (F0BR
BERTRIE)
— Acquisition on property, plant -BEEWME - HH
and equipment K& 175,616 2,049

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 35. RiEEBIfiEEA 2B EHK
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRAMAEERETHELEZBEZ
arising from financing activities, including both cash 2y pPEASKIIFREY  -@EE
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing PELEBRERAEERaRERE
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future KNS ERRETMMESLAZRERE
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated FIARKRREREZABE -

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.

At 1 July 2017 20177818 - 16,049 44,870
Exchange realignment [ 58 % - 358 -
Advances from related companies FENR 2R - 46,165 -
Repayments to related companies BEMAENFFIE - (47,019) -
At 30 June 2018 and 72018 6 A30H &

1 July 2018 201878 1H 15,553
Exchange realignment ME W GHE (502)
Proceeds from other loan Hitn B RIS HRIE =
Advances from related companies/  BE QG

non-controlling interests LMD 2 B 9,163
Repayments to related companies/  B&REQF

non-controlling interests IE1E e ¥ SRIE (18,563) (1,953)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AT

(note 33(a)) (1 533(a)) (12,000)
At 30 June 2019 #2019 6H30H =

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEZEBEERAT
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36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the year, the Group had the following material (@)
transactions with related parties:

6. EXBEALRE

RARER  NEBEFEALFY
MHEARRS:

Company secretarial fees to a m—EEEAREZN AT
related company (note (iv)) WE B (B 7 (iv)

Consultancy fee to a related m—EEERRZN
company (notes (i) and (iii) BB (KA ) R (i)

Event investment costs paid to a m—EEERRZN

related company (note (i) FEBHEREKAR
(K1 5% (iii)
Professional fee to a related m—EEEQR
company (note (iii)) BB R K I)
Purchases of furniture from a related [r) — & B8 8 A 7 38 B X A
company (notes (i) and (iii)) (B 2 (1) X (i)
Reimbursement of administrative EBN—HBEERAZ
expenses to a related company 1T B 3 (BT 2t (i)

(note (iii))

Rental expenses to related

MEEARXNEEER

companies (notes (ii) and (iii) (BT &2 (i) %% (i)
Sales of merchandising goods to [ #8751 & & @
related parties (note (v)) (B 7 (v)

Notes:

(i) On 15 January 2018, a related company controlled
by The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust”)
entered into an agreement with Ulferts International
Limited (“Ulferts International”). Pursuant to the
agreement, Ulferts International and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Ulferts Group”) shall sell/
provide the following to members of Emperor Group
(including the Group): (i) products and furniture
procurement consultancy services in relation to their
projects and investments, or for their own consumption;
(i) furniture coupons for their own consumption and
for the consumption of their clients as a marketing
strategy of their projects; and (iii) such other types
of ancillary services and any transaction of revenue
nature in the ordinary course of business of Ulferts
Group, commencing from 29 January 2018 and up
to 31 March 2020. Further details of these continuing
connected transactions were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 16 March 2018 and the
section headed “Directors’ Interest in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts of Significance and
Connected Transactions” under the Report of the
Directors.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) (continued)
Notes (continued):

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

On 24 May 2018, the Company and Emperor
International Holdings Limited (“Emperor
International”) entered into a master leasing
agreement (“MLA”) which set out a framework of the
terms governing the tenancy transactions between
the Group and the relevant members of Emperor
International. The MLA commenced on 24 May 2018

and shall expire on 31 March 2021.

Pursuant to the MLA, relevant members of the Group
and the relevant members of Emperor International
may from time to time enter into any definitive leasing
agreements in relation to any tenancy transactions
(“Definitive Leasing Agreement(s)”’). Both the
Company and Emperor International were indirectly
controlled by the AY Trust at the date of MLA. On 9
August 2018, upon fulfilment of all the conditions of
the MLA, the aggregate tenancy annual cap shall have
replaced all the annual caps obtained by the Company
before 9 August 2018 for the tenancy transactions
between the relevant members of Emperor International
and the Group.

The transactions contemplated under the MLA
constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Further details of which were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated on 24 May 2018 and the
Company’s circular dated on 17 July 2018 as well as
the section headed “Directors’ Interest in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts of Significance and
Connected Transactions” under the Report of the
Directors.

These related companies are ultimately controlled by
the relevant private discretionary trusts of which Mr.
Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander, a Director, is one of
the eligible beneficiaries.

This related company is ultimately controlled by a
Director.

These related parties include companies that
are ultimately controlled by the relevant private
discretionary trusts and a person who has control
over the boards of the controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

6. EXBEALXRZ(#E)

(@ (#)
Wi et () -

(i)  FA20184F5H24F @ ANFHIEZ &
E(EB)ERAR(HEEEM]) ]
vealHeEhm(REEHE)) &
REEEAEEE L2 HEREER
REZHHEERIMIELRER - &
MAEHHDR2018FE5A24B 4
I # 7R 2021F3A31H @ im ©

i3

BIEAREHE  ASEERBKE
ARHERERBHEBRKE QRN
BREMNEAERSIIVERBER
HF(EXBEHBRE]) - NETEHE
EEER  ARR R EZEEY
FRAY Trust@#45 % - R 20188 A
OB ERMEWMZN 2 IIEMHE
ERE BHEEFE FRIAE
ERRHEEKNEEAEE 2 HNHE
BEXSmBEARRR2018FE8H9H
RAIFTEIS M EE LR -

BB LTRNFEUAS  @HEWH
FBETHRETHZSERAQRN
SEHERS - BEE—TSFHEBER
RARTBE B20185E5 8248 2 A
ERANAFIHEA2018F7/17H 2
B URBEEEREFEENE
ARG RHhKAH RS REE
RE]—HA o

iy ZEEBEQRAYMAEBLARSE
T(EEBERREEEBEERS S
ANERZ—) BEEH -

(v) ZEERRH—BEEHRLES -

v) BREHESTRHEAABLAREE
B8 S AN E 2t RAN/NI E 2
BERRzEEEZ AL -

REXERRERRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 #




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It F/E

36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 6. EXBEALRZ (&
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Details of balances with related companies/non- (b) BEERR EEREZRREHR
controlling interests at the end of the reporting B0 2 FF B R R P REST o
period are set out in note 31.
(c) The key management personnel of the Company are (c) ARRAIFEEBABRESE -KF
the Directors. Details of their remunerations are set 2 EH MBS R EE16(a) ©
out in note 16(a).
37. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 37. KRBz BER
COMPANY

Non-current asset IRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries R B AR 2R 532,436 585,772
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits and HEMmERR - ek
prepayments ICENE 284 304
Financial assets at fair value through BEARBEFAER
profit or loss L EREBEE 1,602 3,578
Cash and bank balances ReRBPITHER 90,821 164,801
92,707 168,683
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables H 5 K EAth FE 1 5K 1,242 1,247
Amount due to a related company JE R A E RIE 383 502
1,625 1,749
Net current assets RBEEFE 91,082 166,934
Net assets EEFE 623,518 752,706
Capital and reserves RAR#E
Share capital fi% 2 32,133 32,133
Reserves (note) &K az) 591,385 720,573
Total equity B 623,518 752,706

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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37. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 37. KRBz BER(EZ)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: B 7F -

At 1 July 2017 201747818 912,843 50 58,658 (99,505) 872,046
Loss for the year FEE#E - - - (151,473) (151,473)
Other comprehensive income FEHME2EKE

for the year - - - - -
Total comprehensive loss FER2EABRAEE

for the year - - - (151,473)  (151,473)
At 30 June 2018 and 201864308 &

1 July 2018 20184 7A1H 912,843 (250,978) 720,573
Loss for the year FEBE (129,188) (129,188)

Other comprehensive income FEHEME2EKE
for the year = =

Total comprehensive loss FEX2EBREE
for the year (129,188)  (129,188)
At 30 June 2019 #2019 6HA30H 912,843 (380,166) 591,385

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEZEBEERAT
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. (B AT FE1E
(a) General information of subsidiaries () B LQE—KEFR
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries H2019F 20186 H30H © AR E
as at 30 June 2019 and 2018 are set out as follows: ZEWRBARIZFHBEINNT

Emperor Cinema Group Limited BVI US§t 100% - Investment holding
ZEBYHEEBRAA RERUES X7 RERRK

Emperor Cinema Management Hong Kong  HK$!
Limited Bk 1AL
REEFHERERLA

100% Cinema operation

Emperor Cinemas (China) Limted ~ Hong Kong ~ HK$2
REEPH(FE)BRA Bk 28T

100%  Investment holding

Emperor Cinemas (Malaysia) Sdn.  Malaysia MYR100,000 - Cinema operation

Bhd. SRED 100,000t & % BlheE
REEVN(BRAZ)ERAA"

Goldcore Holdings Limited BVI US§t 100% - Investment holding

ZERAEE 1ET RERR

Multi-Wide Limited Hong Kong  HK$! - 100% Film and event

BRERAA Bk 18T investments and

investment in

securities

B L& RER

REAZHRE

Perfect Perform Limited Hong Kong  HK$2 - 100% Cinema operation

BEERAH Bk 28T BlheE

Sino Spirit International Limited BVI US$100 - 55%  Investment holding

(“Sino Spirit’) EBRIES 10X RERR

ZEFYHORPM)BERAA Macau MOP$25,000 - 100%  Cinema operation

AP 2500027 BheE

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries
(continued)

38. MYB AR B (&
(o) HELAR—RER(E

SN (ZRERLA The PRC RMB32,800,000¢
B AR #32,.800,00070
SN (IR ERAT The PRC RMB95,000,000¢"
B AEH95,000,0007%
RETPH(EE)ERAA The PRC RMB33,000,000¢
B A B #33,000,0007c*
EEBYRMAERLA The PRC RMB23,500,000¢
B AR 235000007

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Registered capital

The amount represents the registered capital of & £
B (4L %) AR A F including its branch 2% &
UL F)BRARRYI S AT and B2 75 (AL R)
ARDFEMD AT

The Chinese name for identification purpose only

All are ordinary share capital unless otherwise stated.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

55% Cinema operation
100% Cinema operation
100% Cinema operation
100% Cinema operation

# A& A

" ZEREREEFZ WAL BRA
A(BRERETFWMULR) BRAOF
RNDRARREBZHULR)E
RABEMD AR zEMER

. X TR

BmBEHNHEN
N

2EHHRLERER

EMBRANFREAAFEANTM
FEBEEMEEER -

ERAIZARRRMHBRE - THE
ERRYUARBEZREREERE
HEZMBLAE  cEERR —
HHHEMEELR 2 F B
FHAMBRITE -

(iii)

REXLERXRKEEERATF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H308 It F/E

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. B ARFE (&
(continued)
(@) General information of subsidiaries () FHBAR —REN(E)
(continued) \ -
At the end of the reporting period, the Company ﬁé\f?%,ﬁﬂiﬁ ' $ﬁﬁj%ﬁ%?%
has other subsidiaries that are not material to the g EET%KZQ%’HMHEZ\E ° &
Group. The principal activities of these subsidiaries SHERAIZ EBZRBHANT -

are summarised as follows:

Investment holding and others Hong Kong 3
BEER R EHAM o
BVI 2
EBEZHS
None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital EMBARIRBERRKIAFREAN
subsisting at the end of the reporting period or at FREERETANEEER -
any time during the year.

(b) Details of non-wholly owned (b) BEEARFERERZFE
subsidiaries that have material non- EMB AR ZFHE
controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TREHNEEERFEREZZA
subsidiaries of the Company that have material non- REEEEMBRARIZFHE:

controlling interests:

Sino Spirt BVI and the PRC/the PRC 45% QTS (5,041) EECAIRN  (24:369) R
AERLBEBRTE/HE

# Representing Sino Spirit and its subsidiaries # ¥g Sino Spirit & E i & A &

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{LEXEEERALOTE I I
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 “F3f I I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &, £2019F6H30H (- F/E

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. B ATFIE (2
(continued)
(b) Details of non-wholly owned (b) HEERFERED 2HF 2
subsidiaries that have material non- EMEAR 2R (E

controlling interests (continued)

Current assets MENE E 15,371 26,025
Non-current assets FERBEE 36,089 43,364
Current liabilities mEEE (105,658) (110,157)
Revenue WA 38,371 38,292
Costs, other income and gains, PR - HAth A R 2=
expenses and taxation X & IE (49,573) (47,565)
Loss for the year FEEE (11,202) (9,273)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from KETEBS2ES CREH)
operating activities mAEER (13,618) 2,445
Net cash outflow from investing REFH 2R SRLFRE
activities (1,569) (609)
Net cash inflow from financing BMEFB I BEESRMAFRE
activities 728 5
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be (R, WA FE (14,459) 1,841
The above details do not include the financial LR FBETEEEEHEHEEE
information of JDMM Group which was owned as to HET S E R (K AR2019F6 178 T
78.64% by Magic Well before the disposal of Magic & Magic Well&£ E A - B3 Magic Well
Well Group on 17 June 2019 (see note 33(a)). FH78.64% 2 # %) (R M 5E33()) °
39. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 39. tkEmER
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 ZIS%IEA2018¢7H1E| N EBEEMN
on 1 July 2018. Under the transition method, comparative BMEERNFIRNEBU B RELLE
information is not restated. Further details of the change 1558 © $E$J‘éiﬁxf§73/£ BAEEILRE
in accounting policies are disclosed in note 2. K- FRERREINE-—FFBR
BRME2 -
In addition, certain comparative figures have been N BT BREFTEEHmDLE - UHE
reclassified to be consistent with the current period’s NEEZ 2| — -
presentation.
40. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF 40. REF B EZ S B HRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved IR B M RER N 2019F 926 R EE =
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 SHE R RN E -

September 2019.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEZEBEERAT
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEEESE

The following is a summary of the published results and the & Z£2019F6A30H It AAFEARAEERZERQ

assets and liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 30

June 2019:

RESULTS

hWERANKEERBBERERIIWT

£

Continuing operations BFESEER
Revenue WA 85,332 24,251 44,925 91,202 145,753
Loss before taxation BriiAIE B (28,354) (48,680) (69,253)  (158,355) EELPLL)
Taxation (charge)/credit BME(XH)/ER (17) - 175 242 -
Loss for the year from FECEEB 2

continuing operations FEEE (28,371) (48,680) (69,078) (158,113) BNEELFLL)
Discontinued operation BERIEREER
Loss for the year from ERIEREEBZ

discontinued operation* FEEE (48,873) (28,747) - - -
Loss for the year FEEE (77,244) (77,427) (69,078) (158,113) BNEELWLL)
Loss attributable to: ATRIALTEIEEE

BB
Owners of the Company VN/NETEZ =N (75,115)  (106,015) (62,327)  (153,797) BEPLER))
Non-controlling interests FERER (2,129) 28,588 (6,751) (4,316) (7,848)
(77,244)  (77.427)  (69,078)  (158,113) IR ERLIZLL))
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHES

Total assets BEE 956,210 827,832 1,053,942 902,608 700,273
Total liabilities BaE (98,307) (76,543)  (173,048)  (161,468) B AR L)
Net assets BEFME 857,903 751,289 880,894 741140 599,129
Capital and reserves BT ATEIERAR

attributable to: & -

Owners of the Company KREIHEBA 884,464 776,177 904,179 752,706 623,518

Non-controlling interests 3£ 12 R i 2% (06,561)  (24.888)  (23,285)  (11,566) [ PLIRLL);

857,903 751,289 880,894 741140 599,129

* The discounted operation represented the post production service

BRI EERIEARNE B £2016F6H308 IEF

EHE 2R BREREDE -

segment which was disposed of by the Group during the year ended
30 June 2016.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERALAT
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